

**STATE OF ILLINOIS**



# **HOUSE JOURNAL**

**HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES**

**NINETY-SIXTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY**

**56TH LEGISLATIVE DAY**

**REGULAR & PERFUNCTORY SESSION**

**MONDAY, MAY 18, 2009**

**4:54 O'CLOCK P.M.**

**HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES  
Daily Journal Index  
56th Legislative Day**

<b>Action</b>	<b>Page(s)</b>
Adjournment .....	116
Agreed Resolutions .....	28
Change of Sponsorship.....	27
Introduction and First Reading – HB 4563 .....	150
Legislative Measures Approved for Floor Consideration.....	7
Legislative Measures Assigned to Committee .....	8
Messages From The Senate.....	13
Motions Submitted .....	8
Perfunctory Adjournment.....	150
Perfunctory Session.....	150
Quorum Roll Call .....	7
Resolution .....	28
Senate Bills on First Reading .....	150
Temporary Committee Assignments.....	7

<b>Bill Number</b>	<b>Legislative Action</b>	<b>Page(s)</b>
HB 0010	Motion Submitted .....	12
HB 0022	Motion Submitted .....	11
HB 0037	Motion Submitted .....	12
HB 0047	Motion Submitted .....	12
HB 0085	Motion Submitted .....	11
HB 0177	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 0236	Motion Submitted .....	13
HB 0379	Motion Submitted .....	13
HB 0418	Motion Submitted .....	10
HB 0437	Motion Submitted .....	12
HB 0445	Motion Submitted .....	10
HB 0467	Motion Submitted .....	11
HB 0562	Motion Submitted .....	12
HB 0613	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 0723	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 0740	Motion Submitted .....	13
HB 0811	Motion Submitted .....	11
HB 0865	Motion Submitted .....	12
HB 0927	Motion Submitted .....	10
HB 0964	Motion Submitted .....	10
HB 1108	Committee Report - Concur in SA .....	8
HB 1119	Motion Submitted .....	13
HB 1143	Motion Submitted .....	13
HB 1327	Motion Submitted .....	10
HB 1329	Motion Submitted .....	13
HB 2280	Motion Submitted .....	13
HB 2296	Motion Submitted .....	13
HB 2322	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 2331	Motion Submitted .....	12
HB 2388	Motion Submitted .....	10
HB 2425	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 2443	Motion Submitted .....	11
HB 2450	Motion Submitted .....	13
HB 2474	Committee Report - Concur in SA .....	8

HB 2539	Committee Report - Concur in SA .....	8
HB 2547	Motion Submitted .....	11
HB 2573	Committee Report - Concur in SA .....	8
HB 2651	Motion Submitted .....	12
HB 2660	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA .....	14
HB 2686	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA .....	15
HB 3642	Motion Submitted .....	12
HB 3658	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA .....	18
HB 3776	Motion Submitted .....	10
HB 3779	Committee Report - Concur in SA .....	8
HB 3832	Motion Submitted .....	11
HB 3832	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA .....	18
HB 3863	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 3878	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 3922	Motion Submitted .....	11
HB 3922	Senate Message – Passage w/ SA .....	27
HB 3950	Motion Submitted .....	11
HB 4054	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4237	Motion Submitted .....	10
HB 4241	Motion Submitted .....	10
HB 4453	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4454	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4455	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4456	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4457	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4458	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4459	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4460	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4461	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4462	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4463	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4464	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4465	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4466	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4467	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4468	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4469	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4470	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4471	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4472	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4473	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4474	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4475	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4476	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4477	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4478	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4479	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4480	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4481	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4482	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4483	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4484	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4485	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4486	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4487	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4488	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4489	Motion Submitted .....	9

HB 4490	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4491	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4492	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4493	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4494	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4495	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4496	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4497	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4498	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4499	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4500	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4501	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4502	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4503	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4504	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4505	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4506	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4507	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4508	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4509	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4510	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4511	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4512	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4513	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4514	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4515	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4516	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4517	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4518	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4519	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4520	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4521	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4522	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4523	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4524	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4525	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4526	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4527	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4528	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4529	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4530	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4531	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4532	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4533	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4534	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4535	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4536	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4537	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4538	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4539	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4540	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4541	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4542	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4543	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4544	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4545	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4546	Motion Submitted .....	9

HB 4547	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4548	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4549	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4550	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4551	Motion Submitted .....	9
HB 4552	Motion Submitted .....	9
HJR 0005	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
HR 0068	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s .....	7
HR 0410	Resolution .....	28
HR 0410	Adoption .....	116
HR 0411	Resolution .....	28
HR 0412	Resolution .....	28
HR 0412	Adoption .....	116
SB 0047	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 0063	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	34
SB 0089	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 0104	Second Reading .....	35
SB 0149	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 0149	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	35
SB 0188	Second Reading .....	35
SB 0246	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	35
SB 0331	First Reading.....	150
SB 0340	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 0340	Second Reading – Amendments/s .....	36
SB 0349	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	77
SB 0574	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	37
SB 0577	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 1050	First Reading.....	150
SB 1255	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	37
SB 1282	Second Reading .....	66
SB 1289	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 1335	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	74
SB 1339	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 1348	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 1390	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 1390	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	67
SB 1440	Second Reading .....	75
SB 1448	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	75
SB 1493	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 1493	Recall.....	76
SB 1493	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	76
SB 1510	Second Reading .....	76
SB 1512	Second Reading .....	76
SB 1544	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	76
SB 1611	Second Reading .....	77
SB 1698	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 1698	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	91
SB 1729	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s.....	7
SB 1729	Second Reading – Amendments/s .....	93
SB 1769	Third Reading .....	29
SB 1770	Third Reading .....	29
SB 1783	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	88
SB 1784	Third Reading .....	29
SB 1796	Third Reading .....	29
SB 1801	Second Reading – Amendment/s.....	89
SB 1814	Third Reading .....	29

SB 1817	Third Reading .....	29
SB 1818	Third Reading .....	31
SB 1828	Third Reading .....	29
SB 1830	Third Reading .....	30
SB 1832	Third Reading .....	30
SB 1837	Second Reading .....	89
SB 1841	Third Reading .....	30
SB 1843	Third Reading .....	30
SB 1877	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s .....	7
SB 1877	Second Reading – Amendment/s .....	89
SB 1882	Third Reading .....	30
SB 1883	Third Reading .....	30
SB 1897	Third Reading .....	34
SB 1922	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s .....	7
SB 1922	Second Reading – Amendment/s .....	90
SB 1923	Third Reading .....	31
SB 1926	Third Reading .....	31
SB 1948	Third Reading .....	31
SB 1956	Third Reading .....	31
SB 1957	Third Reading .....	31
SB 1958	Third Reading .....	32
SB 1970	Third Reading .....	32
SB 1972	Third Reading .....	32
SB 1974	Third Reading .....	32
SB 1977	Third Reading .....	32
SB 2009	Third Reading .....	32
SB 2010	Third Reading .....	33
SB 2014	Third Reading .....	33
SB 2022	Second Reading .....	89
SB 2026	Second Reading – Amendment/s .....	90
SB 2034	Third Reading .....	33
SB 2045	Third Reading .....	33
SB 2046	Third Reading .....	33
SB 2051	Third Reading .....	33
SB 2057	Recall .....	116
SB 2112	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s .....	7
SB 2112	Recall .....	93
SB 2112	Second Reading – Amendment/s .....	93
SB 2119	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s .....	7
SB 2119	Second Reading – Amendment/s .....	90
SB 2150	Second Reading .....	91
SB 2167	First Reading .....	150
SB 2172	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s .....	8
SB 2272	Committee Report – Floor Amendment/s .....	8
SB 2272	Second Reading – Amendment/s .....	91
SB 2289	Second Reading .....	91
SB 2300	First Reading .....	150

The House met pursuant to adjournment.

Representative Mautino in the chair.

Prayer by Senior Pastor Kevin Donoho, who is with Salem Grace Church of the Nazarene in Salem, IL.

Representative Walker led the House in the Pledge of Allegiance.

By direction of the Speaker, a roll call was taken to ascertain the attendance of Members, as follows:

105 present. (ROLL CALL 1)

By unanimous consent, Representatives Boland, Bost, Brosnahan, William Davis, Dugan, Careen Gordon, Hamos, Hoffman, McGuire, Mulligan, Rita, Washington and Yarbrough were excused from attendance. At the hour of 5:39 o'clock p.m., by unanimous consent, Representative Bill Mitchell was excused from attendance for the remainder of the day.

### **REQUEST TO BE SHOWN ON QUORUM**

Having been absent when the Quorum Roll Call for Attendance was taken, this is to advise you that I, Representative McGuire, should be recorded as present at the hour of 5:00 o'clock p.m.

Having been absent when the Quorum Roll Call for Attendance was taken, this is to advise you that I, Representative Hamos, should be recorded as present at the hour of 7:21 o'clock p.m.

### **TEMPORARY COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS**

Representative Mautino replaced Representative Currie in the Committee on Rules on May 18, 2009.

Representative Tryon replaced Representative Schmitz in the Committee on Rules on May 18, 2009.

### **REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE ON RULES**

Representative Mautino replaced Representative Currie, Chairperson, from the Committee on Rules to which the following were referred, action taken on May 18, 2009, reported the same back with the following recommendations:

#### **LEGISLATIVE MEASURES APPROVED FOR FLOOR CONSIDERATION:**

That the Floor Amendment be reported "recommends be adopted":

Amendment No. 2 to HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTION 5.

Amendment No. 2 to HOUSE RESOLUTION 68.

Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL 47.

Amendment No. 2 to SENATE BILL 89.

Amendment No. 2 to SENATE BILL 149.

Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL 340.

Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL 577.

Amendment No. 3 to SENATE BILL 1289.

Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL 1339.

Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL 1348.

Amendment No. 2 to SENATE BILL 1390.

Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL 1493.

Amendment No. 2 to SENATE BILL 1698.

Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL 1729.

Amendment No. 2 to SENATE BILL 1877.

Amendment No. 2 to SENATE BILL 1922.

Amendment No. 2 to SENATE BILL 2112.

Amendment No. 2 to SENATE BILL 2119.

Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL 2172.  
Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL 2272.

That the Motion be reported “recommends be adopted” and placed on the House Calendar:  
Motion to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 1108.  
Motion to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2474.  
Motion to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2539.  
Motion to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2573.  
Motion to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 3779.

**LEGISLATIVE MEASURES ASSIGNED TO COMMITTEE:**

Counties & Townships: HOUSE AMENDMENT No. 2 to SENATE BILL 1995 and Motion to Concur with SENATE AMENDMENT No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 883.

Executive: SENATE BILL 2248, HOUSE AMENDMENT No. 2 to SENATE BILL 1920 and HOUSE AMENDMENT No. 2 to SENATE BILL 2091.

Health Care Licenses: HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTION 55 and HOUSE AMENDMENTS Numbered 2 and 3 to SENATE BILL 290.

Human Services: SENATE BILL 1928, HOUSE AMENDMENT No. 1 to SENATE BILL 807, HOUSE AMENDMENTS Numbered 1 and 2 to SENATE BILL 2043 and Motion to Concur with SENATE AMENDMENT No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 746.

Judiciary I - Civil Law: HOUSE AMENDMENT No. 1 to SENATE BILL 2256.

Judiciary II - Criminal Law: Motion to Concur with SENATE AMENDMENT No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 3717.

Telecommunications: SENATE BILL 1421.

The committee roll call vote on the foregoing Legislative Measures is as follows:

4, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y Mautino(D) (replacing Currie)  
Y Lang(D)  
Y Turner(D)

A Black(R), Republican Spokesperson  
Y Tryon(R) (replacing Schmitz)

Representative Currie, Chairperson, from the Committee on Rules to which the following were referred, action taken on May 18, 2009, (A) reported the same back with the following recommendations:

**LEGISLATIVE MEASURES ASSIGNED TO COMMITTEE:**

State Government Administration: HOUSE AMENDMENT No. 1 to SENATE BILL 1906.

The committee roll call vote on the foregoing Legislative Measures is as follows:

4, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

Y Currie(D), Chairperson  
Y Lang(D)  
A Turner(D)

Y Black(R), Republican Spokesperson  
Y Schmitz(R)

**MOTIONS SUBMITTED**

Representative Currie submitted the following written motion, which was placed on the Calendar on the order of Motions in Writing:

**MOTION**



Pursuant to Rule 25, I move to suspend the posting requirements of Rule 21 in relation to HOUSE BILL 4453, 4454, 4455, 4456, 4457, 4458, 4459, 4460, 4461, 4462, 4463, 4464, 4465, 4466, 4467, 4468, 4469, 4470, 4471, 4472, 4473, 4474, 4475, 4476, 4477, 4478, 4479, 4480, 4481, 4482, 4483, 4484, 4485, 4486, 4487, 4488, 4489, 4490, 4491, 4492, 4493, 4494, 4495, 4496, 4497, 4498, 4499, 4500, 4501, 4502, 4503, 4504, 4505, 4506, 4507, 4508, 4509, 4510, 4511, 4512, 4513, 4514, 4515, 4516, 4517, 4518, 4519, 4520, 4521, 4522, 4523, 4524, 4525, 4526, 4527, 4528, 4529, 4530, 4531, 4532, 4533, 4534, 4535, 4536, 4537, 4538, 4539, 4540, 4541, 4542, 4543, 4544, 4545, 4546, 4547, 4548, 4549, 4550, 4551 and 4552 to be heard in the Executive Committee.

Representative Eddy submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 613.

Representative Feigenholtz submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 4054.

Representative Riley submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendments numbered 1 and 2 to HOUSE BILL 177.

Representative Fortner submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 723.

Representative Burns submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 3863.

Representative Bradley submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 3878.

Representative Riley submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2425.

Representative Sacia submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2322.

Representative Hernandez submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2388.

Representative Monique Davis submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 418.

Representative Mautino submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 4237.

Representative Mautino submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendments numbered 1 and 2 to HOUSE BILL 927.

Representative Mautino submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 4241.

Representative Farnham submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 3776.

Representative Harris submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 3 to HOUSE BILL 445.

Representative DeLuca submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 964.

Representative Senger submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 1327.

Representative Jakobsson submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 467.

Representative Harris submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendments numbered 1 and 2 to HOUSE BILL 3922.

Representative Lang submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 811.

Representative Mautino submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 3832.

Representative Jackson submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 85.

Representative Chapa LaVia submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 3950.

Representative Franks submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 22.

Representative Fritchey submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2547.

Representative Reitz submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2443.

Representative Beiser submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 437.

Representative Beiser submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 2 to HOUSE BILL 10.

Representative Mendoza submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 562.

Representative Brauer submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 3642.

Representative Tracy submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 865.

Representative Brady submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 37.

Representative Brady submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 47.

Representative Black submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2331.

Representative Reboletti submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2651.

Representative Bellock submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2280.

Representative Bellock submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendments numbered 1 and 2 to HOUSE BILL 1329.

Representative Connelly submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 379.

Representative Coulson submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendments numbered 1 and 2 to HOUSE BILL 1143.

Representative Hatcher submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2296.

Representative Graham submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 740.

Representative Miller submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2450.

Representative Ryg submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 236.

Representative Coulson submitted the following written motion, which was referred to the Committee on Rules:

**MOTION**

I move to concur with Senate Amendment No. 2 to HOUSE BILL 1119.

**MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE**

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Rock, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House in the passage of bills of the following titles to-wit:

HOUSE BILL NO. 2619

A bill for AN ACT concerning education.

HOUSE BILL NO. 3634

A bill for AN ACT concerning employment.

HOUSE BILL NO. 3600

A bill for AN ACT concerning education.

HOUSE BILL NO. 3636

A bill for AN ACT concerning revenue.

HOUSE BILL NO. 3664

A bill for AN ACT concerning revenue.

HOUSE BILL NO. 3705

A bill for AN ACT concerning transportation.

HOUSE BILL NO. 3934

A bill for AN ACT concerning criminal law.

HOUSE BILL NO. 3956

A bill for AN ACT concerning transportation.

HOUSE BILL NO. 3961

A bill for AN ACT concerning criminal law.

HOUSE BILL NO. 3964

A bill for AN ACT concerning public employee benefits.

Passed by the Senate, May 18, 2009.

Jillayne Rock, Secretary of the Senate

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Rock, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 2660

A bill for AN ACT concerning criminal law.

Together with the attached amendment thereto (which amendment has been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 2660

Passed the Senate, as amended, May 18, 2009.

Jillayne Rock, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 2660 on page 13, by replacing lines 7 through 11 with the following:

~~"deposit into the Domestic Violence Surveillance Fund.~~ The Circuit Clerk shall retain 10% of such penalty and deposit that percentage into the Circuit Court Clerk Operation and Administrative Fund to cover the costs incurred in administering and enforcing this Section. ~~Such additional~~".

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2660 was placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Rock, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 2686

A bill for AN ACT concerning education.

Together with the attached amendment thereto (which amendment has been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 2686

Passed the Senate, as amended, May 18, 2009.

Jillayne Rock, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 2686 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Forensic Psychiatry Fellowship Training Act is amended by changing Section 20 as follows:

(110 ILCS 46/20)

Sec. 20. University of Illinois College of Medicine at Peoria and Northwestern University programs; funding ~~Funding. From funds appropriated for the purposes of this Act, the University of Illinois at Chicago and Southern Illinois University may enter into cooperative agreements with the University of Illinois College of Medicine at Peoria or Northwestern University or both for the purpose of funding forensic psychiatric fellowship training programs at the University of Illinois College of Medicine at Peoria and Northwestern University. The implementation of this Act is subject to appropriation. In a given fiscal year, 75% of the total amount appropriated for the purposes of this Act must be designated for the University of Illinois at Chicago and 25% of the total amount appropriated for the purposes of this Act must be designated for Southern Illinois University. From the appropriation for the purposes of this Act, the University of Illinois at Chicago and Southern Illinois University shall negotiate, with agencies providing supervision for forensic psychiatric fellows, the reimbursement of the marginal costs associated with that supervision, unless the University of Illinois at Chicago or Southern Illinois University is providing the supervision. Agencies providing supervision to more than one forensic psychiatric fellow may aggregate these marginal costs.~~

(Source: P.A. 95-22, eff. 8-3-07.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect July 1, 2009."

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 2686 was placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Rock, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 3658

A bill for AN ACT concerning land.

Together with the attached amendment thereto (which amendment has been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 3658

Passed the Senate, as amended, May 18, 2009.

Jillayne Rock, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 3658, on page 23, immediately below line 3, by inserting the following:

"Section 65. Upon the payment of the sum of \$93,300.00 to the State of Illinois, and subject to the conditions set forth in Section 900 of this Act, the Secretary of the Department of Transportation is authorized to convey by quitclaim deed all right, title and interest in and to the following described land in Madison County, Illinois, to City of Alton.

Parcel No. 800XB33

The East One Half (E 1/2) of Lot Nine (9) in Block Five (5) in City Proper (The Original Town of Alton), situated in the City of Alton, County of Madison and State of Illinois.

Said Original Town of Alton according to the plat recorded in Plat Book 7, Page 64 recopied from Book C,

Page 395 in Madison County, Illinois.

Parcel 800XB33 herein described contains 0.0682 acre or 2,970 square feet, more or less.

This conveyance is subject to any and all utility easements, and the rights existing to any and all facilities for said easements on the real estate herein above described.

Section 70. Upon the payment of the sum of \$17,900.00 to the State of Illinois, and subject to the conditions set forth in Section 900 of this Act, the Secretary of the Department of Transportation is authorized to convey by quitclaim deed all right, title and interest in and to the following described land in Madison County, Illinois, to City of Alton.

Parcel No. 800XC75

The West One Half (W 1/2) of Langdon Street from Broadway south to an easterly extension of the south line of the boundary of Lot Nine (9) in Block Five (5) in Alton Proper (the Original Town of Alton), situated in the City of Alton, County of Madison and State of Illinois.

Said Original Town of Alton according to the plat recorded in Plat Book 7, Page 64 recopied from Book C, Page 395 in Madison County, Illinois.

Parcel 800XC75 herein described contains 0.0725 acre or 3,158 square feet, more or less.

This conveyance is subject to any and all utility easements, and the rights existing to any and all facilities for said easements on the real estate herein above described.

Section 75. Upon the payment of the sum of \$4,500.00 to the State of Illinois, and subject to the conditions set forth in Section 900 of this Act, the Secretary of the Department of Transportation is authorized to convey by quitclaim deed all right, title and interest in and to the following described land in Madison County, Illinois, to William P. Sampson and Jean M. Sampson.

Parcel No. 800XC71

That part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 28, Township 4 North, Range 8 West of the Third Principal Meridian, Madison County, Illinois, described as follows:

Beginning at the northwest corner of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 28, said Point of Beginning also being the northwest corner of a tract of land as described in the warranty deed recorded November 17, 1970 in Book 2720, Page 580 in the Madison County Recorder's Office; thence on an assumed bearing of North 89 degrees 51 minutes 54 seconds East, on the north line of said Southwest Quarter, also being the north line of said tract of land, 155.02 feet to the northeast corner of said tract of land; thence South 01 degree 01 minute 29 seconds East, on the east line of said tract of land, 15.97 feet to the southeast corner of said tract of land on the existing southerly right of way line of FA 5; thence South 74 degrees 58 minutes 17 seconds West, on the south line of said tract of land, also being said existing the southerly right of way line, 159.75 feet to the southwest corner of said tract of land on the west line of said Southwest Quarter; thence North 01 degree 01 minute 29 seconds West, on the west line of said tract of land, also being the west line of said Southwest Quarter, 57.03 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel 800XC71 contains 0.1299 acre or 5,658 square feet, more or less.

The above described parcel being the same tract of land described in the warranty deed as recorded on November 17, 1970 in Book 2720, Page 580, in the Madison County Recorder's Office, described as follows:

A tract of land located in the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4 of Section 28, T4N, R8W of the Third Principal Meridian in Madison County, Illinois, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the northwest corner of the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4 of Section 28, T4N, R8W of Third Principal Meridian, Madison County, Illinois, said corner being 168.41 feet southerly of Station 117+52.05 on the survey centerline of Relocated Federal Aid Route 5 (FA Route 5) as recorded in Road Record Book 8, Pages 110 & 111 in the Recorder's office of Madison County, Illinois; thence east along the north line of the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4 of said Section 28 to a point 190.72 feet southerly of Station 119+05.44 on the recorded Survey centerline; thence southerly along Grantor's east property line to a point 207.78 feet southerly of Station 118+99.73 on the recorded survey centerline; thence southwesterly to a point on the west line of said Section 28, said point being 225 feet southerly of Station 117+46.51 on the recorded survey centerline; thence north along said west line to the point of beginning and containing 0.14 acre, more or less.

Section 80. Upon the payment of the sum of \$400.00 to the State of Illinois, and subject to the conditions set forth in Section 900 of this Act, the Secretary of the Department of Transportation is authorized to convey by quitclaim deed all right, title and interest in and to the following described land in Madison County, Illinois, to Michael Sampson.

Parcel No. 800XC72

That part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 28, Township 4 North, Range 8 West of the Third Principal



Meridian, Madison County, Illinois, described as follows:

Commencing at the northwest corner of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 28; thence on an assumed bearing of North 89 degrees 51 minutes 54 seconds East, on the north line of said Southwest Quarter, 155.02 feet to the northwest corner of a tract of land as described in the warranty deed recorded July 7, 1970 in Book 2697, Page 105 in the Madison County Recorder's Office, said northwest corner also being the Point of Beginning. From Said Point of Beginning; thence North 89 degrees 51 minutes 54 seconds East, continuing on the north line of said Southwest Quarter, also being the north line of said tract of land, 60.28 feet to the northeast corner of said tract of land on the existing southerly right of way line of FA 5; thence South 74 degrees 58 minutes 17 seconds West, on the southeasterly line of said tract of land, also being said existing southerly right of way line, 62.12 feet to the southwest corner of said tract of land; thence North 01 degree 01 minute 29 seconds West, on said west line of said tract of land, 15.97 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel 800XC72 contains 0.0110 acre or 481 square feet, more or less.

The above described parcel being the same tract of land described in the warranty deed as recorded on July 7, 1970 in Book 2697, Page 105, in the Madison County Recorder's Office, described as follows:

A tract of land located in the NW 1/4 SW 1/4 of Section 28, T4N, R8W of the Third Principal Meridian in Madison County, Illinois, more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the north line of the NW 1/4 SW 1/4 of Section 28, said point also being on the Grantor's northwest property corner, and also being 190.72 feet southerly of Station 119+05.44 on the survey centerline of Relocated Federal Aid Route 5 (FA Route 5) as recorded in Road Record Book 8, Page 110 & 111 in the Recorder's office of Madison County, Illinois; thence east along the Grantor's north property line, said line being the north line of the NW 1/4 of the SW 1/4 of Section 28 to a point 200.00 feet southerly of Station 119+69.23 on the recorded survey centerline; thence westerly to a point on the Grantor's west property line, said point being 207.78 feet southerly of Station 118+99.73 on the recorded survey centerline; thence north along said west property line to the point of beginning and containing 0.02 acre, more or less.

Section 85. Upon the payment of the sum of \$1,325.00 to the State of Illinois, and subject to the conditions set forth in Section 900 of this Act, the easement for highway purposes acquired by the People of the State of Illinois is released over and through the following described land in Christian County, Illinois:

Parcel No. 675X295

A part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 31, Township 14 North, Range 2 West, of the Third Principal Meridian, Christian County, Illinois, more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at a found iron pin at the northwest corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 31; thence along the west line of said Southeast Quarter, South 01 degree 10 minutes 11 seconds East, 511.46 feet to the intersection of old FA 75(IL 29) centerline at Station 722+08.62; thence along said centerline on a curve to the right with a radius of 41087.11 feet and a chord bearing South 35 degrees 09 minutes 35 seconds East, 134.13 feet; thence continuing on said centerline South 35 degrees 03 minutes 59 seconds East, 810.91 feet; thence South 54 degrees 56 minutes 01 second West, 99.33 feet to the northeasterly former railroad right of way line, also being the southwesterly line of the previously vacated alley; thence North 88 degrees 56 minutes 24 seconds East, 9.65 feet to the centerline of said vacated alley; thence along said centerline, South 35 degrees 03 minutes 35 seconds East, 199.02 feet to the north right of way line of vacated Fourth Street; thence along said right of way line, South 88 degrees 59 minutes 45 seconds West, 9.66 feet to a found pin on the northeasterly former railroad right of way line, thence along said right of way line, South 35 degrees 03 minutes 35 seconds East, 39.20 feet to a found iron pin; thence South 88 degrees 57 minutes 20 seconds West, 60.32 feet to the centerline of the former railroad right of way, thence along said centerline, North 35 degrees 05 minutes 14 seconds West, 238.27 feet, thence North 88 degrees 56 minutes 24 seconds East, 60.31 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 0.310 acres of which 0.037 acres are in the vacated alley.

Section 90. Upon the payment of the sum of \$3,500.00 to the State of Illinois, and subject to the conditions set forth in Section 900 of this Act, the Secretary of the Department of Transportation is authorized to convey by quitclaim deed all right, title and interest in and to the following described land in Rock Island County, Illinois, to Knoxville Road Baptist Church.

Parcel No. 2XRI081

A part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 25, Township 17 North, Range 2 West of the Fourth Principal Meridian, Rock Island County, State of Illinois, described as follows:

Commencing at a cut "x" in pavement at the northwest corner of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 25;

thence South 87 degrees 44 minutes 38 seconds East, 756.60 feet (Bearings and grid distances are referenced to the Illinois State Plane Coordinate System West Zone Datum of 1983(97)) on the north line of said Northeast Quarter; thence South 1 degree 04 minutes 39 seconds West, 92.29 feet, to the Point of Beginning.

From the Point of Beginning thence South 86 degrees 23 minutes 23 seconds East, 489.78 feet; thence South 11 degrees 20 minutes 07 seconds East, 150.17 feet; thence South 84 degrees 32 minutes 25 seconds West, 55.57 feet; thence North 73 degrees 10 minutes 08 seconds West, 121.78 feet; thence North 62 degrees 06 minutes 09 seconds West, 237.82 feet; thence North 74 degrees 52 minutes 20 seconds West, 141.15 feet, to the Point of Beginning, containing 0.933 acre, more or less.

Section 95. Upon the payment of the sum of \$4,807.00 to the State of Illinois, and subject to the conditions set forth in Section 900 of this Act, the Secretary of the Department of Transportation is authorized to convey by quitclaim deed all right, title and interest in and to the following described land in Christian County, Illinois, to Bar-S, Inc.

Parcel No. 675X324

A part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 31, Township 14 North, Range 2 West of the Third Principal Meridian, Christian County, Illinois, described as follows:

Commencing at the northwest corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 31; thence along the west line of said Southeast Quarter, South 01 degree 10 minutes 11 seconds East, 689.95 feet to a point on the former northerly right of way line of the abandoned B & O Railroad; being the Point of Beginning; thence along said former railroad right of way, South 35 degrees 05 minutes 50 seconds East, 537.57 feet; thence South 88 degrees 56 minutes 29 seconds West, 60.11 feet to the former centerline of the railroad right of way; thence along said centerline, South 35 degrees 03 minutes 35 seconds East, 497.39 feet; thence South 88 degrees 57 minutes 20 seconds West, 59.99 feet to the former southerly right of way line of said railroad; thence along said former southerly right of way line, North 35 degrees 06 minutes 17 seconds West, 819.16 feet to the aforesaid west line of said Southeast Quarter, thence along said west line, North 01 degree 10 minutes 11 seconds West, 179.06 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 1.555 acres, more or less."

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 3658 was placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Rock, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

HOUSE BILL 3832

A bill for AN ACT concerning transportation.

Together with the attached amendment thereto (which amendment has been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 3832

Passed the Senate, as amended, May 18, 2009.

Jillayne Rock, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 3832 on page 2, by inserting below line 12 the following: "(c) This Section does not apply to the Uniform Intermodal Interchange and Facilities Access Agreement administered by the Intermodal Association of North America or other agreements providing for the interchange, use, or possession of intermodal chassis or other intermodal equipment."

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL 3832 was placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by

Ms. Rock, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House of Representatives in the passage of a bill of the following title to-wit:

## HOUSE BILL 3922

A bill for AN ACT concerning public health.

Together with the attached amendments thereto (which amendments have been printed by the Senate), in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the House, to-wit:

Senate Amendment No. 1 to HOUSE BILL NO. 3922

Senate Amendment No. 2 to HOUSE BILL NO. 3922

Passed the Senate, as amended, May 18, 2009.

Jillayne Rock, Secretary of the Senate

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 3922 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Department of Public Health Act is amended by changing Section 2 as follows:

(20 ILCS 2305/2) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 22)

Sec. 2. Powers.

(a) The State Department of Public Health has general supervision of the interests of the health and lives of the people of the State. It has supreme authority in matters of quarantine and isolation, and may declare and enforce quarantine and isolation when none exists, and may modify or relax quarantine and isolation when it has been established. The Department may adopt, promulgate, repeal and amend rules and regulations and make such sanitary investigations and inspections as it may from time to time deem necessary for the preservation and improvement of the public health, consistent with law regulating the following:

- (1) Transportation of the remains of deceased persons.
- (2) Sanitary practices relating to drinking water made accessible to the public for human consumption or for lavatory or culinary purposes.
- (3) Sanitary practices relating to rest room facilities made accessible to the public or to persons handling food served to the public.
- (4) Sanitary practices relating to disposal of human wastes in or from all buildings and places where people live, work or assemble.

The provisions of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act are hereby expressly adopted and shall apply to all administrative rules and procedures of the Department of Public Health under this Act, except that Section 5-35 of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act relating to procedures for rule-making does not apply to the adoption of any rule required by federal law in connection with which the Department is precluded by law from exercising any discretion.

All local boards of health, health authorities and officers, police officers, sheriffs and all other officers and employees of the state or any locality shall enforce the rules and regulations so adopted and orders issued by the Department pursuant to this Section.

The Department of Public Health shall conduct a public information campaign to inform Hispanic women of the high incidence of breast cancer and the importance of mammograms and where to obtain a mammogram. This requirement may be satisfied by translation into Spanish and distribution of the breast cancer summaries required by Section 2310-345 of the Department of Public Health Powers and Duties Law (20 ILCS 2310/2310-345). The information provided by the Department of Public Health shall include (i) a statement that mammography is the most accurate method for making an early detection of breast cancer, however, no diagnostic tool is 100% effective and (ii) instructions for performing breast self-examination and a statement that it is important to perform a breast self-examination monthly.

The Department of Public Health shall investigate the causes of dangerously contagious or infectious diseases and the health effects, health conditions, or health ailments related to a biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear event, especially when existing in epidemic form, and take means to restrict and suppress the same, and whenever such disease or event becomes, or threatens to become epidemic, in any locality and the local board of health or local authorities neglect or refuse to enforce efficient measures for its restriction or suppression or to act with sufficient promptness or efficiency, or whenever the local board of health or local authorities neglect or refuse to promptly enforce efficient measures for the restriction or suppression of dangerously contagious or infectious diseases or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear events, the Department of Public Health may enforce such measures as it deems necessary to protect the public health, and all necessary expenses so incurred shall be paid by the locality for which services are rendered.

(b) Subject to the provisions of subsection (c), the Department may order a person or group of persons to

be quarantined or isolated or may order a place to be closed and made off limits to the public to prevent the probable spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent, including non-compliant tuberculosis patients, until such time as the condition can be corrected or the danger to the public health eliminated or reduced in such a manner that no substantial danger to the public's health any longer exists. Orders for isolation of a person or quarantine of a place to prevent the probable spread of a sexually transmissible disease shall be governed by the provisions of Section 7 of the Illinois Sexually Transmissible Disease Control Act and not this Section.

(c) Except as provided in this Section, no person or a group of persons may be ordered to be quarantined or isolated and no place may be ordered to be closed and made off limits to the public except with the consent of the person or owner of the place or upon the prior order of a court of competent jurisdiction. The Department may, however, order a person or a group of persons to be quarantined or isolated or may order a place to be closed and made off limits to the public on an immediate basis without prior consent or court order if, in the reasonable judgment of the Department, immediate action is required to protect the public from a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent. In the event of an immediate order issued without prior consent or court order, the Department shall, as soon as practical, within 48 hours after issuing the order, obtain the consent of the person or owner or file a petition requesting a court order authorizing the isolation or quarantine or closure. When exigent circumstances exist that cause the court system to be unavailable or that make it impossible to obtain consent or file a petition within 48 hours after issuance of an immediate order, the Department must obtain consent or file a petition requesting a court order as soon as reasonably possible. To obtain a court order, the Department, by clear and convincing evidence, must prove that the public's health and welfare are significantly endangered by a person or group of persons that has, that is suspected of having, that has been exposed to, or that is reasonably believed to have been exposed to a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent, including non-compliant tuberculosis patients or by a place where there is a significant amount of activity likely to spread a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent. The Department must also prove that all other reasonable means of correcting the problem have been exhausted and no less restrictive alternative exists. For purposes of this subsection, in determining whether no less restrictive alternative exists, the court shall consider evidence showing that, under the circumstances presented by the case in which an order is sought, quarantine or isolation is the measure provided for in a rule of the Department or in guidelines issued by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention or the World Health Organization. Persons who are or are about to be ordered to be isolated or quarantined and owners of places that are or are about to be closed and made off limits to the public shall have the right to counsel. If a person or owner is indigent, the court shall appoint counsel for that person or owner. Persons who are ordered to be isolated or quarantined or who are owners of places that are ordered to be closed and made off limits to the public, shall be given a written notice of such order. The written notice shall additionally include the following: (1) notice of the right to counsel; (2) notice that if the person or owner is indigent, the court will appoint counsel for that person or owner; (3) notice of the reason for the order for isolation, quarantine, or closure; (4) notice of whether the order is an immediate order, and if so, the time frame for the Department to seek consent or to file a petition requesting a court order as set out in this subsection; and (5) notice of the anticipated duration of the isolation, quarantine, or closure.

(d) The Department may order physical examinations and tests and collect laboratory specimens as necessary for the diagnosis or treatment of individuals in order to prevent the probable spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent. Physical examinations, tests, or collection of laboratory specimens must not be such as are reasonably likely to lead to serious harm to the affected individual. To prevent the spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent, the Department may, pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section, isolate or quarantine any person whose refusal of physical examination or testing or collection of laboratory specimens results in uncertainty regarding whether he or she has been exposed to or is infected with a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent or otherwise poses a danger to the public's health. An individual may refuse to consent to a physical examination, test, or collection of laboratory specimens. An individual shall be given a written notice that shall include notice of the following: (i) that the individual may refuse to consent to physical examination, test, or collection of laboratory specimens; (ii) that if the individual consents to physical examination, tests, or collection of laboratory specimens, the results of that examination, test, or collection of laboratory specimens may subject the individual to isolation or quarantine pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section; (iii) that if the individual refuses to

consent to physical examination, tests, or collection of laboratory specimens and that refusal results in uncertainty regarding whether he or she has been exposed to or is infected with a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or otherwise poses a danger to the public's health, the individual may be subject to isolation or quarantine pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section; and (iv) that if the individual refuses to consent to physical examinations, tests, or collection of laboratory specimens and becomes subject to isolation and quarantine as provided in this subsection (d), he or she shall have the right to counsel pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section. To the extent feasible without endangering the public's health, the Department shall respect and accommodate the religious beliefs of individuals in implementing this subsection.

(e) The Department may order the administration of vaccines, medications, or other treatments to persons as necessary in order to prevent the probable spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent. A vaccine, medication, or other treatment to be administered must not be such as is reasonably likely to lead to serious harm to the affected individual. To prevent the spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent, the Department may, pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section, isolate or quarantine persons who are unable or unwilling to receive vaccines, medications, or other treatments pursuant to this Section. An individual may refuse to receive vaccines, medications, or other treatments. An individual shall be given a written notice that shall include notice of the following: (i) that the individual may refuse to consent to vaccines, medications, or other treatments; (ii) that if the individual refuses to receive vaccines, medications, or other treatments, the individual may be subject to isolation or quarantine pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section; and (iii) that if the individual refuses to receive vaccines, medications, or other treatments and becomes subject to isolation or quarantine as provided in this subsection (e), he or she shall have the right to counsel pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section. To the extent feasible without endangering the public's health, the Department shall respect and accommodate the religious beliefs of individuals in implementing this subsection.

(f) The Department may order observation and monitoring of persons to prevent the probable spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent. To prevent the spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent, the Department may, pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section, isolate or quarantine persons whose refusal to undergo observation and monitoring results in uncertainty regarding whether he or she has been exposed to or is infected with a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent or otherwise poses a danger to the public's health. An individual may refuse to undergo observation and monitoring. An individual shall be given written notice that shall include notice of the following: (i) that the individual may refuse to undergo observation and monitoring; (ii) that if the individual consents to observation and monitoring, the results of that observation and monitoring may subject the individual to isolation or quarantine pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section; (iii) that if the individual refuses to undergo observation and monitoring and that refusal results in uncertainty regarding whether he or she has been exposed to or is infected with a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent or otherwise poses a danger to the public's health, the individual may be subject to isolation or quarantine pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section; and (iv) that if the individual refuses to undergo observation and monitoring and becomes subject to isolation or quarantine as provided in this subsection (f), he or she shall have the right to counsel pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section.

(g) To prevent the spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent among humans, the Department may examine, test, disinfect, seize, or destroy animals or other related property believed to be sources of infection. An owner of such animal or other related property shall be given written notice regarding such examination, testing, disinfection, seizure, or destruction. When the Department determines that any animal or related property is infected with or has been exposed to a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent, it may agree with the owner upon the value of the animal or of any related property that it may be found necessary to destroy, and in case such an agreement cannot be made, the animals or related property shall be appraised by 3 competent and disinterested appraisers, one to be selected by the Department, one by the claimant, and one by the 2 appraisers thus selected. The appraisers shall subscribe to an oath made in writing to fairly value the animals or related property in accordance with the requirements of this Act. The oath, together with the valuation fixed by the appraisers, shall be filed with the Department and preserved by it. Upon the appraisal being made, the owner or the Department shall

immediately destroy the animals by "humane euthanasia" as that term is defined in Section 2.09 of the Humane Care for Animals Act. Dogs and cats, however, shall be euthanized pursuant to the provisions of the Humane Euthanasia in Animal Shelters Act. The owner or the Department shall additionally, dispose of the carcasses, and disinfect, change, or destroy the premises occupied by the animals, in accordance with rules prescribed by the Department governing such destruction and disinfection. Upon his or her failure so to do or to cooperate with the Department, the Department shall cause the animals or related property to be destroyed and disposed of in the same manner, and thereupon the owner shall forfeit all right to receive any compensation for the destruction of the animals or related property. All final administrative decisions of the Department hereunder shall be subject to judicial review pursuant to the provisions of the Administrative Review Law, and all amendments and modifications thereof, and the rules adopted pursuant thereto. The term "administrative decision" is defined as in Section 3-101 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

(h) To prevent the spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or biological, chemical, radiological, or nuclear agent, the Department, local boards of health, and local public health authorities shall have emergency access to medical or health information or records or data upon the condition that the Department, local boards of health, and local public health authorities shall protect the privacy and confidentiality of any medical or health information or records or data obtained pursuant to this Section in accordance with federal and State law. Additionally, any such medical or health information or records or data shall be exempt from inspection and copying under the Freedom of Information Act. Other than a hearing for the purpose of this Act, any information, records, reports, statements, notes, memoranda, or other data in the possession of the Department, local boards of health, or local public health authorities shall not be admissible as evidence, nor discoverable in any action of any kind in any court or before any tribunal, board, agency, or person. The access to or disclosure of any of this information or data by the Department, a local board of health, or a local public authority shall not waive or have any effect upon its non-discoverability or non-admissibility. Any person, facility, institution, or agency that provides emergency access to health information and data under this subsection shall have immunity from any civil or criminal liability, or any other type of liability that might otherwise result by reason of these actions except in the event of willful and wanton misconduct. The privileged quality of communication between any professional person or any facility shall not constitute grounds for failure to provide emergency access. Nothing in this subsection shall prohibit the sharing of information as authorized in Section 2.1 of this Act. The disclosure of any of this information, records, reports, statements, notes, memoranda, or other data obtained in any activity under this Act, except that necessary for the purposes of this Act, is unlawful, and any person convicted of violating this provision is guilty of a Class A misdemeanor.

(i) (A) The Department, in order to prevent and control disease, injury, or disability among citizens of the State of Illinois, may develop and implement, in consultation with local public health authorities, a Statewide system for syndromic data collection through the access to interoperable networks, information exchanges, and databases. The Department may also develop a system for the reporting of comprehensive, integrated data to identify and address unusual occurrences of disease symptoms and other medical complexes affecting the public's health.

(B) The Department may enter into contracts or agreements with individuals, corporations, hospitals, universities, not-for-profit corporations, governmental entities, or other organizations, whereby those individuals or entities agree to provide assistance in the compilation of the syndromic data collection and reporting system.

(C) The Department shall not release any syndromic data or information obtained pursuant to this subsection to any individuals or entities for purposes other than the protection of the public health. All access to data by the Department, reports made to the Department, the identity of or facts that would tend to lead to the identity of the individual who is the subject of the report, and the identity of or facts that would tend to lead to the identity of the author of the report shall be strictly confidential, are not subject to inspection or dissemination, and shall be used only for public health purposes by the Department, local public health authorities, or the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Entities or individuals submitting reports or providing access to the Department shall not be held liable for the release of information or confidential data to the Department in accordance with this subsection.

(D) Nothing in this subsection prohibits the sharing of information as authorized in Section 2.1 of this Act.

(j) This Section shall be considered supplemental to the existing authority and powers of the Department and shall not be construed to restrain or restrict the Department in protecting the public health under any other provisions of the law.

(k) Any person who knowingly or maliciously disseminates any false information or report concerning

the existence of any dangerously contagious or infectious disease in connection with the Department's power of quarantine, isolation and closure or refuses to comply with a quarantine, isolation or closure order is guilty of a Class A misdemeanor.

(l) The Department of Public Health may establish and maintain a chemical and bacteriologic laboratory for the examination of water and wastes, and for the diagnosis of diphtheria, typhoid fever, tuberculosis, malarial fever and such other diseases as it deems necessary for the protection of the public health.

As used in this Act, "locality" means any governmental agency which exercises power pertaining to public health in an area less than the State.

The terms "sanitary investigations and inspections" and "sanitary practices" as used in this Act shall not include or apply to "Public Water Supplies" or "Sewage Works" as defined in the Environmental Protection Act. The Department may adopt rules that are reasonable and necessary to implement and effectuate this amendatory Act of the 93rd General Assembly.

(m) The public health measures set forth in subsections (a) through (h) of this Section may be used by the Department to respond to chemical, radiological, or nuclear agents or events. The individual provisions of subsections (a) through (h) of this Section apply to any order issued by the Department under this Section. The provisions of subsection (k) apply to chemical, radiological, or nuclear agents or events. Prior to the Department issuing an order for public health measures set forth in this Act for chemical, radiological, or nuclear agents or events as authorized in subsection (m), the Department and the Illinois Emergency Management Agency shall consult in accordance with the Illinois emergency response framework. When responding to chemical, radiological, or nuclear agents or events, the Department shall determine the health related risks and appropriate public health response measures, and provide recommendations for response to the Illinois Emergency Management Agency. Nothing in this Section shall supersede the current National Incident Management System and the Illinois Emergency Operation Plan or response plans and procedures established pursuant to IEMA statutes.

(Source: P.A. 93-829, eff. 7-28-04.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend House Bill 3922, AS AMENDED, by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Department of Public Health Act is amended by changing Section 2 as follows:

(20 ILCS 2305/2) (from Ch. 111 1/2, par. 22)

Sec. 2. Powers.

(a) The State Department of Public Health has general supervision of the interests of the health and lives of the people of the State. It has supreme authority in matters of quarantine and isolation, and may declare and enforce quarantine and isolation when none exists, and may modify or relax quarantine and isolation when it has been established. The Department may adopt, promulgate, repeal and amend rules and regulations and make such sanitary investigations and inspections as it may from time to time deem necessary for the preservation and improvement of the public health, consistent with law regulating the following:

- (1) Transportation of the remains of deceased persons.
- (2) Sanitary practices relating to drinking water made accessible to the public for human consumption or for lavatory or culinary purposes.
- (3) Sanitary practices relating to rest room facilities made accessible to the public or to persons handling food served to the public.
- (4) Sanitary practices relating to disposal of human wastes in or from all buildings and places where people live, work or assemble.

The provisions of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act are hereby expressly adopted and shall apply to all administrative rules and procedures of the Department of Public Health under this Act, except that Section 5-35 of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act relating to procedures for rule-making does not apply to the adoption of any rule required by federal law in connection with which the Department is precluded by law from exercising any discretion.

All local boards of health, health authorities and officers, police officers, sheriffs and all other officers and employees of the state or any locality shall enforce the rules and regulations so adopted and orders issued by the Department pursuant to this Section.

The Department of Public Health shall conduct a public information campaign to inform Hispanic women of the high incidence of breast cancer and the importance of mammograms and where to obtain a mammogram. This requirement may be satisfied by translation into Spanish and distribution of the breast

cancer summaries required by Section 2310-345 of the Department of Public Health Powers and Duties Law (20 ILCS 2310/2310-345). The information provided by the Department of Public Health shall include (i) a statement that mammography is the most accurate method for making an early detection of breast cancer, however, no diagnostic tool is 100% effective and (ii) instructions for performing breast self-examination and a statement that it is important to perform a breast self-examination monthly.

The Department of Public Health shall investigate the causes of dangerously contagious or infectious diseases, especially when existing in epidemic form, and take means to restrict and suppress the same, and whenever such disease becomes, or threatens to become epidemic, in any locality and the local board of health or local authorities neglect or refuse to enforce efficient measures for its restriction or suppression or to act with sufficient promptness or efficiency, or whenever the local board of health or local authorities neglect or refuse to promptly enforce efficient measures for the restriction or suppression of dangerously contagious or infectious diseases, the Department of Public Health may enforce such measures as it deems necessary to protect the public health, and all necessary expenses so incurred shall be paid by the locality for which services are rendered.

(b) Subject to the provisions of subsection (c), the Department may order a person or group of persons to be quarantined or isolated or may order a place to be closed and made off limits to the public to prevent the probable spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease, including non-compliant tuberculosis patients, until such time as the condition can be corrected or the danger to the public health eliminated or reduced in such a manner that no substantial danger to the public's health any longer exists. Orders for isolation of a person or quarantine of a place to prevent the probable spread of a sexually transmissible disease shall be governed by the provisions of Section 7 of the Illinois Sexually Transmissible Disease Control Act and not this Section.

(c) Except as provided in this Section, no person or a group of persons may be ordered to be quarantined or isolated and no place may be ordered to be closed and made off limits to the public except with the consent of the person or owner of the place or upon the prior order of a court of competent jurisdiction. The Department may, however, order a person or a group of persons to be quarantined or isolated or may order a place to be closed and made off limits to the public on an immediate basis without prior consent or court order if, in the reasonable judgment of the Department, immediate action is required to protect the public from a dangerously contagious or infectious disease. In the event of an immediate order issued without prior consent or court order, the Department shall, as soon as practical, within 48 hours after issuing the order, obtain the consent of the person or owner or file a petition requesting a court order authorizing the isolation or quarantine or closure. When exigent circumstances exist that cause the court system to be unavailable or that make it impossible to obtain consent or file a petition within 48 hours after issuance of an immediate order, the Department must obtain consent or file a petition requesting a court order as soon as reasonably possible. To obtain a court order, the Department, by clear and convincing evidence, must prove that the public's health and welfare are significantly endangered by a person or group of persons that has, that is suspected of having, that has been exposed to, or that is reasonably believed to have been exposed to a dangerously contagious or infectious disease including non-compliant tuberculosis patients or by a place where there is a significant amount of activity likely to spread a dangerously contagious or infectious disease. The Department must also prove that all other reasonable means of correcting the problem have been exhausted and no less restrictive alternative exists. For purposes of this subsection, in determining whether no less restrictive alternative exists, the court shall consider evidence showing that, under the circumstances presented by the case in which an order is sought, quarantine or isolation is the measure provided for in a rule of the Department or in guidelines issued by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention or the World Health Organization. Persons who are or are about to be ordered to be isolated or quarantined and owners of places that are or are about to be closed and made off limits to the public shall have the right to counsel. If a person or owner is indigent, the court shall appoint counsel for that person or owner. Persons who are ordered to be isolated or quarantined or who are owners of places that are ordered to be closed and made off limits to the public, shall be given a written notice of such order. The written notice shall additionally include the following: (1) notice of the right to counsel; (2) notice that if the person or owner is indigent, the court will appoint counsel for that person or owner; (3) notice of the reason for the order for isolation, quarantine, or closure; (4) notice of whether the order is an immediate order, and if so, the time frame for the Department to seek consent or to file a petition requesting a court order as set out in this subsection; and (5) notice of the anticipated duration of the isolation, quarantine, or closure.

(d) The Department may order physical examinations and tests and collect laboratory specimens as necessary for the diagnosis or treatment of individuals in order to prevent the probable spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease. Physical examinations, tests, or collection of laboratory



specimens must not be such as are reasonably likely to lead to serious harm to the affected individual. To prevent the spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease, the Department may, pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section, isolate or quarantine any person whose refusal of physical examination or testing or collection of laboratory specimens results in uncertainty regarding whether he or she has been exposed to or is infected with a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or otherwise poses a danger to the public's health. An individual may refuse to consent to a physical examination, test, or collection of laboratory specimens. An individual shall be given a written notice that shall include notice of the following: (i) that the individual may refuse to consent to physical examination, test, or collection of laboratory specimens; (ii) that if the individual consents to physical examination, tests, or collection of laboratory specimens, the results of that examination, test, or collection of laboratory specimens may subject the individual to isolation or quarantine pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section; (iii) that if the individual refuses to consent to physical examination, tests, or collection of laboratory specimens and that refusal results in uncertainty regarding whether he or she has been exposed to or is infected with a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or otherwise poses a danger to the public's health, the individual may be subject to isolation or quarantine pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section; and (iv) that if the individual refuses to consent to physical examinations, tests, or collection of laboratory specimens and becomes subject to isolation and quarantine as provided in this subsection (d), he or she shall have the right to counsel pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section. To the extent feasible without endangering the public's health, the Department shall respect and accommodate the religious beliefs of individuals in implementing this subsection.

(e) The Department may order the administration of vaccines, medications, or other treatments to persons as necessary in order to prevent the probable spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease. A vaccine, medication, or other treatment to be administered must not be such as is reasonably likely to lead to serious harm to the affected individual. To prevent the spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease, the Department may, pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section, isolate or quarantine persons who are unable or unwilling to receive vaccines, medications, or other treatments pursuant to this Section. An individual may refuse to receive vaccines, medications, or other treatments. An individual shall be given a written notice that shall include notice of the following: (i) that the individual may refuse to consent to vaccines, medications, or other treatments; (ii) that if the individual refuses to receive vaccines, medications, or other treatments, the individual may be subject to isolation or quarantine pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section; and (iii) that if the individual refuses to receive vaccines, medications, or other treatments and becomes subject to isolation or quarantine as provided in this subsection (e), he or she shall have the right to counsel pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section. To the extent feasible without endangering the public's health, the Department shall respect and accommodate the religious beliefs of individuals in implementing this subsection.

(f) The Department may order observation and monitoring of persons to prevent the probable spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease. To prevent the spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease, the Department may, pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section, isolate or quarantine persons whose refusal to undergo observation and monitoring results in uncertainty regarding whether he or she has been exposed to or is infected with a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or otherwise poses a danger to the public's health. An individual may refuse to undergo observation and monitoring. An individual shall be given written notice that shall include notice of the following: (i) that the individual may refuse to undergo observation and monitoring; (ii) that if the individual consents to observation and monitoring, the results of that observation and monitoring may subject the individual to isolation or quarantine pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section; (iii) that if the individual refuses to undergo observation and monitoring and that refusal results in uncertainty regarding whether he or she has been exposed to or is infected with a dangerously contagious or infectious disease or otherwise poses a danger to the public's health, the individual may be subject to isolation or quarantine pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section; and (iv) that if the individual refuses to undergo observation and monitoring and becomes subject to isolation or quarantine as provided in this subsection (f), he or she shall have the right to counsel pursuant to the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section.

(g) To prevent the spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease among humans, the Department may examine, test, disinfect, seize, or destroy animals or other related property believed to be sources of infection. An owner of such animal or other related property shall be given written notice regarding such examination, testing, disinfection, seizure, or destruction. When the Department determines that any animal or related property is infected with or has been exposed to a dangerously contagious or

infectious disease, it may agree with the owner upon the value of the animal or of any related property that it may be found necessary to destroy, and in case such an agreement cannot be made, the animals or related property shall be appraised by 3 competent and disinterested appraisers, one to be selected by the Department, one by the claimant, and one by the 2 appraisers thus selected. The appraisers shall subscribe to an oath made in writing to fairly value the animals or related property in accordance with the requirements of this Act. The oath, together with the valuation fixed by the appraisers, shall be filed with the Department and preserved by it. Upon the appraisal being made, the owner or the Department shall immediately destroy the animals by "humane euthanasia" as that term is defined in Section 2.09 of the Humane Care for Animals Act. Dogs and cats, however, shall be euthanized pursuant to the provisions of the Humane Euthanasia in Animal Shelters Act. The owner or the Department shall additionally, dispose of the carcasses, and disinfect, change, or destroy the premises occupied by the animals, in accordance with rules prescribed by the Department governing such destruction and disinfection. Upon his or her failure so to do or to cooperate with the Department, the Department shall cause the animals or related property to be destroyed and disposed of in the same manner, and thereupon the owner shall forfeit all right to receive any compensation for the destruction of the animals or related property. All final administrative decisions of the Department hereunder shall be subject to judicial review pursuant to the provisions of the Administrative Review Law, and all amendments and modifications thereof, and the rules adopted pursuant thereto. The term "administrative decision" is defined as in Section 3-101 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

(h) To prevent the spread of a dangerously contagious or infectious disease, the Department, local boards of health, and local public health authorities shall have emergency access to medical or health information or records or data upon the condition that the Department, local boards of health, and local public health authorities shall protect the privacy and confidentiality of any medical or health information or records or data obtained pursuant to this Section in accordance with federal and State law. Additionally, any such medical or health information or records or data shall be exempt from inspection and copying under the Freedom of Information Act. Other than a hearing for the purpose of this Act, any information, records, reports, statements, notes, memoranda, or other data in the possession of the Department, local boards of health, or local public health authorities shall not be admissible as evidence, nor discoverable in any action of any kind in any court or before any tribunal, board, agency, or person. The access to or disclosure of any of this information or data by the Department, a local board of health, or a local public authority shall not waive or have any effect upon its non-discoverability or non-admissibility. Any person, facility, institution, or agency that provides emergency access to health information and data under this subsection shall have immunity from any civil or criminal liability, or any other type of liability that might otherwise result by reason of these actions except in the event of willful and wanton misconduct. The privileged quality of communication between any professional person or any facility shall not constitute grounds for failure to provide emergency access. Nothing in this subsection shall prohibit the sharing of information as authorized in Section 2.1 of this Act. The disclosure of any of this information, records, reports, statements, notes, memoranda, or other data obtained in any activity under this Act, except that necessary for the purposes of this Act, is unlawful, and any person convicted of violating this provision is guilty of a Class A misdemeanor.

(i) (A) The Department, in order to prevent and control disease, injury, or disability among citizens of the State of Illinois, may develop and implement, in consultation with local public health authorities, a Statewide system for syndromic data collection through the access to interoperable networks, information exchanges, and databases. The Department may also develop a system for the reporting of comprehensive, integrated data to identify and address unusual occurrences of disease symptoms and other medical complexes affecting the public's health.

(B) The Department may enter into contracts or agreements with individuals, corporations, hospitals, universities, not-for-profit corporations, governmental entities, or other organizations, whereby those individuals or entities agree to provide assistance in the compilation of the syndromic data collection and reporting system.

(C) The Department shall not release any syndromic data or information obtained pursuant to this subsection to any individuals or entities for purposes other than the protection of the public health. All access to data by the Department, reports made to the Department, the identity of or facts that would tend to lead to the identity of the individual who is the subject of the report, and the identity of or facts that would tend to lead to the identity of the author of the report shall be strictly confidential, are not subject to inspection or dissemination, and shall be used only for public health purposes by the Department, local public health authorities, or the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Entities or individuals submitting reports or providing access to the Department shall not be held liable for the

release of information or confidential data to the Department in accordance with this subsection.

(D) Nothing in this subsection prohibits the sharing of information as authorized in Section 2.1 of this Act.

(j) This Section shall be considered supplemental to the existing authority and powers of the Department and shall not be construed to restrain or restrict the Department in protecting the public health under any other provisions of the law.

(k) Any person who knowingly or maliciously disseminates any false information or report concerning the existence of any dangerously contagious or infectious disease in connection with the Department's power of quarantine, isolation and closure or refuses to comply with a quarantine, isolation or closure order is guilty of a Class A misdemeanor.

(l) The Department of Public Health may establish and maintain a chemical and bacteriologic laboratory for the examination of water and wastes, and for the diagnosis of diphtheria, typhoid fever, tuberculosis, malarial fever and such other diseases as it deems necessary for the protection of the public health.

As used in this Act, "locality" means any governmental agency which exercises power pertaining to public health in an area less than the State.

The terms "sanitary investigations and inspections" and "sanitary practices" as used in this Act shall not include or apply to "Public Water Supplies" or "Sewage Works" as defined in the Environmental Protection Act. The Department may adopt rules that are reasonable and necessary to implement and effectuate this amendatory Act of the 93rd General Assembly.

(m) The public health measures set forth in subsections (a) through (h) of this Section may be used by the Department to respond to chemical, radiological, or nuclear agents or events. The individual provisions of subsections (a) through (h) of this Section apply to any order issued by the Department under this Section. The provisions of subsection (k) apply to chemical, radiological, or nuclear agents or events. Prior to the Department issuing an order for public health measures set forth in this Act for chemical, radiological, or nuclear agents or events as authorized in subsection (m), the Department and the Illinois Emergency Management Agency shall consult in accordance with the Illinois emergency response framework. When responding to chemical, radiological, or nuclear agents or events, the Department shall determine the health related risks and appropriate public health response measures and provide recommendations for response to the Illinois Emergency Management Agency. Nothing in this Section shall supersede the current National Incident Management System and the Illinois Emergency Operation Plan or response plans and procedures established pursuant to IEMA statutes.

(Source: P.A. 93-829, eff. 7-28-04.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

The foregoing message from the Senate reporting Senate Amendments numbered 1 and 2 to HOUSE BILL 3922 was placed on the Calendar on the order of Concurrence.

A message from the Senate by  
Ms. Rock, Secretary:

Mr. Speaker -- I am directed to inform the House of Representatives that the Senate has concurred with the House in the adoption of their amendment to a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 1417

A bill for AN ACT concerning business.

House Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL NO. 1417.

Action taken by the Senate, May 18, 2009.

Jillayne Rock, Secretary of the Senate

#### CHANGE OF SPONSORSHIP

With the consent of the affected members, Representative Madigan was removed as principal sponsor, and Representative Currie became the new principal sponsor of SENATE BILL 367.

With the consent of the affected members, Representative Reitz was removed as principal sponsor, and Representative Brosnahan became the new principal sponsor of SENATE BILL 1421.

With the consent of the affected members, Representative Zalewski was removed as principal sponsor, and Representative Madigan became the new principal sponsor of SENATE BILL 1333.

With the consent of the affected members, Representative Froehlich was removed as principal sponsor, and Representative Madigan became the new principal sponsor of SENATE BILL 2090.

With the consent of the affected members, Representative Riley was removed as principal sponsor, and Representative Madigan became the new principal sponsor of SENATE BILL 51.

With the consent of the affected members, Representative Nekritz was removed as principal sponsor, and Representative Madigan became the new principal sponsor of SENATE BILL 54.

### **HOUSE RESOLUTION**

The following resolution was offered and placed in the Committee on Rules.

#### **HOUSE RESOLUTION 411**

Offered by Representative Careen Gordon:

WHEREAS, Erik Blomstedt will retire as Director of the Three Rivers Library District after 31 years of dedicated service to the citizens of the Villages of Channahon and Minooka; and

WHEREAS, The Villages of Channahon and Minooka will honor Erik Blomstedt with a celebration on June 20, 2009; and

WHEREAS, Erik Blomstedt has served as a model of hard work, integrity, and dedication for the people of Channahon and Minooka and for the people of the State of Illinois; therefore, be it

RESOLVED, BY THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES OF THE NINETY-SIXTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, that we designate the date of June 20, 2009 as Erik Blomstedt Day in the State of Illinois; and be it further

RESOLVED, That a suitable copy of this resolution be presented to Erik Blomstedt as a symbol of our esteem and respect.

### **AGREED RESOLUTIONS**

The following resolutions were offered and placed on the Calendar on the order of Agreed Resolutions.

#### **HOUSE RESOLUTION 410**

Offered by Representative Miller:  
Congratulates Ventura Diaz on the occasion of her 100th birthday.

#### **HOUSE RESOLUTION 412**

Offered by Representative Cross:  
Congratulates Channahon Park District Commissioner George A. McCoy on his retirement from the Channahon Park District on May 27, 2009.

### **SENATE BILLS ON THIRD READING**

The following bills and any amendments adopted thereto were reproduced. Any amendments still pending upon the passage or defeat of a bill on Third Reading are automatically tabled pursuant to Rule 40(a).

On motion of Representative May, SENATE BILL 1769 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 2)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Harris, SENATE BILL 1770 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 104, Yeas; 1, Nay; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 3)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Sacia, SENATE BILL 1784 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 77, Yeas; 28, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 4)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Jerry Mitchell, SENATE BILL 1796 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 103, Yeas; 0, Nays; 2, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 5)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Walker, SENATE BILL 1814 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 6)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Smith, SENATE BILL 1828 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 7)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Wait, SENATE BILL 1817 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:  
105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 8)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Black, SENATE BILL 1830 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:  
105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 1, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 9)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Black, SENATE BILL 1832 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:  
105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 10)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Pritchard, SENATE BILL 1841 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:  
105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 11)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Durkin, SENATE BILL 1843 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:  
100, Yeas; 5, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 12)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Fortner, SENATE BILL 1882 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:  
105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 13)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Fortner, SENATE BILL 1883 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:  
105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 14)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Holbrook, SENATE BILL 1923 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 87, Yeas; 18, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 15)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Mendoza, SENATE BILL 1818 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 97, Yeas; 7, Nays; 1, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 16)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative McAsey, SENATE BILL 1926 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 94, Yeas; 11, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 17)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Biggins, SENATE BILL 1948 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 104, Yeas; 0, Nays; 1, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 18)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Eddy, SENATE BILL 1956 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 19)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Eddy, SENATE BILL 1957 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 102, Yeas; 0, Nays; 3, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 20)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Flider, SENATE BILL 1958 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 21)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Connelly, SENATE BILL 1970 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 83, Yeas; 22, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 22)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Myers, SENATE BILL 1972 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 76, Yeas; 28, Nays; 1, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 23)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative McCarthy, SENATE BILL 1974 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 24)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Pritchard, SENATE BILL 1977 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 25)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Rose, SENATE BILL 2009 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.



(ROLL CALL 26)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Durkin, SENATE BILL 2010 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 27)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Pritchard, SENATE BILL 2014 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 28)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Holbrook, SENATE BILL 2034 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 29)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative McAuliffe, SENATE BILL 2045 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 30)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Walker, SENATE BILL 2046 was taken up and read by title a third time. And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote: 105, Yeas; 0, Nays; 0, Answering Present.

(ROLL CALL 31)

This bill, as amended, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate and ask their concurrence in the House amendment/s adopted.

On motion of Representative Chapa LaVia, SENATE BILL 2051 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

104, Yeas; 1, Nay; 0, Answering Present.  
(ROLL CALL 32)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

On motion of Representative Mautino, SENATE BILL 1897 was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:  
102, Yeas; 3, Nays; 0, Answering Present.  
(ROLL CALL 33)

This bill, having received the votes of a constitutional majority of the Members elected, was declared passed.

Ordered that the Clerk inform the Senate.

### SENATE BILLS ON SECOND READING

SENATE BILL 63. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Executive, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 63 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Disabilities Services Act of 2003 is amended by adding the heading of Article IV and Section 60 as follows:

(20 ILCS 2407/Art. IV heading new)

#### ARTICLE IV. RAPID REINTEGRATION PILOT PROGRAM

(20 ILCS 2407/60 new)

##### Sec. 60. Rapid Reintegration Pilot Program.

(a) The Department of Human Services shall operate a Rapid Reintegration Program. The purpose of the pilot program is to demonstrate that, with appropriate support and services, individuals with physical disabilities and individuals with mental illness who need a short-term placement of 6 months or less in a nursing facility can successfully return to the community without experiencing unnecessary institutionalization. The initial pilot program sites shall be those initiated or operated by the Department in Fiscal Year 2009. The pilot program may be expanded to other sites as funding becomes available for that purpose.

(b) The Department of Human Services shall secure the cooperation of hospitals in the geographic areas served by the pilot program so that hospitals will coordinate with the Service Coordination Agencies and the Home Services Program to verify whether the individual is expected to have a short-term stay of 6 months or less in a nursing facility upon discharge from the hospital.

(c) The Service Coordination Agencies and the Home Services Program in the pilot areas shall make an initial assessment and a post-admission assessment to ascertain whether an individual needs a nursing facility level of care and whether the individual is expected to be in the nursing facility for a short-term stay of 6 months or less.

(d) The Service Coordination Agencies and the Home Services Program shall make necessary and appropriate efforts to reintegrate any individual who is found to need nursing facility level of care and is expected to be in a nursing home for a short-term stay of 6 months or less, including collaboration with local service providers, such as centers for independent living and community mental health agencies.

(e) If an individual who, through the pilot program, has been identified as needing a short-term stay of 6 months or less is admitted to a nursing facility, the individual shall be assessed for eligibility for an enhanced Community Home Maintenance Allowance to allow the individual to retain income for a period of up to 6 months in order to retain his or her home.

(f) The pilot program shall operate for not less than 3 years after the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly. The Department of Human Services shall assess the effectiveness of the pilot program in preventing the unnecessary institutionalization of individuals with physical disabilities or mental illness and allowing them to successfully return to their pre-admission living arrangements.

(g) The pilot program established under this Article shall not apply to facilities that qualify under federal law as institutions for mental disease.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILL 104.

SENATE BILL 149. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Business & Occupational Licenses, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 149 on page 12, by replacing lines 19 through 21 with the following:

"Nine Board members shall constitute a quorum. A quorum is required for all Board decisions."

Representative Pihos offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Bill 149 on page 15, line 17, by deleting "or design"; and on page 26, line 3, immediately after "owner-supplied", by inserting the following: "sealed technical submissions from a licensed architect or engineer"; and on page 26, by deleting lines 4 through 6; and on page 26, line 7, by deleting "Marshal".

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILL 188.

SENATE BILL 246. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Executive, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 246 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Public Water District Act is amended by changing Section 4 as follows:

(70 ILCS 3705/4) (from Ch. 111 2/3, par. 191)

Sec. 4. A board of trustees consisting of 7 members for the government, control and management of the affairs of the business of each such water district organized under this Act shall be created in the following manner:

(1) If the district lies wholly within a single township but does not also lie wholly within a municipality, the board of trustees of that township shall appoint the trustees for the district but no voting member of the township board is eligible for such appointment;

(2) If the district is wholly contained within a municipality, the governing body of the municipality shall appoint the trustees for the district;

(3) If the district is wholly contained within a single county, the trustees for the district shall be appointed by the presiding officer of the county board with the advice and consent of the county board;

(4) If the district is located in more than one county, the number of trustees who are residents of a county

shall be in proportion, as nearly as practicable, to the number of residents of the district who reside in that county in relation to the total population of the district. Trustees shall be appointed by the county board of their respective counties, or in the case of a home rule county as defined by Article VII, Section 6 of the Constitution of 1970, by the chief executive officer of that county with the advice and consent of the county board.

Upon the expiration of the term of a trustee who is in office on the effective date of this Amendatory Act of 1975, the successor shall be a resident of whichever county is entitled to such representation in order to bring about the proportional representation required herein, and he shall be appointed by the appointing authority of that county.

Thereafter, each trustee shall be succeeded by a resident of the same county who shall be appointed by the same appointing authority; however, the provisions of the preceding paragraph shall apply to the appointment of the successor to each trustee who is in office at the time of the publication of each decennial Federal census of population.

Within 60 days after the adoption of this Act as provided in Section 2 hereof, the appropriate appointing authority shall appoint 7 trustees who shall hold that office respectively one for one, one for 2, one for 3, 2 for 4 and 2 for 5 years from the first Monday of May next after their appointment as designated by the appointing authority at the time of appointment and until their successors are appointed and have qualified. Thereafter on or after the first Monday in May of each year the appointing authority shall appoint successors whose term shall be for 5 years commencing the first Monday in May of the year they are respectively appointed. If the circuit court finds that the size, number of members, and scale of operations of the water district justifies a Board of Trustees of less than 7 members he shall rule that such board shall have 3 or 5 members. Initial appointments to a 3 member board shall be as follows: one for one, one for 2, and one for 3 years. Initial appointments to a 5 member board shall be as follows: one for one, one for 2, one for 3, one for 4 and one for 5 years. In each such case the term of office and method of appointing successors shall be as provided in this Section for 7 member boards. The appointing authority shall require each of such trustees to enter a bond with security to be approved by the appointing authority in such sum as such appointing authority may determine. A majority of the Board of Trustees shall constitute a quorum, but a smaller number may adjourn from day to day. No trustee or employee of such district shall be directly or indirectly interested in any contract, work or business of the district or the sale of any article, the expense, price or consideration of which is paid by such district, nor in the purchase of any real estate or property for or belonging to the district.

Whenever a vacancy in such board of trustees shall occur either from death, resignation, refusal to qualify or for any other reason the appointing authority shall have power to fill such vacancy by appointment. Such persons so appointed or qualified for office in the manner hereinbefore stated shall thereupon assume the duties of the office for the unexpired term for which such person was appointed.

For terms commencing before the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly, the ~~The~~ trustees appointed under this Act shall be paid a sum of not to exceed \$600 per annum for their respective duties as trustees, except that trustees of a district with an annual operating budget of \$1,000,000 or more may be paid a sum not to exceed \$1,000 per annum. For terms commencing on or after the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly, the trustees shall be paid a sum of not to exceed \$1,200 per annum. However, trustees appointed under this Act for any public water district which acquires by purchase or condemnation, or constructs, and maintains and operates sewerage properties in combination with its waterworks properties, under the provisions of Section 23a of this Act, shall be paid a sum of not to exceed \$2,000 per annum for their respective duties as trustees. Compensation in either case shall be determined by resolution of the respective boards of trustees, to be adopted annually at their first meeting in May.

Any public water district organized under this Act with a board of trustees consisting of 7 members may have the size of its board reduced as provided in Section 4.1.  
(Source: P.A. 91-333, eff. 1-1-00.)"

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 340. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.  
Representative Fortner offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 340 on page 26, by replacing lines 12 through 19 with the following:

"(x) The Department shall conduct annual credit history checks to determine the financial history of children placed under its guardianship pursuant to the Juvenile Court Act of 1987. The Department shall conduct such credit checks starting when a ward turns 12 years old and each year thereafter for the duration of the guardianship as terminated pursuant to the Juvenile Court Act of 1987. The Department shall determine if financial exploitation of the child's personal information has occurred. If financial exploitation appears to have taken place or is presently on-going, the Department shall notify the proper law enforcement agency, the proper State's Attorney, or the Attorney General."; and on page 26, by deleting lines 23 and 24.

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 574. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Counties & Townships, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 574 on page 1, by replacing line 7 with the following:

"Sec. 5-25026. Locally grown foods. Except in emergency situations, including but not limited to a food-borne disease outbreak, the board of health of a".

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 1255. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Revenue & Finance, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1255 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Illinois Municipal Code is amended by changing Section 11-74.4-3 as follows:

(65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3) (from Ch. 24, par. 11-74.4-3)

(Text of Section before amendment by P.A. 95-1028)

Sec. 11-74.4-3. Definitions. The following terms, wherever used or referred to in this Division 74.4 shall have the following respective meanings, unless in any case a different meaning clearly appears from the context.

(a) For any redevelopment project area that has been designated pursuant to this Section by an ordinance adopted prior to November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), "blighted area" shall have the meaning set forth in this Section prior to that date.

On and after November 1, 1999, "blighted area" means any improved or vacant area within the boundaries of a redevelopment project area located within the territorial limits of the municipality where:

(1) If improved, industrial, commercial, and residential buildings or improvements are detrimental to the public safety, health, or welfare because of a combination of 5 or more of the following factors, each of which is (i) present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful extent so that a municipality may reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of the Act and (ii) reasonably distributed throughout the improved part of the redevelopment project area:

(A) Dilapidation. An advanced state of disrepair or neglect of necessary repairs to the primary structural components of buildings or improvements in such a combination that a documented building condition analysis determines that major repair is required or the defects are so serious and so extensive that the buildings must be removed.

(B) Obsolescence. The condition or process of falling into disuse. Structures have

become ill-suited for the original use.

(C) Deterioration. With respect to buildings, defects including, but not limited to, major defects in the secondary building components such as doors, windows, porches, gutters and downspouts, and fascia. With respect to surface improvements, that the condition of roadways, alleys, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, off-street parking, and surface storage areas evidence deterioration, including, but not limited to, surface cracking, crumbling, potholes, depressions, loose paving material, and weeds protruding through paved surfaces.

(D) Presence of structures below minimum code standards. All structures that do not meet the standards of zoning, subdivision, building, fire, and other governmental codes applicable to property, but not including housing and property maintenance codes.

(E) Illegal use of individual structures. The use of structures in violation of applicable federal, State, or local laws, exclusive of those applicable to the presence of structures below minimum code standards.

(F) Excessive vacancies. The presence of buildings that are unoccupied or under-utilized and that represent an adverse influence on the area because of the frequency, extent, or duration of the vacancies.

(G) Lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities. The absence of adequate ventilation for light or air circulation in spaces or rooms without windows, or that require the removal of dust, odor, gas, smoke, or other noxious airborne materials. Inadequate natural light and ventilation means the absence of skylights or windows for interior spaces or rooms and improper window sizes and amounts by room area to window area ratios. Inadequate sanitary facilities refers to the absence or inadequacy of garbage storage and enclosure, bathroom facilities, hot water and kitchens, and structural inadequacies preventing ingress and egress to and from all rooms and units within a building.

(H) Inadequate utilities. Underground and overhead utilities such as storm sewers and storm drainage, sanitary sewers, water lines, and gas, telephone, and electrical services that are shown to be inadequate. Inadequate utilities are those that are: (i) of insufficient capacity to serve the uses in the redevelopment project area, (ii) deteriorated, antiquated, obsolete, or in disrepair, or (iii) lacking within the redevelopment project area.

(I) Excessive land coverage and overcrowding of structures and community facilities. The over-intensive use of property and the crowding of buildings and accessory facilities onto a site. Examples of problem conditions warranting the designation of an area as one exhibiting excessive land coverage are: (i) the presence of buildings either improperly situated on parcels or located on parcels of inadequate size and shape in relation to present-day standards of development for health and safety and (ii) the presence of multiple buildings on a single parcel. For there to be a finding of excessive land coverage, these parcels must exhibit one or more of the following conditions: insufficient provision for light and air within or around buildings, increased threat of spread of fire due to the close proximity of buildings, lack of adequate or proper access to a public right-of-way, lack of reasonably required off-street parking, or inadequate provision for loading and service.

(J) Deleterious land use or layout. The existence of incompatible land-use relationships, buildings occupied by inappropriate mixed-uses, or uses considered to be noxious, offensive, or unsuitable for the surrounding area.

(K) Environmental clean-up. The proposed redevelopment project area has incurred Illinois Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental Protection Agency remediation costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant recognized as having expertise in environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-up of hazardous waste, hazardous substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or federal law, provided that the remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the development or redevelopment of the redevelopment project area.

(L) Lack of community planning. The proposed redevelopment project area was developed prior to or without the benefit or guidance of a community plan. This means that the development occurred prior to the adoption by the municipality of a comprehensive or other community plan or that the plan was not followed at the time of the area's development. This factor must be documented by evidence of adverse or incompatible land-use relationships, inadequate street layout, improper subdivision, parcels of inadequate shape and size to meet contemporary development standards, or other evidence demonstrating an absence of effective community planning.

(M) The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5 calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated.

(2) If vacant, the sound growth of the redevelopment project area is impaired by a combination of 2 or more of the following factors, each of which is (i) present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful extent so that a municipality may reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of the Act and (ii) reasonably distributed throughout the vacant part of the redevelopment project area to which it pertains:

(A) Obsolete platting of vacant land that results in parcels of limited or narrow size or configurations of parcels of irregular size or shape that would be difficult to develop on a planned basis and in a manner compatible with contemporary standards and requirements, or platting that failed to create rights-of-ways for streets or alleys or that created inadequate right-of-way widths for streets, alleys, or other public rights-of-way or that omitted easements for public utilities.

(B) Diversity of ownership of parcels of vacant land sufficient in number to retard or impede the ability to assemble the land for development.

(C) Tax and special assessment delinquencies exist or the property has been the subject of tax sales under the Property Tax Code within the last 5 years.

(D) Deterioration of structures or site improvements in neighboring areas adjacent to the vacant land.

(E) The area has incurred Illinois Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental Protection Agency remediation costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant recognized as having expertise in environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-up of hazardous waste, hazardous substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or federal law, provided that the remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the development or redevelopment of the redevelopment project area.

(F) The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5 calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated.

(3) If vacant, the sound growth of the redevelopment project area is impaired by one of the following factors that (i) is present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful extent so that a municipality may reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of the Act and (ii) is reasonably distributed throughout the vacant part of the redevelopment project area to which it pertains:

(A) The area consists of one or more unused quarries, mines, or strip mine ponds.

(B) The area consists of unused rail yards, rail tracks, or railroad rights-of-way.

(C) The area, prior to its designation, is subject to (i) chronic flooding that adversely impacts on real property in the area as certified by a registered professional engineer or appropriate regulatory agency or (ii) surface water that discharges from all or a part of the area and contributes to flooding within the same watershed, but only if the redevelopment project provides for facilities or improvements to contribute to the alleviation of all or part of the flooding.

(D) The area consists of an unused or illegal disposal site containing earth, stone, building debris, or similar materials that were removed from construction, demolition, excavation, or dredge sites.

(E) Prior to November 1, 1999, the area is not less than 50 nor more than 100 acres and 75% of which is vacant (notwithstanding that the area has been used for commercial agricultural purposes within 5 years prior to the designation of the redevelopment project area), and the area meets at least one of the factors itemized in paragraph (1) of this subsection, the area has been designated as a town or village center by ordinance or comprehensive plan adopted prior to January 1, 1982, and the area has not been developed for that designated purpose.

(F) The area qualified as a blighted improved area immediately prior to becoming

vacant, unless there has been substantial private investment in the immediately surrounding area.

(b) For any redevelopment project area that has been designated pursuant to this Section by an ordinance adopted prior to November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), "conservation area" shall have the meaning set forth in this Section prior to that date.

On and after November 1, 1999, "conservation area" means any improved area within the boundaries of a redevelopment project area located within the territorial limits of the municipality in which 50% or more of the structures in the area have an age of 35 years or more. Such an area is not yet a blighted area but because of a combination of 3 or more of the following factors is detrimental to the public safety, health, morals or welfare and such an area may become a blighted area:

(1) Dilapidation. An advanced state of disrepair or neglect of necessary repairs to the primary structural components of buildings or improvements in such a combination that a documented building condition analysis determines that major repair is required or the defects are so serious and so extensive that the buildings must be removed.

(2) Obsolescence. The condition or process of falling into disuse. Structures have become ill-suited for the original use.

(3) Deterioration. With respect to buildings, defects including, but not limited to, major defects in the secondary building components such as doors, windows, porches, gutters and downspouts, and fascia. With respect to surface improvements, that the condition of roadways, alleys, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, off-street parking, and surface storage areas evidence deterioration, including, but not limited to, surface cracking, crumbling, potholes, depressions, loose paving material, and weeds protruding through paved surfaces.

(4) Presence of structures below minimum code standards. All structures that do not meet the standards of zoning, subdivision, building, fire, and other governmental codes applicable to property, but not including housing and property maintenance codes.

(5) Illegal use of individual structures. The use of structures in violation of applicable federal, State, or local laws, exclusive of those applicable to the presence of structures below minimum code standards.

(6) Excessive vacancies. The presence of buildings that are unoccupied or under-utilized and that represent an adverse influence on the area because of the frequency, extent, or duration of the vacancies.

(7) Lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities. The absence of adequate ventilation for light or air circulation in spaces or rooms without windows, or that require the removal of dust, odor, gas, smoke, or other noxious airborne materials. Inadequate natural light and ventilation means the absence or inadequacy of skylights or windows for interior spaces or rooms and improper window sizes and amounts by room area to window area ratios. Inadequate sanitary facilities refers to the absence or inadequacy of garbage storage and enclosure, bathroom facilities, hot water and kitchens, and structural inadequacies preventing ingress and egress to and from all rooms and units within a building.

(8) Inadequate utilities. Underground and overhead utilities such as storm sewers and storm drainage, sanitary sewers, water lines, and gas, telephone, and electrical services that are shown to be inadequate. Inadequate utilities are those that are: (i) of insufficient capacity to serve the uses in the redevelopment project area, (ii) deteriorated, antiquated, obsolete, or in disrepair, or (iii) lacking within the redevelopment project area.

(9) Excessive land coverage and overcrowding of structures and community facilities. The over-intensive use of property and the crowding of buildings and accessory facilities onto a site. Examples of problem conditions warranting the designation of an area as one exhibiting excessive land coverage are: the presence of buildings either improperly situated on parcels or located on parcels of inadequate size and shape in relation to present-day standards of development for health and safety and the presence of multiple buildings on a single parcel. For there to be a finding of excessive land coverage, these parcels must exhibit one or more of the following conditions: insufficient provision for light and air within or around buildings, increased threat of spread of fire due to the close proximity of buildings, lack of adequate or proper access to a public right-of-way, lack of reasonably required off-street parking, or inadequate provision for loading and service.

(10) Deleterious land use or layout. The existence of incompatible land-use relationships, buildings occupied by inappropriate mixed-uses, or uses considered to be noxious, offensive, or unsuitable for the surrounding area.

(11) Lack of community planning. The proposed redevelopment project area was developed prior to or without the benefit or guidance of a community plan. This means that the development



occurred prior to the adoption by the municipality of a comprehensive or other community plan or that the plan was not followed at the time of the area's development. This factor must be documented by evidence of adverse or incompatible land-use relationships, inadequate street layout, improper subdivision, parcels of inadequate shape and size to meet contemporary development standards, or other evidence demonstrating an absence of effective community planning.

(12) The area has incurred Illinois Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental Protection Agency remediation costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant recognized as having expertise in environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-up of hazardous waste, hazardous substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or federal law, provided that the remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the development or redevelopment of the redevelopment project area.

(13) The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for 3 of the last 5 calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5 calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years for which information is available.

(c) "Industrial park" means an area in a blighted or conservation area suitable for use by any manufacturing, industrial, research or transportation enterprise, of facilities to include but not be limited to factories, mills, processing plants, assembly plants, packing plants, fabricating plants, industrial distribution centers, warehouses, repair overhaul or service facilities, freight terminals, research facilities, test facilities or railroad facilities.

(d) "Industrial park conservation area" means an area within the boundaries of a redevelopment project area located within the territorial limits of a municipality that is a labor surplus municipality or within 1 1/2 miles of the territorial limits of a municipality that is a labor surplus municipality if the area is annexed to the municipality; which area is zoned as industrial no later than at the time the municipality by ordinance designates the redevelopment project area, and which area includes both vacant land suitable for use as an industrial park and a blighted area or conservation area contiguous to such vacant land.

(e) "Labor surplus municipality" means a municipality in which, at any time during the 6 months before the municipality by ordinance designates an industrial park conservation area, the unemployment rate was over 6% and was also 100% or more of the national average unemployment rate for that same time as published in the United States Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Statistics publication entitled "The Employment Situation" or its successor publication. For the purpose of this subsection, if unemployment rate statistics for the municipality are not available, the unemployment rate in the municipality shall be deemed to be the same as the unemployment rate in the principal county in which the municipality is located.

(f) "Municipality" shall mean a city, village, incorporated town, or a township that is located in the unincorporated portion of a county with 3 million or more inhabitants, if the county adopted an ordinance that approved the township's redevelopment plan.

(g) "Initial Sales Tax Amounts" means the amount of taxes paid under the Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, Use Tax Act, Service Use Tax Act, the Service Occupation Tax Act, the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act by retailers and servicemen on transactions at places located in a State Sales Tax Boundary during the calendar year 1985.

(g-1) "Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts" means the amount of taxes paid under the Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, Use Tax Act, Service Use Tax Act, the Service Occupation Tax Act, the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act by retailers and servicemen on transactions at places located within the State Sales Tax Boundary revised pursuant to Section 11-74.4-8a(9) of this Act.

(h) "Municipal Sales Tax Increment" means an amount equal to the increase in the aggregate amount of taxes paid to a municipality from the Local Government Tax Fund arising from sales by retailers and servicemen within the redevelopment project area or State Sales Tax Boundary, as the case may be, for as long as the redevelopment project area or State Sales Tax Boundary, as the case may be, exist over and above the aggregate amount of taxes as certified by the Illinois Department of Revenue and paid under the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax Act and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act by retailers and servicemen, on transactions at places of business located in the redevelopment project area or State Sales Tax Boundary, as the case may be, during the base year which shall be the calendar year immediately prior to the year in which the municipality adopted tax increment allocation financing. For purposes of

computing the aggregate amount of such taxes for base years occurring prior to 1985, the Department of Revenue shall determine the Initial Sales Tax Amounts for such taxes and deduct therefrom an amount equal to 4% of the aggregate amount of taxes per year for each year the base year is prior to 1985, but not to exceed a total deduction of 12%. The amount so determined shall be known as the "Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts". For purposes of determining the Municipal Sales Tax Increment, the Department of Revenue shall for each period subtract from the amount paid to the municipality from the Local Government Tax Fund arising from sales by retailers and servicemen on transactions located in the redevelopment project area or the State Sales Tax Boundary, as the case may be, the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, the Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts for the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax Act and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act. For the State Fiscal Year 1989, this calculation shall be made by utilizing the calendar year 1987 to determine the tax amounts received. For the State Fiscal Year 1990, this calculation shall be made by utilizing the period from January 1, 1988, until September 30, 1988, to determine the tax amounts received from retailers and servicemen pursuant to the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act, which shall have deducted therefrom nine-twelfths of the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, the Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts as appropriate. For the State Fiscal Year 1991, this calculation shall be made by utilizing the period from October 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, to determine the tax amounts received from retailers and servicemen pursuant to the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act which shall have deducted therefrom nine-twelfths of the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts as appropriate. For every State Fiscal Year thereafter, the applicable period shall be the 12 months beginning July 1 and ending June 30 to determine the tax amounts received which shall have deducted therefrom the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, the Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts, as the case may be.

(i) "Net State Sales Tax Increment" means the sum of the following: (a) 80% of the first \$100,000 of State Sales Tax Increment annually generated within a State Sales Tax Boundary; (b) 60% of the amount in excess of \$100,000 but not exceeding \$500,000 of State Sales Tax Increment annually generated within a State Sales Tax Boundary; and (c) 40% of all amounts in excess of \$500,000 of State Sales Tax Increment annually generated within a State Sales Tax Boundary. If, however, a municipality established a tax increment financing district in a county with a population in excess of 3,000,000 before January 1, 1986, and the municipality entered into a contract or issued bonds after January 1, 1986, but before December 31, 1986, to finance redevelopment project costs within a State Sales Tax Boundary, then the Net State Sales Tax Increment means, for the fiscal years beginning July 1, 1990, and July 1, 1991, 100% of the State Sales Tax Increment annually generated within a State Sales Tax Boundary; and notwithstanding any other provision of this Act, for those fiscal years the Department of Revenue shall distribute to those municipalities 100% of their Net State Sales Tax Increment before any distribution to any other municipality and regardless of whether or not those other municipalities will receive 100% of their Net State Sales Tax Increment. For Fiscal Year 1999, and every year thereafter until the year 2007, for any municipality that has not entered into a contract or has not issued bonds prior to June 1, 1988 to finance redevelopment project costs within a State Sales Tax Boundary, the Net State Sales Tax Increment shall be calculated as follows: By multiplying the Net State Sales Tax Increment by 90% in the State Fiscal Year 1999; 80% in the State Fiscal Year 2000; 70% in the State Fiscal Year 2001; 60% in the State Fiscal Year 2002; 50% in the State Fiscal Year 2003; 40% in the State Fiscal Year 2004; 30% in the State Fiscal Year 2005; 20% in the State Fiscal Year 2006; and 10% in the State Fiscal Year 2007. No payment shall be made for State Fiscal Year 2008 and thereafter.

Municipalities that issued bonds in connection with a redevelopment project in a redevelopment project area within the State Sales Tax Boundary prior to July 29, 1991, or that entered into contracts in connection with a redevelopment project in a redevelopment project area before June 1, 1988, shall continue to receive their proportional share of the Illinois Tax Increment Fund distribution until the date on which the redevelopment project is completed or terminated. If, however, a municipality that issued bonds in connection with a redevelopment project in a redevelopment project area within the State Sales Tax Boundary prior to July 29, 1991 retires the bonds prior to June 30, 2007 or a municipality that entered into contracts in connection with a redevelopment project in a redevelopment project area before June 1, 1988 completes the contracts prior to June 30, 2007, then so long as the redevelopment project is not completed or is not terminated, the Net State Sales Tax Increment shall be calculated, beginning on the date on which the bonds are retired or the contracts are completed, as follows: By multiplying the Net State Sales Tax Increment by 60% in the State Fiscal Year 2002; 50% in the State Fiscal Year 2003; 40% in the State Fiscal

Year 2004; 30% in the State Fiscal Year 2005; 20% in the State Fiscal Year 2006; and 10% in the State Fiscal Year 2007. No payment shall be made for State Fiscal Year 2008 and thereafter. Refunding of any bonds issued prior to July 29, 1991, shall not alter the Net State Sales Tax Increment.

(j) "State Utility Tax Increment Amount" means an amount equal to the aggregate increase in State electric and gas tax charges imposed on owners and tenants, other than residential customers, of properties located within the redevelopment project area under Section 9-222 of the Public Utilities Act, over and above the aggregate of such charges as certified by the Department of Revenue and paid by owners and tenants, other than residential customers, of properties within the redevelopment project area during the base year, which shall be the calendar year immediately prior to the year of the adoption of the ordinance authorizing tax increment allocation financing.

(k) "Net State Utility Tax Increment" means the sum of the following: (a) 80% of the first \$100,000 of State Utility Tax Increment annually generated by a redevelopment project area; (b) 60% of the amount in excess of \$100,000 but not exceeding \$500,000 of the State Utility Tax Increment annually generated by a redevelopment project area; and (c) 40% of all amounts in excess of \$500,000 of State Utility Tax Increment annually generated by a redevelopment project area. For the State Fiscal Year 1999, and every year thereafter until the year 2007, for any municipality that has not entered into a contract or has not issued bonds prior to June 1, 1988 to finance redevelopment project costs within a redevelopment project area, the Net State Utility Tax Increment shall be calculated as follows: By multiplying the Net State Utility Tax Increment by 90% in the State Fiscal Year 1999; 80% in the State Fiscal Year 2000; 70% in the State Fiscal Year 2001; 60% in the State Fiscal Year 2002; 50% in the State Fiscal Year 2003; 40% in the State Fiscal Year 2004; 30% in the State Fiscal Year 2005; 20% in the State Fiscal Year 2006; and 10% in the State Fiscal Year 2007. No payment shall be made for the State Fiscal Year 2008 and thereafter.

Municipalities that issue bonds in connection with the redevelopment project during the period from June 1, 1988 until 3 years after the effective date of this Amendatory Act of 1988 shall receive the Net State Utility Tax Increment, subject to appropriation, for 15 State Fiscal Years after the issuance of such bonds. For the 16th through the 20th State Fiscal Years after issuance of the bonds, the Net State Utility Tax Increment shall be calculated as follows: By multiplying the Net State Utility Tax Increment by 90% in year 16; 80% in year 17; 70% in year 18; 60% in year 19; and 50% in year 20. Refunding of any bonds issued prior to June 1, 1988, shall not alter the revised Net State Utility Tax Increment payments set forth above.

(l) "Obligations" mean bonds, loans, debentures, notes, special certificates or other evidence of indebtedness issued by the municipality to carry out a redevelopment project or to refund outstanding obligations.

(m) "Payment in lieu of taxes" means those estimated tax revenues from real property in a redevelopment project area derived from real property that has been acquired by a municipality which according to the redevelopment project or plan is to be used for a private use which taxing districts would have received had a municipality not acquired the real property and adopted tax increment allocation financing and which would result from levies made after the time of the adoption of tax increment allocation financing to the time the current equalized value of real property in the redevelopment project area exceeds the total initial equalized value of real property in said area.

(n) "Redevelopment plan" means the comprehensive program of the municipality for development or redevelopment intended by the payment of redevelopment project costs to reduce or eliminate those conditions the existence of which qualified the redevelopment project area as a "blighted area" or "conservation area" or combination thereof or "industrial park conservation area," and thereby to enhance the tax bases of the taxing districts which extend into the redevelopment project area. On and after November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), no redevelopment plan may be approved or amended that includes the development of vacant land (i) with a golf course and related clubhouse and other facilities or (ii) designated by federal, State, county, or municipal government as public land for outdoor recreational activities or for nature preserves and used for that purpose within 5 years prior to the adoption of the redevelopment plan. For the purpose of this subsection, "recreational activities" is limited to mean camping and hunting. Each redevelopment plan shall set forth in writing the program to be undertaken to accomplish the objectives and shall include but not be limited to:

(A) an itemized list of estimated redevelopment project costs;

(B) evidence indicating that the redevelopment project area on the whole has not been subject to growth and development through investment by private enterprise;

(C) an assessment of any financial impact of the redevelopment project area on or any increased demand for services from any taxing district affected by the plan and any program to address

such financial impact or increased demand;

(D) the sources of funds to pay costs;

(E) the nature and term of the obligations to be issued;

(F) the most recent equalized assessed valuation of the redevelopment project area;

(G) an estimate as to the equalized assessed valuation after redevelopment and the general land uses to apply in the redevelopment project area;

(H) a commitment to fair employment practices and an affirmative action plan;

(I) if it concerns an industrial park conservation area, the plan shall also include a general description of any proposed developer, user and tenant of any property, a description of the type, structure and general character of the facilities to be developed, a description of the type, class and number of new employees to be employed in the operation of the facilities to be developed; and

(J) if property is to be annexed to the municipality, the plan shall include the terms of the annexation agreement.

The provisions of items (B) and (C) of this subsection (n) shall not apply to a municipality that before March 14, 1994 (the effective date of Public Act 88-537) had fixed, either by its corporate authorities or by a commission designated under subsection (k) of Section 11-74.4-4, a time and place for a public hearing as required by subsection (a) of Section 11-74.4-5. No redevelopment plan shall be adopted unless a municipality complies with all of the following requirements:

(1) The municipality finds that the redevelopment project area on the whole has not been subject to growth and development through investment by private enterprise and would not reasonably be anticipated to be developed without the adoption of the redevelopment plan.

(2) The municipality finds that the redevelopment plan and project conform to the comprehensive plan for the development of the municipality as a whole, or, for municipalities with a population of 100,000 or more, regardless of when the redevelopment plan and project was adopted, the redevelopment plan and project either: (i) conforms to the strategic economic development or redevelopment plan issued by the designated planning authority of the municipality, or (ii) includes land uses that have been approved by the planning commission of the municipality.

(3) The redevelopment plan establishes the estimated dates of completion of the redevelopment project and retirement of obligations issued to finance redevelopment project costs. Those dates may not be later than the dates set forth under Section 11-74.4-3.5, or ~~(DDD) (EEE), or (FFF), or (GGG), or (HHH), or (III), or (JJJ), (KKK), (LLL) (MMM), or (NNN) if the ordinance was adopted on December 23, 1986 by the Village of Libertyville.~~

A municipality may by municipal ordinance amend an existing redevelopment plan to conform to this paragraph (3) as amended by Public Act 91-478, which municipal ordinance may be adopted without further hearing or notice and without complying with the procedures provided in this Act pertaining to an amendment to or the initial approval of a redevelopment plan and project and designation of a redevelopment project area.

(3.5) The municipality finds, in the case of an industrial park conservation area, also that the municipality is a labor surplus municipality and that the implementation of the redevelopment plan will reduce unemployment, create new jobs and by the provision of new facilities enhance the tax base of the taxing districts that extend into the redevelopment project area.

(4) If any incremental revenues are being utilized under Section 8(a)(1) or 8(a)(2) of this Act in redevelopment project areas approved by ordinance after January 1, 1986, the municipality finds: (a) that the redevelopment project area would not reasonably be developed without the use of such incremental revenues, and (b) that such incremental revenues will be exclusively utilized for the development of the redevelopment project area.

(5) If the redevelopment plan will not result in displacement of residents from 10 or more inhabited residential units, and the municipality certifies in the plan that such displacement will not result from the plan, a housing impact study need not be performed. If, however, the redevelopment plan would result in the displacement of residents from 10 or more inhabited residential units, or if the redevelopment project area contains 75 or more inhabited residential units and no certification is made, then the municipality shall prepare, as part of the separate feasibility report required by subsection (a) of Section 11-74.4-5, a housing impact study.

Part I of the housing impact study shall include (i) data as to whether the residential units are single family or multi-family units, (ii) the number and type of rooms within the units, if that information is available, (iii) whether the units are inhabited or uninhabited, as determined not less than 45 days before the date that the ordinance or resolution required by subsection (a) of Section 11-74.4-5 is

passed, and (iv) data as to the racial and ethnic composition of the residents in the inhabited residential units. The data requirement as to the racial and ethnic composition of the residents in the inhabited residential units shall be deemed to be fully satisfied by data from the most recent federal census.

Part II of the housing impact study shall identify the inhabited residential units in the proposed redevelopment project area that are to be or may be removed. If inhabited residential units are to be removed, then the housing impact study shall identify (i) the number and location of those units that will or may be removed, (ii) the municipality's plans for relocation assistance for those residents in the proposed redevelopment project area whose residences are to be removed, (iii) the availability of replacement housing for those residents whose residences are to be removed, and shall identify the type, location, and cost of the housing, and (iv) the type and extent of relocation assistance to be provided.

(6) On and after November 1, 1999, the housing impact study required by paragraph (5) shall be incorporated in the redevelopment plan for the redevelopment project area.

(7) On and after November 1, 1999, no redevelopment plan shall be adopted, nor an existing plan amended, nor shall residential housing that is occupied by households of low-income and very low-income persons in currently existing redevelopment project areas be removed after November 1, 1999 unless the redevelopment plan provides, with respect to inhabited housing units that are to be removed for households of low-income and very low-income persons, affordable housing and relocation assistance not less than that which would be provided under the federal Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and the regulations under that Act, including the eligibility criteria. Affordable housing may be either existing or newly constructed housing. For purposes of this paragraph (7), "low-income households", "very low-income households", and "affordable housing" have the meanings set forth in the Illinois Affordable Housing Act. The municipality shall make a good faith effort to ensure that this affordable housing is located in or near the redevelopment project area within the municipality.

(8) On and after November 1, 1999, if, after the adoption of the redevelopment plan for the redevelopment project area, any municipality desires to amend its redevelopment plan to remove more inhabited residential units than specified in its original redevelopment plan, that change shall be made in accordance with the procedures in subsection (c) of Section 11-74.4-5.

(9) For redevelopment project areas designated prior to November 1, 1999, the redevelopment plan may be amended without further joint review board meeting or hearing, provided that the municipality shall give notice of any such changes by mail to each affected taxing district and registrant on the interested party registry, to authorize the municipality to expend tax increment revenues for redevelopment project costs defined by paragraphs (5) and (7.5), subparagraphs (E) and (F) of paragraph (11), and paragraph (11.5) of subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3, so long as the changes do not increase the total estimated redevelopment project costs set out in the redevelopment plan by more than 5% after adjustment for inflation from the date the plan was adopted.

(o) "Redevelopment project" means any public and private development project in furtherance of the objectives of a redevelopment plan. On and after November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), no redevelopment plan may be approved or amended that includes the development of vacant land (i) with a golf course and related clubhouse and other facilities or (ii) designated by federal, State, county, or municipal government as public land for outdoor recreational activities or for nature preserves and used for that purpose within 5 years prior to the adoption of the redevelopment plan. For the purpose of this subsection, "recreational activities" is limited to mean camping and hunting.

(p) "Redevelopment project area" means an area designated by the municipality, which is not less in the aggregate than 1 1/2 acres and in respect to which the municipality has made a finding that there exist conditions which cause the area to be classified as an industrial park conservation area or a blighted area or a conservation area, or a combination of both blighted areas and conservation areas.

(q) "Redevelopment project costs" mean and include the sum total of all reasonable or necessary costs incurred or estimated to be incurred, and any such costs incidental to a redevelopment plan and a redevelopment project. Such costs include, without limitation, the following:

(1) Costs of studies, surveys, development of plans, and specifications, implementation and administration of the redevelopment plan including but not limited to staff and professional service costs for architectural, engineering, legal, financial, planning or other services, provided however that no charges for professional services may be based on a percentage of the tax increment collected; except that on and after November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), no contracts for professional services, excluding architectural and engineering services, may be entered into if the terms of the contract extend beyond a period of 3 years. In addition, "redevelopment project costs" shall not

include lobbying expenses. After consultation with the municipality, each tax increment consultant or advisor to a municipality that plans to designate or has designated a redevelopment project area shall inform the municipality in writing of any contracts that the consultant or advisor has entered into with entities or individuals that have received, or are receiving, payments financed by tax increment revenues produced by the redevelopment project area with respect to which the consultant or advisor has performed, or will be performing, service for the municipality. This requirement shall be satisfied by the consultant or advisor before the commencement of services for the municipality and thereafter whenever any other contracts with those individuals or entities are executed by the consultant or advisor;

(1.5) After July 1, 1999, annual administrative costs shall not include general overhead or administrative costs of the municipality that would still have been incurred by the municipality if the municipality had not designated a redevelopment project area or approved a redevelopment plan;

(1.6) The cost of marketing sites within the redevelopment project area to prospective businesses, developers, and investors;

(2) Property assembly costs, including but not limited to acquisition of land and other property, real or personal, or rights or interests therein, demolition of buildings, site preparation, site improvements that serve as an engineered barrier addressing ground level or below ground environmental contamination, including, but not limited to parking lots and other concrete or asphalt barriers, and the clearing and grading of land;

(3) Costs of rehabilitation, reconstruction or repair or remodeling of existing public or private buildings, fixtures, and leasehold improvements; and the cost of replacing an existing public building if pursuant to the implementation of a redevelopment project the existing public building is to be demolished to use the site for private investment or devoted to a different use requiring private investment;

(4) Costs of the construction of public works or improvements, except that on and after November 1, 1999, redevelopment project costs shall not include the cost of constructing a new municipal public building principally used to provide offices, storage space, or conference facilities or vehicle storage, maintenance, or repair for administrative, public safety, or public works personnel and that is not intended to replace an existing public building as provided under paragraph (3) of subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3 unless either (i) the construction of the new municipal building implements a redevelopment project that was included in a redevelopment plan that was adopted by the municipality prior to November 1, 1999 or (ii) the municipality makes a reasonable determination in the redevelopment plan, supported by information that provides the basis for that determination, that the new municipal building is required to meet an increase in the need for public safety purposes anticipated to result from the implementation of the redevelopment plan;

(5) Costs of job training and retraining projects, including the cost of "welfare to work" programs implemented by businesses located within the redevelopment project area;

(6) Financing costs, including but not limited to all necessary and incidental expenses related to the issuance of obligations and which may include payment of interest on any obligations issued hereunder including interest accruing during the estimated period of construction of any redevelopment project for which such obligations are issued and for not exceeding 36 months thereafter and including reasonable reserves related thereto;

(7) To the extent the municipality by written agreement accepts and approves the same, all or a portion of a taxing district's capital costs resulting from the redevelopment project necessarily incurred or to be incurred within a taxing district in furtherance of the objectives of the redevelopment plan and project.

(7.5) For redevelopment project areas designated (or redevelopment project areas amended to add or increase the number of tax-increment-financing assisted housing units) on or after November 1, 1999, an elementary, secondary, or unit school district's increased costs attributable to assisted housing units located within the redevelopment project area for which the developer or redeveloper receives financial assistance through an agreement with the municipality or because the municipality incurs the cost of necessary infrastructure improvements within the boundaries of the assisted housing sites necessary for the completion of that housing as authorized by this Act, and which costs shall be paid by the municipality from the Special Tax Allocation Fund when the tax increment revenue is received as a result of the assisted housing units and shall be calculated annually as follows:

(A) for foundation districts, excluding any school district in a municipality with a population in excess of 1,000,000, by multiplying the district's increase in attendance resulting from

the net increase in new students enrolled in that school district who reside in housing units within the redevelopment project area that have received financial assistance through an agreement with the municipality or because the municipality incurs the cost of necessary infrastructure improvements within the boundaries of the housing sites necessary for the completion of that housing as authorized by this Act since the designation of the redevelopment project area by the most recently available per capita tuition cost as defined in Section 10-20.12a of the School Code less any increase in general State aid as defined in Section 18-8.05 of the School Code attributable to these added new students subject to the following annual limitations:

(i) for unit school districts with a district average 1995-96 Per Capita

Tuition Charge of less than \$5,900, no more than 25% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act;

(ii) for elementary school districts with a district average 1995-96 Per Capita

Tuition Charge of less than \$5,900, no more than 17% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act; and

(iii) for secondary school districts with a district average 1995-96 Per Capita

Tuition Charge of less than \$5,900, no more than 8% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act.

(B) For alternate method districts, flat grant districts, and foundation districts

with a district average 1995-96 Per Capita Tuition Charge equal to or more than \$5,900, excluding any school district with a population in excess of 1,000,000, by multiplying the district's increase in attendance resulting from the net increase in new students enrolled in that school district who reside in housing units within the redevelopment project area that have received financial assistance through an agreement with the municipality or because the municipality incurs the cost of necessary infrastructure improvements within the boundaries of the housing sites necessary for the completion of that housing as authorized by this Act since the designation of the redevelopment project area by the most recently available per capita tuition cost as defined in Section 10-20.12a of the School Code less any increase in general state aid as defined in Section 18-8.05 of the School Code attributable to these added new students subject to the following annual limitations:

(i) for unit school districts, no more than 40% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act;

(ii) for elementary school districts, no more than 27% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act; and

(iii) for secondary school districts, no more than 13% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act.

(C) For any school district in a municipality with a population in excess of 1,000,000, the following restrictions shall apply to the reimbursement of increased costs under this paragraph (7.5):

(i) no increased costs shall be reimbursed unless the school district certifies that each of the schools affected by the assisted housing project is at or over its student capacity;

(ii) the amount reimbursable shall be reduced by the value of any land donated to the school district by the municipality or developer, and by the value of any physical improvements made to the schools by the municipality or developer; and

(iii) the amount reimbursed may not affect amounts otherwise obligated by the terms of any bonds, notes, or other funding instruments, or the terms of any redevelopment agreement.

Any school district seeking payment under this paragraph (7.5) shall, after July 1 and before September 30 of each year, provide the municipality with reasonable evidence to support its claim for reimbursement before the municipality shall be required to approve or make the payment to the school district. If the school district fails to provide the information during this period in any year, it shall forfeit any claim to reimbursement for that year. School districts may adopt a resolution waiving the right to all or a portion of the reimbursement otherwise required by this paragraph (7.5).

By acceptance of this reimbursement the school district waives the right to directly or indirectly set aside, modify, or contest in any manner the establishment of the redevelopment project area or projects;

(7.7) For redevelopment project areas designated (or redevelopment project areas amended to add or increase the number of tax-increment-financing assisted housing units) on or after January 1, 2005 (the effective date of Public Act 93-961), a public library district's increased costs attributable to assisted housing units located within the redevelopment project area for which the developer or redeveloper receives financial assistance through an agreement with the municipality or because the municipality incurs the cost of necessary infrastructure improvements within the boundaries of the assisted housing sites necessary for the completion of that housing as authorized by this Act shall be paid to the library district by the municipality from the Special Tax Allocation Fund when the tax increment revenue is received as a result of the assisted housing units. This paragraph (7.7) applies only if (i) the library district is located in a county that is subject to the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law or (ii) the library district is not located in a county that is subject to the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law but the district is prohibited by any other law from increasing its tax levy rate without a prior voter referendum.

The amount paid to a library district under this paragraph (7.7) shall be calculated by multiplying (i) the net increase in the number of persons eligible to obtain a library card in that district who reside in housing units within the redevelopment project area that have received financial assistance through an agreement with the municipality or because the municipality incurs the cost of necessary infrastructure improvements within the boundaries of the housing sites necessary for the completion of that housing as authorized by this Act since the designation of the redevelopment project area by (ii) the per-patron cost of providing library services so long as it does not exceed \$120. The per-patron cost shall be the Total Operating Expenditures Per Capita as stated in the most recent Illinois Public Library Statistics produced by the Library Research Center at the University of Illinois. The municipality may deduct from the amount that it must pay to a library district under this paragraph any amount that it has voluntarily paid to the library district from the tax increment revenue. The amount paid to a library district under this paragraph (7.7) shall be no more than 2% of the amount produced by the assisted housing units and deposited into the Special Tax Allocation Fund.

A library district is not eligible for any payment under this paragraph (7.7) unless the library district has experienced an increase in the number of patrons from the municipality that created the tax-increment-financing district since the designation of the redevelopment project area.

Any library district seeking payment under this paragraph (7.7) shall, after July 1 and before September 30 of each year, provide the municipality with convincing evidence to support its claim for reimbursement before the municipality shall be required to approve or make the payment to the library district. If the library district fails to provide the information during this period in any year, it shall forfeit any claim to reimbursement for that year. Library districts may adopt a resolution waiving the right to all or a portion of the reimbursement otherwise required by this paragraph (7.7). By acceptance of such reimbursement, the library district shall forfeit any right to directly or indirectly set aside, modify, or contest in any manner whatsoever the establishment of the redevelopment project area or projects;

(7.9) For redevelopment project areas designated or amended on or after January 1, 2010, if a fire protection district is not subject to an intergovernmental agreement with the municipality for the purposes of funding increased costs of the district because of new development, then the fire protection district's increased costs attributable to the redevelopment project area may be paid to the fire protection district by the municipality from the Special Tax Allocation Fund when the tax increment revenue is received.

The amount paid to a fire protection district under this paragraph (7.9) may be calculated as follows:

(A) By multiplying (i) the net increase in the number of persons served by the fire protection district by (ii) the fire protection district's per-person cost of providing fire protection services.

(B) If a redevelopment project area contains one or more buildings over 2 stories in height, and if the fire protection district serving the redevelopment project area does not possess a ladder apparatus capable of reaching the roof of the tallest building in the redevelopment project area, the amount paid to the fire protection district under this paragraph (7.9) may include the cost of a ladder apparatus capable of reaching the roof of the tallest building in the redevelopment project area.

(C) If the development of the redevelopment project area requires the purchase of new apparatus or equipment, or the addition of new personnel to serve the needs of the redevelopment project area, the amount paid to the fire protection district under this paragraph (7.9) may include the cost of new apparatus



or equipment, or the addition of new personnel.

(D) If the development of the redevelopment project area requires the construction of a new fire station to serve the increased needs of the redevelopment project area, the amount paid to the fire protection district under this paragraph (7.9) may include the cost to design and construct the new fire station, as well as the cost of apparatus, equipment, and personnel for the new fire station.

Any fire protection district seeking payment under this paragraph (7.9) shall, after July 1 and before September 30 of each year, provide the municipality with convincing evidence to support a claim for reimbursement before the municipality may approve or make a payment to the fire protection district. If a fire protection district accepts payment from a municipality under this paragraph (7.9), then the fire protection district shall forfeit any right to directly or indirectly set aside, modify, or contest in any manner whatsoever the establishment of the redevelopment project area or projects.

(8) Relocation costs to the extent that a municipality determines that relocation costs shall be paid or is required to make payment of relocation costs by federal or State law or in order to satisfy subparagraph (7) of subsection (n);

(9) Payment in lieu of taxes;

(10) Costs of job training, retraining, advanced vocational education or career education, including but not limited to courses in occupational, semi-technical or technical fields leading directly to employment, incurred by one or more taxing districts, provided that such costs (i) are related to the establishment and maintenance of additional job training, advanced vocational education or career education programs for persons employed or to be employed by employers located in a redevelopment project area; and (ii) when incurred by a taxing district or taxing districts other than the municipality, are set forth in a written agreement by or among the municipality and the taxing district or taxing districts, which agreement describes the program to be undertaken, including but not limited to the number of employees to be trained, a description of the training and services to be provided, the number and type of positions available or to be available, itemized costs of the program and sources of funds to pay for the same, and the term of the agreement. Such costs include, specifically, the payment by community college districts of costs pursuant to Sections 3-37, 3-38, 3-40 and 3-40.1 of the Public Community College Act and by school districts of costs pursuant to Sections 10-22.20a and 10-23.3a of The School Code;

(11) Interest cost incurred by a redeveloper related to the construction, renovation or rehabilitation of a redevelopment project provided that:

(A) such costs are to be paid directly from the special tax allocation fund established pursuant to this Act;

(B) such payments in any one year may not exceed 30% of the annual interest costs incurred by the redeveloper with regard to the redevelopment project during that year;

(C) if there are not sufficient funds available in the special tax allocation fund to make the payment pursuant to this paragraph (11) then the amounts so due shall accrue and be payable when sufficient funds are available in the special tax allocation fund;

(D) the total of such interest payments paid pursuant to this Act may not exceed 30% of the total (i) cost paid or incurred by the redeveloper for the redevelopment project plus (ii) redevelopment project costs excluding any property assembly costs and any relocation costs incurred by a municipality pursuant to this Act; and

(E) the cost limits set forth in subparagraphs (B) and (D) of paragraph (11) shall be modified for the financing of rehabilitated or new housing units for low-income households and very low-income households, as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act. The percentage of 75% shall be substituted for 30% in subparagraphs (B) and (D) of paragraph (11).

(F) Instead of the eligible costs provided by subparagraphs (B) and (D) of paragraph (11), as modified by this subparagraph, and notwithstanding any other provisions of this Act to the contrary, the municipality may pay from tax increment revenues up to 50% of the cost of construction of new housing units to be occupied by low-income households and very low-income households as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act. The cost of construction of those units may be derived from the proceeds of bonds issued by the municipality under this Act or other constitutional or statutory authority or from other sources of municipal revenue that may be reimbursed from tax increment revenues or the proceeds of bonds issued to finance the construction of that housing.

The eligible costs provided under this subparagraph (F) of paragraph (11) shall be an eligible cost for the construction, renovation, and rehabilitation of all low and very low-income housing units, as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act, within the

redevelopment project area. If the low and very low-income units are part of a residential redevelopment project that includes units not affordable to low and very low-income households, only the low and very low-income units shall be eligible for benefits under subparagraph (F) of paragraph (11). The standards for maintaining the occupancy by low-income households and very low-income households, as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act, of those units constructed with eligible costs made available under the provisions of this subparagraph (F) of paragraph (11) shall be established by guidelines adopted by the municipality. The responsibility for annually documenting the initial occupancy of the units by low-income households and very low-income households, as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act, shall be that of the then current owner of the property. For ownership units, the guidelines will provide, at a minimum, for a reasonable recapture of funds, or other appropriate methods designed to preserve the original affordability of the ownership units. For rental units, the guidelines will provide, at a minimum, for the affordability of rent to low and very low-income households. As units become available, they shall be rented to income-eligible tenants. The municipality may modify these guidelines from time to time; the guidelines, however, shall be in effect for as long as tax increment revenue is being used to pay for costs associated with the units or for the retirement of bonds issued to finance the units or for the life of the redevelopment project area, whichever is later.

(11.5) If the redevelopment project area is located within a municipality with a population of more than 100,000, the cost of day care services for children of employees from low-income families working for businesses located within the redevelopment project area and all or a portion of the cost of operation of day care centers established by redevelopment project area businesses to serve employees from low-income families working in businesses located in the redevelopment project area. For the purposes of this paragraph, "low-income families" means families whose annual income does not exceed 80% of the municipal, county, or regional median income, adjusted for family size, as the annual income and municipal, county, or regional median income are determined from time to time by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.

(12) Unless explicitly stated herein the cost of construction of new privately-owned buildings shall not be an eligible redevelopment project cost.

(13) After November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), none of the redevelopment project costs enumerated in this subsection shall be eligible redevelopment project costs if those costs would provide direct financial support to a retail entity initiating operations in the redevelopment project area while terminating operations at another Illinois location within 10 miles of the redevelopment project area but outside the boundaries of the redevelopment project area municipality. For purposes of this paragraph, termination means a closing of a retail operation that is directly related to the opening of the same operation or like retail entity owned or operated by more than 50% of the original ownership in a redevelopment project area, but it does not mean closing an operation for reasons beyond the control of the retail entity, as documented by the retail entity, subject to a reasonable finding by the municipality that the current location contained inadequate space, had become economically obsolete, or was no longer a viable location for the retailer or serviceman.

(14) No cost shall be a redevelopment project cost in a redevelopment project area if used to demolish, remove, or substantially modify a historic resource, after August 26, 2008 (the effective date of Public Act 95-934) ~~this amendatory Act of the 95th General Assembly~~, unless no prudent and feasible alternative exists. "Historic resource" for the purpose of this item (14) means (i) a place or structure that is included or eligible for inclusion on the National Register of Historic Places or (ii) a contributing structure in a district on the National Register of Historic Places. This item (14) does not apply to a place or structure for which demolition, removal, or modification is subject to review by the preservation agency of a Certified Local Government designated as such by the National Park Service of the United States Department of the Interior.

If a special service area has been established pursuant to the Special Service Area Tax Act or Special Service Area Tax Law, then any tax increment revenues derived from the tax imposed pursuant to the Special Service Area Tax Act or Special Service Area Tax Law may be used within the redevelopment project area for the purposes permitted by that Act or Law as well as the purposes permitted by this Act.

(r) "State Sales Tax Boundary" means the redevelopment project area or the amended redevelopment project area boundaries which are determined pursuant to subsection (9) of Section 11-74.4-8a of this Act. The Department of Revenue shall certify pursuant to subsection (9) of Section 11-74.4-8a the appropriate boundaries eligible for the determination of State Sales Tax Increment.

(s) "State Sales Tax Increment" means an amount equal to the increase in the aggregate amount of taxes

paid by retailers and servicemen, other than retailers and servicemen subject to the Public Utilities Act, on transactions at places of business located within a State Sales Tax Boundary pursuant to the Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, the Use Tax Act, the Service Use Tax Act, and the Service Occupation Tax Act, except such portion of such increase that is paid into the State and Local Sales Tax Reform Fund, the Local Government Distributive Fund, the Local Government Tax Fund and the County and Mass Transit District Fund, for as long as State participation exists, over and above the Initial Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts for such taxes as certified by the Department of Revenue and paid under those Acts by retailers and servicemen on transactions at places of business located within the State Sales Tax Boundary during the base year which shall be the calendar year immediately prior to the year in which the municipality adopted tax increment allocation financing, less 3.0% of such amounts generated under the Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, Use Tax Act and Service Use Tax Act and the Service Occupation Tax Act, which sum shall be appropriated to the Department of Revenue to cover its costs of administering and enforcing this Section. For purposes of computing the aggregate amount of such taxes for base years occurring prior to 1985, the Department of Revenue shall compute the Initial Sales Tax Amount for such taxes and deduct therefrom an amount equal to 4% of the aggregate amount of taxes per year for each year the base year is prior to 1985, but not to exceed a total deduction of 12%. The amount so determined shall be known as the "Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amount". For purposes of determining the State Sales Tax Increment the Department of Revenue shall for each period subtract from the tax amounts received from retailers and servicemen on transactions located in the State Sales Tax Boundary, the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts for the Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, the Use Tax Act, the Service Use Tax Act and the Service Occupation Tax Act. For the State Fiscal Year 1989 this calculation shall be made by utilizing the calendar year 1987 to determine the tax amounts received. For the State Fiscal Year 1990, this calculation shall be made by utilizing the period from January 1, 1988, until September 30, 1988, to determine the tax amounts received from retailers and servicemen, which shall have deducted therefrom nine-twelfths of the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts as appropriate. For the State Fiscal Year 1991, this calculation shall be made by utilizing the period from October 1, 1988, until June 30, 1989, to determine the tax amounts received from retailers and servicemen, which shall have deducted therefrom nine-twelfths of the certified Initial State Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts as appropriate. For every State Fiscal Year thereafter, the applicable period shall be the 12 months beginning July 1 and ending on June 30, to determine the tax amounts received which shall have deducted therefrom the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts. Municipalities intending to receive a distribution of State Sales Tax Increment must report a list of retailers to the Department of Revenue by October 31, 1988 and by July 31, of each year thereafter.

(t) "Taxing districts" means counties, townships, cities and incorporated towns and villages, school, road, park, sanitary, mosquito abatement, forest preserve, public health, fire protection, river conservancy, tuberculosis sanitarium and any other municipal corporations or districts with the power to levy taxes.

(u) "Taxing districts' capital costs" means those costs of taxing districts for capital improvements that are found by the municipal corporate authorities to be necessary and directly result from the redevelopment project.

(v) As used in subsection (a) of Section 11-74.4-3 of this Act, "vacant land" means any parcel or combination of parcels of real property without industrial, commercial, and residential buildings which has not been used for commercial agricultural purposes within 5 years prior to the designation of the redevelopment project area, unless the parcel is included in an industrial park conservation area or the parcel has been subdivided; provided that if the parcel was part of a larger tract that has been divided into 3 or more smaller tracts that were accepted for recording during the period from 1950 to 1990, then the parcel shall be deemed to have been subdivided, and all proceedings and actions of the municipality taken in that connection with respect to any previously approved or designated redevelopment project area or amended redevelopment project area are hereby validated and hereby declared to be legally sufficient for all purposes of this Act. For purposes of this Section and only for land subject to the subdivision requirements of the Plat Act, land is subdivided when the original plat of the proposed Redevelopment Project Area or relevant portion thereof has been properly certified, acknowledged, approved, and recorded or filed in accordance with the Plat Act and a preliminary plat, if any, for any subsequent phases of the proposed Redevelopment Project Area or relevant portion thereof has been properly approved and filed in accordance with the applicable ordinance of the municipality.

(w) "Annual Total Increment" means the sum of each municipality's annual Net Sales Tax Increment and

each municipality's annual Net Utility Tax Increment. The ratio of the Annual Total Increment of each municipality to the Annual Total Increment for all municipalities, as most recently calculated by the Department, shall determine the proportional shares of the Illinois Tax Increment Fund to be distributed to each municipality.

(Source: P.A. 94-260, eff. 7-19-05; 94-268, eff. 7-19-05; 94-297, eff. 7-21-05; 94-302, eff. 7-21-05; 94-702, eff. 6-1-06; 94-704, eff. 12-5-05; 94-711, eff. 6-1-06; 94-778, eff. 5-19-06; 94-782, eff. 5-19-06; 94-783, eff. 5-19-06; 94-810, eff. 5-26-06; 94-903, eff. 6-22-06; 94-1091, eff. 1-26-07; 94-1092, eff. 1-26-07; 95-15, eff. 7-16-07; 95-164, eff. 1-1-08; 95-331, eff. 8-21-07; 95-346, eff. 8-21-07; 95-459, eff. 8-27-07; 95-653, eff. 1-1-08; 95-662, eff. 10-11-07; 95-683, eff. 10-19-07; 95-709, eff. 1-29-08; 95-876, eff. 8-21-08; 95-932, eff. 8-26-08; 95-934, eff. 8-26-08; 95-964, eff. 9-23-08; 95-977, eff. 9-22-08; revised 10-16-08.)

(Text of Section after amendment by P.A. 95-1028)

Sec. 11-74.4-3. Definitions. The following terms, wherever used or referred to in this Division 74.4 shall have the following respective meanings, unless in any case a different meaning clearly appears from the context.

(a) For any redevelopment project area that has been designated pursuant to this Section by an ordinance adopted prior to November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), "blighted area" shall have the meaning set forth in this Section prior to that date.

On and after November 1, 1999, "blighted area" means any improved or vacant area within the boundaries of a redevelopment project area located within the territorial limits of the municipality where:

(1) If improved, industrial, commercial, and residential buildings or improvements are detrimental to the public safety, health, or welfare because of a combination of 5 or more of the following factors, each of which is (i) present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful extent so that a municipality may reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of the Act and (ii) reasonably distributed throughout the improved part of the redevelopment project area:

(A) Dilapidation. An advanced state of disrepair or neglect of necessary repairs to the primary structural components of buildings or improvements in such a combination that a documented building condition analysis determines that major repair is required or the defects are so serious and so extensive that the buildings must be removed.

(B) Obsolescence. The condition or process of falling into disuse. Structures have become ill-suited for the original use.

(C) Deterioration. With respect to buildings, defects including, but not limited to, major defects in the secondary building components such as doors, windows, porches, gutters and downspouts, and fascia. With respect to surface improvements, that the condition of roadways, alleys, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, off-street parking, and surface storage areas evidence deterioration, including, but not limited to, surface cracking, crumbling, potholes, depressions, loose paving material, and weeds protruding through paved surfaces.

(D) Presence of structures below minimum code standards. All structures that do not meet the standards of zoning, subdivision, building, fire, and other governmental codes applicable to property, but not including housing and property maintenance codes.

(E) Illegal use of individual structures. The use of structures in violation of applicable federal, State, or local laws, exclusive of those applicable to the presence of structures below minimum code standards.

(F) Excessive vacancies. The presence of buildings that are unoccupied or under-utilized and that represent an adverse influence on the area because of the frequency, extent, or duration of the vacancies.

(G) Lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities. The absence of adequate ventilation for light or air circulation in spaces or rooms without windows, or that require the removal of dust, odor, gas, smoke, or other noxious airborne materials. Inadequate natural light and ventilation means the absence of skylights or windows for interior spaces or rooms and improper window sizes and amounts by room area to window area ratios. Inadequate sanitary facilities refers to the absence or inadequacy of garbage storage and enclosure, bathroom facilities, hot water and kitchens, and structural inadequacies preventing ingress and egress to and from all rooms and units within a building.

(H) Inadequate utilities. Underground and overhead utilities such as storm sewers and storm drainage, sanitary sewers, water lines, and gas, telephone, and electrical services that are

shown to be inadequate. Inadequate utilities are those that are: (i) of insufficient capacity to serve the uses in the redevelopment project area, (ii) deteriorated, antiquated, obsolete, or in disrepair, or (iii) lacking within the redevelopment project area.

(I) Excessive land coverage and overcrowding of structures and community facilities. The over-intensive use of property and the crowding of buildings and accessory facilities onto a site. Examples of problem conditions warranting the designation of an area as one exhibiting excessive land coverage are: (i) the presence of buildings either improperly situated on parcels or located on parcels of inadequate size and shape in relation to present-day standards of development for health and safety and (ii) the presence of multiple buildings on a single parcel. For there to be a finding of excessive land coverage, these parcels must exhibit one or more of the following conditions: insufficient provision for light and air within or around buildings, increased threat of spread of fire due to the close proximity of buildings, lack of adequate or proper access to a public right-of-way, lack of reasonably required off-street parking, or inadequate provision for loading and service.

(J) Deleterious land use or layout. The existence of incompatible land-use relationships, buildings occupied by inappropriate mixed-uses, or uses considered to be noxious, offensive, or unsuitable for the surrounding area.

(K) Environmental clean-up. The proposed redevelopment project area has incurred Illinois Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental Protection Agency remediation costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant recognized as having expertise in environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-up of hazardous waste, hazardous substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or federal law, provided that the remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the development or redevelopment of the redevelopment project area.

(L) Lack of community planning. The proposed redevelopment project area was developed prior to or without the benefit or guidance of a community plan. This means that the development occurred prior to the adoption by the municipality of a comprehensive or other community plan or that the plan was not followed at the time of the area's development. This factor must be documented by evidence of adverse or incompatible land-use relationships, inadequate street layout, improper subdivision, parcels of inadequate shape and size to meet contemporary development standards, or other evidence demonstrating an absence of effective community planning.

(M) The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5 calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated.

(2) If vacant, the sound growth of the redevelopment project area is impaired by a combination of 2 or more of the following factors, each of which is (i) present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful extent so that a municipality may reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of the Act and (ii) reasonably distributed throughout the vacant part of the redevelopment project area to which it pertains:

(A) Obsolete platting of vacant land that results in parcels of limited or narrow size or configurations of parcels of irregular size or shape that would be difficult to develop on a planned basis and in a manner compatible with contemporary standards and requirements, or platting that failed to create rights-of-ways for streets or alleys or that created inadequate right-of-way widths for streets, alleys, or other public rights-of-way or that omitted easements for public utilities.

(B) Diversity of ownership of parcels of vacant land sufficient in number to retard or impede the ability to assemble the land for development.

(C) Tax and special assessment delinquencies exist or the property has been the subject of tax sales under the Property Tax Code within the last 5 years.

(D) Deterioration of structures or site improvements in neighboring areas adjacent to the vacant land.

(E) The area has incurred Illinois Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental Protection Agency remediation costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant recognized as having expertise in environmental remediation has determined a need for, the

clean-up of hazardous waste, hazardous substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or federal law, provided that the remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the development or redevelopment of the redevelopment project area.

(F) The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5 calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years prior to the year in which the redevelopment project area is designated.

(3) If vacant, the sound growth of the redevelopment project area is impaired by one of the following factors that (i) is present, with that presence documented, to a meaningful extent so that a municipality may reasonably find that the factor is clearly present within the intent of the Act and (ii) is reasonably distributed throughout the vacant part of the redevelopment project area to which it pertains:

(A) The area consists of one or more unused quarries, mines, or strip mine ponds.

(B) The area consists of unused rail yards, rail tracks, or railroad rights-of-way.

(C) The area, prior to its designation, is subject to (i) chronic flooding that adversely impacts on real property in the area as certified by a registered professional engineer or appropriate regulatory agency or (ii) surface water that discharges from all or a part of the area and contributes to flooding within the same watershed, but only if the redevelopment project provides for facilities or improvements to contribute to the alleviation of all or part of the flooding.

(D) The area consists of an unused or illegal disposal site containing earth, stone, building debris, or similar materials that were removed from construction, demolition, excavation, or dredge sites.

(E) Prior to November 1, 1999, the area is not less than 50 nor more than 100 acres and 75% of which is vacant (notwithstanding that the area has been used for commercial agricultural purposes within 5 years prior to the designation of the redevelopment project area), and the area meets at least one of the factors itemized in paragraph (1) of this subsection, the area has been designated as a town or village center by ordinance or comprehensive plan adopted prior to January 1, 1982, and the area has not been developed for that designated purpose.

(F) The area qualified as a blighted improved area immediately prior to becoming vacant, unless there has been substantial private investment in the immediately surrounding area.

(b) For any redevelopment project area that has been designated pursuant to this Section by an ordinance adopted prior to November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), "conservation area" shall have the meaning set forth in this Section prior to that date.

On and after November 1, 1999, "conservation area" means any improved area within the boundaries of a redevelopment project area located within the territorial limits of the municipality in which 50% or more of the structures in the area have an age of 35 years or more. Such an area is not yet a blighted area but because of a combination of 3 or more of the following factors is detrimental to the public safety, health, morals or welfare and such an area may become a blighted area:

(1) Dilapidation. An advanced state of disrepair or neglect of necessary repairs to the primary structural components of buildings or improvements in such a combination that a documented building condition analysis determines that major repair is required or the defects are so serious and so extensive that the buildings must be removed.

(2) Obsolescence. The condition or process of falling into disuse. Structures have become ill-suited for the original use.

(3) Deterioration. With respect to buildings, defects including, but not limited to, major defects in the secondary building components such as doors, windows, porches, gutters and downspouts, and fascia. With respect to surface improvements, that the condition of roadways, alleys, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, off-street parking, and surface storage areas evidence deterioration, including, but not limited to, surface cracking, crumbling, potholes, depressions, loose paving material, and weeds protruding through paved surfaces.

(4) Presence of structures below minimum code standards. All structures that do not meet the standards of zoning, subdivision, building, fire, and other governmental codes applicable to property, but not including housing and property maintenance codes.

(5) Illegal use of individual structures. The use of structures in violation of applicable federal, State, or local laws, exclusive of those applicable to the presence of structures below

minimum code standards.

(6) Excessive vacancies. The presence of buildings that are unoccupied or under-utilized and that represent an adverse influence on the area because of the frequency, extent, or duration of the vacancies.

(7) Lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities. The absence of adequate ventilation for light or air circulation in spaces or rooms without windows, or that require the removal of dust, odor, gas, smoke, or other noxious airborne materials. Inadequate natural light and ventilation means the absence or inadequacy of skylights or windows for interior spaces or rooms and improper window sizes and amounts by room area to window area ratios. Inadequate sanitary facilities refers to the absence or inadequacy of garbage storage and enclosure, bathroom facilities, hot water and kitchens, and structural inadequacies preventing ingress and egress to and from all rooms and units within a building.

(8) Inadequate utilities. Underground and overhead utilities such as storm sewers and storm drainage, sanitary sewers, water lines, and gas, telephone, and electrical services that are shown to be inadequate. Inadequate utilities are those that are: (i) of insufficient capacity to serve the uses in the redevelopment project area, (ii) deteriorated, antiquated, obsolete, or in disrepair, or (iii) lacking within the redevelopment project area.

(9) Excessive land coverage and overcrowding of structures and community facilities. The over-intensive use of property and the crowding of buildings and accessory facilities onto a site. Examples of problem conditions warranting the designation of an area as one exhibiting excessive land coverage are: the presence of buildings either improperly situated on parcels or located on parcels of inadequate size and shape in relation to present-day standards of development for health and safety and the presence of multiple buildings on a single parcel. For there to be a finding of excessive land coverage, these parcels must exhibit one or more of the following conditions: insufficient provision for light and air within or around buildings, increased threat of spread of fire due to the close proximity of buildings, lack of adequate or proper access to a public right-of-way, lack of reasonably required off-street parking, or inadequate provision for loading and service.

(10) Deleterious land use or layout. The existence of incompatible land-use relationships, buildings occupied by inappropriate mixed-uses, or uses considered to be noxious, offensive, or unsuitable for the surrounding area.

(11) Lack of community planning. The proposed redevelopment project area was developed prior to or without the benefit or guidance of a community plan. This means that the development occurred prior to the adoption by the municipality of a comprehensive or other community plan or that the plan was not followed at the time of the area's development. This factor must be documented by evidence of adverse or incompatible land-use relationships, inadequate street layout, improper subdivision, parcels of inadequate shape and size to meet contemporary development standards, or other evidence demonstrating an absence of effective community planning.

(12) The area has incurred Illinois Environmental Protection Agency or United States Environmental Protection Agency remediation costs for, or a study conducted by an independent consultant recognized as having expertise in environmental remediation has determined a need for, the clean-up of hazardous waste, hazardous substances, or underground storage tanks required by State or federal law, provided that the remediation costs constitute a material impediment to the development or redevelopment of the redevelopment project area.

(13) The total equalized assessed value of the proposed redevelopment project area has declined for 3 of the last 5 calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the balance of the municipality for 3 of the last 5 calendar years for which information is available or is increasing at an annual rate that is less than the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers published by the United States Department of Labor or successor agency for 3 of the last 5 calendar years for which information is available.

(c) "Industrial park" means an area in a blighted or conservation area suitable for use by any manufacturing, industrial, research or transportation enterprise, of facilities to include but not be limited to factories, mills, processing plants, assembly plants, packing plants, fabricating plants, industrial distribution centers, warehouses, repair overhaul or service facilities, freight terminals, research facilities, test facilities or railroad facilities.

(d) "Industrial park conservation area" means an area within the boundaries of a redevelopment project area located within the territorial limits of a municipality that is a labor surplus municipality or within 1 1/2 miles of the territorial limits of a municipality that is a labor surplus municipality if the area is annexed to the municipality; which area is zoned as industrial no later than at the time the municipality by ordinance

designates the redevelopment project area, and which area includes both vacant land suitable for use as an industrial park and a blighted area or conservation area contiguous to such vacant land.

(e) "Labor surplus municipality" means a municipality in which, at any time during the 6 months before the municipality by ordinance designates an industrial park conservation area, the unemployment rate was over 6% and was also 100% or more of the national average unemployment rate for that same time as published in the United States Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Statistics publication entitled "The Employment Situation" or its successor publication. For the purpose of this subsection, if unemployment rate statistics for the municipality are not available, the unemployment rate in the municipality shall be deemed to be the same as the unemployment rate in the principal county in which the municipality is located.

(f) "Municipality" shall mean a city, village, incorporated town, or a township that is located in the unincorporated portion of a county with 3 million or more inhabitants, if the county adopted an ordinance that approved the township's redevelopment plan.

(g) "Initial Sales Tax Amounts" means the amount of taxes paid under the Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, Use Tax Act, Service Use Tax Act, the Service Occupation Tax Act, the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act by retailers and servicemen on transactions at places located in a State Sales Tax Boundary during the calendar year 1985.

(g-1) "Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts" means the amount of taxes paid under the Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, Use Tax Act, Service Use Tax Act, the Service Occupation Tax Act, the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act by retailers and servicemen on transactions at places located within the State Sales Tax Boundary revised pursuant to Section 11-74.4-8a(9) of this Act.

(h) "Municipal Sales Tax Increment" means an amount equal to the increase in the aggregate amount of taxes paid to a municipality from the Local Government Tax Fund arising from sales by retailers and servicemen within the redevelopment project area or State Sales Tax Boundary, as the case may be, for as long as the redevelopment project area or State Sales Tax Boundary, as the case may be, exist over and above the aggregate amount of taxes as certified by the Illinois Department of Revenue and paid under the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax Act and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act by retailers and servicemen, on transactions at places of business located in the redevelopment project area or State Sales Tax Boundary, as the case may be, during the base year which shall be the calendar year immediately prior to the year in which the municipality adopted tax increment allocation financing. For purposes of computing the aggregate amount of such taxes for base years occurring prior to 1985, the Department of Revenue shall determine the Initial Sales Tax Amounts for such taxes and deduct therefrom an amount equal to 4% of the aggregate amount of taxes per year for each year the base year is prior to 1985, but not to exceed a total deduction of 12%. The amount so determined shall be known as the "Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts". For purposes of determining the Municipal Sales Tax Increment, the Department of Revenue shall for each period subtract from the amount paid to the municipality from the Local Government Tax Fund arising from sales by retailers and servicemen on transactions located in the redevelopment project area or the State Sales Tax Boundary, as the case may be, the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, the Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts for the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax Act and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act. For the State Fiscal Year 1989, this calculation shall be made by utilizing the calendar year 1987 to determine the tax amounts received. For the State Fiscal Year 1990, this calculation shall be made by utilizing the period from January 1, 1988, until September 30, 1988, to determine the tax amounts received from retailers and servicemen pursuant to the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act, which shall have deducted therefrom nine-twelfths of the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, the Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts as appropriate. For the State Fiscal Year 1991, this calculation shall be made by utilizing the period from October 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, to determine the tax amounts received from retailers and servicemen pursuant to the Municipal Retailers' Occupation Tax and the Municipal Service Occupation Tax Act which shall have deducted therefrom nine-twelfths of the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts as appropriate. For every State Fiscal Year thereafter, the applicable period shall be the 12 months beginning July 1 and ending June 30 to determine the tax amounts received which shall have deducted therefrom the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, the Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts, as the case may be.

(i) "Net State Sales Tax Increment" means the sum of the following: (a) 80% of the first \$100,000 of State Sales Tax Increment annually generated within a State Sales Tax Boundary; (b) 60% of the amount in



excess of \$100,000 but not exceeding \$500,000 of State Sales Tax Increment annually generated within a State Sales Tax Boundary; and (c) 40% of all amounts in excess of \$500,000 of State Sales Tax Increment annually generated within a State Sales Tax Boundary. If, however, a municipality established a tax increment financing district in a county with a population in excess of 3,000,000 before January 1, 1986, and the municipality entered into a contract or issued bonds after January 1, 1986, but before December 31, 1986, to finance redevelopment project costs within a State Sales Tax Boundary, then the Net State Sales Tax Increment means, for the fiscal years beginning July 1, 1990, and July 1, 1991, 100% of the State Sales Tax Increment annually generated within a State Sales Tax Boundary; and notwithstanding any other provision of this Act, for those fiscal years the Department of Revenue shall distribute to those municipalities 100% of their Net State Sales Tax Increment before any distribution to any other municipality and regardless of whether or not those other municipalities will receive 100% of their Net State Sales Tax Increment. For Fiscal Year 1999, and every year thereafter until the year 2007, for any municipality that has not entered into a contract or has not issued bonds prior to June 1, 1988 to finance redevelopment project costs within a State Sales Tax Boundary, the Net State Sales Tax Increment shall be calculated as follows: By multiplying the Net State Sales Tax Increment by 90% in the State Fiscal Year 1999; 80% in the State Fiscal Year 2000; 70% in the State Fiscal Year 2001; 60% in the State Fiscal Year 2002; 50% in the State Fiscal Year 2003; 40% in the State Fiscal Year 2004; 30% in the State Fiscal Year 2005; 20% in the State Fiscal Year 2006; and 10% in the State Fiscal Year 2007. No payment shall be made for State Fiscal Year 2008 and thereafter.

Municipalities that issued bonds in connection with a redevelopment project in a redevelopment project area within the State Sales Tax Boundary prior to July 29, 1991, or that entered into contracts in connection with a redevelopment project in a redevelopment project area before June 1, 1988, shall continue to receive their proportional share of the Illinois Tax Increment Fund distribution until the date on which the redevelopment project is completed or terminated. If, however, a municipality that issued bonds in connection with a redevelopment project in a redevelopment project area within the State Sales Tax Boundary prior to July 29, 1991 retires the bonds prior to June 30, 2007 or a municipality that entered into contracts in connection with a redevelopment project in a redevelopment project area before June 1, 1988 completes the contracts prior to June 30, 2007, then so long as the redevelopment project is not completed or is not terminated, the Net State Sales Tax Increment shall be calculated, beginning on the date on which the bonds are retired or the contracts are completed, as follows: By multiplying the Net State Sales Tax Increment by 60% in the State Fiscal Year 2002; 50% in the State Fiscal Year 2003; 40% in the State Fiscal Year 2004; 30% in the State Fiscal Year 2005; 20% in the State Fiscal Year 2006; and 10% in the State Fiscal Year 2007. No payment shall be made for State Fiscal Year 2008 and thereafter. Refunding of any bonds issued prior to July 29, 1991, shall not alter the Net State Sales Tax Increment.

(j) "State Utility Tax Increment Amount" means an amount equal to the aggregate increase in State electric and gas tax charges imposed on owners and tenants, other than residential customers, of properties located within the redevelopment project area under Section 9-222 of the Public Utilities Act, over and above the aggregate of such charges as certified by the Department of Revenue and paid by owners and tenants, other than residential customers, of properties within the redevelopment project area during the base year, which shall be the calendar year immediately prior to the year of the adoption of the ordinance authorizing tax increment allocation financing.

(k) "Net State Utility Tax Increment" means the sum of the following: (a) 80% of the first \$100,000 of State Utility Tax Increment annually generated by a redevelopment project area; (b) 60% of the amount in excess of \$100,000 but not exceeding \$500,000 of the State Utility Tax Increment annually generated by a redevelopment project area; and (c) 40% of all amounts in excess of \$500,000 of State Utility Tax Increment annually generated by a redevelopment project area. For the State Fiscal Year 1999, and every year thereafter until the year 2007, for any municipality that has not entered into a contract or has not issued bonds prior to June 1, 1988 to finance redevelopment project costs within a redevelopment project area, the Net State Utility Tax Increment shall be calculated as follows: By multiplying the Net State Utility Tax Increment by 90% in the State Fiscal Year 1999; 80% in the State Fiscal Year 2000; 70% in the State Fiscal Year 2001; 60% in the State Fiscal Year 2002; 50% in the State Fiscal Year 2003; 40% in the State Fiscal Year 2004; 30% in the State Fiscal Year 2005; 20% in the State Fiscal Year 2006; and 10% in the State Fiscal Year 2007. No payment shall be made for the State Fiscal Year 2008 and thereafter.

Municipalities that issue bonds in connection with the redevelopment project during the period from June 1, 1988 until 3 years after the effective date of this Amendatory Act of 1988 shall receive the Net State Utility Tax Increment, subject to appropriation, for 15 State Fiscal Years after the issuance of such bonds. For the 16th through the 20th State Fiscal Years after issuance of the bonds, the Net State Utility

Tax Increment shall be calculated as follows: By multiplying the Net State Utility Tax Increment by 90% in year 16; 80% in year 17; 70% in year 18; 60% in year 19; and 50% in year 20. Refunding of any bonds issued prior to June 1, 1988, shall not alter the revised Net State Utility Tax Increment payments set forth above.

(l) "Obligations" mean bonds, loans, debentures, notes, special certificates or other evidence of indebtedness issued by the municipality to carry out a redevelopment project or to refund outstanding obligations.

(m) "Payment in lieu of taxes" means those estimated tax revenues from real property in a redevelopment project area derived from real property that has been acquired by a municipality which according to the redevelopment project or plan is to be used for a private use which taxing districts would have received had a municipality not acquired the real property and adopted tax increment allocation financing and which would result from levies made after the time of the adoption of tax increment allocation financing to the time the current equalized value of real property in the redevelopment project area exceeds the total initial equalized value of real property in said area.

(n) "Redevelopment plan" means the comprehensive program of the municipality for development or redevelopment intended by the payment of redevelopment project costs to reduce or eliminate those conditions the existence of which qualified the redevelopment project area as a "blighted area" or "conservation area" or combination thereof or "industrial park conservation area," and thereby to enhance the tax bases of the taxing districts which extend into the redevelopment project area. On and after November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), no redevelopment plan may be approved or amended that includes the development of vacant land (i) with a golf course and related clubhouse and other facilities or (ii) designated by federal, State, county, or municipal government as public land for outdoor recreational activities or for nature preserves and used for that purpose within 5 years prior to the adoption of the redevelopment plan. For the purpose of this subsection, "recreational activities" is limited to mean camping and hunting. Each redevelopment plan shall set forth in writing the program to be undertaken to accomplish the objectives and shall include but not be limited to:

(A) an itemized list of estimated redevelopment project costs;

(B) evidence indicating that the redevelopment project area on the whole has not been subject to growth and development through investment by private enterprise;

(C) an assessment of any financial impact of the redevelopment project area on or any increased demand for services from any taxing district affected by the plan and any program to address such financial impact or increased demand;

(D) the sources of funds to pay costs;

(E) the nature and term of the obligations to be issued;

(F) the most recent equalized assessed valuation of the redevelopment project area;

(G) an estimate as to the equalized assessed valuation after redevelopment and the general land uses to apply in the redevelopment project area;

(H) a commitment to fair employment practices and an affirmative action plan;

(I) if it concerns an industrial park conservation area, the plan shall also include a general description of any proposed developer, user and tenant of any property, a description of the type, structure and general character of the facilities to be developed, a description of the type, class and number of new employees to be employed in the operation of the facilities to be developed; and

(J) if property is to be annexed to the municipality, the plan shall include the terms of the annexation agreement.

The provisions of items (B) and (C) of this subsection (n) shall not apply to a municipality that before March 14, 1994 (the effective date of Public Act 88-537) had fixed, either by its corporate authorities or by a commission designated under subsection (k) of Section 11-74.4-4, a time and place for a public hearing as required by subsection (a) of Section 11-74.4-5. No redevelopment plan shall be adopted unless a municipality complies with all of the following requirements:

(1) The municipality finds that the redevelopment project area on the whole has not been subject to growth and development through investment by private enterprise and would not reasonably be anticipated to be developed without the adoption of the redevelopment plan.

(2) The municipality finds that the redevelopment plan and project conform to the comprehensive plan for the development of the municipality as a whole, or, for municipalities with a population of 100,000 or more, regardless of when the redevelopment plan and project was adopted, the redevelopment plan and project either: (i) conforms to the strategic economic development or redevelopment plan issued by the designated planning authority of the municipality, or (ii) includes land

uses that have been approved by the planning commission of the municipality.

(3) The redevelopment plan establishes the estimated dates of completion of the redevelopment project and retirement of obligations issued to finance redevelopment project costs. Those dates may not be later than the dates set forth under Section 11-74.4-3.5., or ~~(DDD)~~ ~~(EEE)~~, or ~~(FFF)~~, or ~~(GGG)~~, or ~~(HHH)~~, or ~~(III)~~, or ~~(JJJ)~~, ~~(KKK)~~, ~~(LLL)~~ ~~(MMM)~~, or ~~(NNN)~~ if the ordinance was adopted on December 23, 1986 by the Village of Libertyville. ~~(NNN)~~ if the ordinance was adopted on December 22, 1986 by the Village of Hoffman Estates.

A municipality may by municipal ordinance amend an existing redevelopment plan to conform to this paragraph (3) as amended by Public Act 91-478, which municipal ordinance may be adopted without further hearing or notice and without complying with the procedures provided in this Act pertaining to an amendment to or the initial approval of a redevelopment plan and project and designation of a redevelopment project area.

(3.5) The municipality finds, in the case of an industrial park conservation area, also that the municipality is a labor surplus municipality and that the implementation of the redevelopment plan will reduce unemployment, create new jobs and by the provision of new facilities enhance the tax base of the taxing districts that extend into the redevelopment project area.

(4) If any incremental revenues are being utilized under Section 8(a)(1) or 8(a)(2) of this Act in redevelopment project areas approved by ordinance after January 1, 1986, the municipality finds: (a) that the redevelopment project area would not reasonably be developed without the use of such incremental revenues, and (b) that such incremental revenues will be exclusively utilized for the development of the redevelopment project area.

(5) If the redevelopment plan will not result in displacement of residents from 10 or more inhabited residential units, and the municipality certifies in the plan that such displacement will not result from the plan, a housing impact study need not be performed. If, however, the redevelopment plan would result in the displacement of residents from 10 or more inhabited residential units, or if the redevelopment project area contains 75 or more inhabited residential units and no certification is made, then the municipality shall prepare, as part of the separate feasibility report required by subsection (a) of Section 11-74.4-5, a housing impact study.

Part I of the housing impact study shall include (i) data as to whether the residential units are single family or multi-family units, (ii) the number and type of rooms within the units, if that information is available, (iii) whether the units are inhabited or uninhabited, as determined not less than 45 days before the date that the ordinance or resolution required by subsection (a) of Section 11-74.4-5 is passed, and (iv) data as to the racial and ethnic composition of the residents in the inhabited residential units. The data requirement as to the racial and ethnic composition of the residents in the inhabited residential units shall be deemed to be fully satisfied by data from the most recent federal census.

Part II of the housing impact study shall identify the inhabited residential units in the proposed redevelopment project area that are to be or may be removed. If inhabited residential units are to be removed, then the housing impact study shall identify (i) the number and location of those units that will or may be removed, (ii) the municipality's plans for relocation assistance for those residents in the proposed redevelopment project area whose residences are to be removed, (iii) the availability of replacement housing for those residents whose residences are to be removed, and shall identify the type, location, and cost of the housing, and (iv) the type and extent of relocation assistance to be provided.

(6) On and after November 1, 1999, the housing impact study required by paragraph (5) shall be incorporated in the redevelopment plan for the redevelopment project area.

(7) On and after November 1, 1999, no redevelopment plan shall be adopted, nor an existing plan amended, nor shall residential housing that is occupied by households of low-income and very low-income persons in currently existing redevelopment project areas be removed after November 1, 1999 unless the redevelopment plan provides, with respect to inhabited housing units that are to be removed for households of low-income and very low-income persons, affordable housing and relocation assistance not less than that which would be provided under the federal Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and the regulations under that Act, including the eligibility criteria. Affordable housing may be either existing or newly constructed housing. For purposes of this paragraph (7), "low-income households", "very low-income households", and "affordable housing" have the meanings set forth in the Illinois Affordable Housing Act. The municipality shall make a good faith effort to ensure that this affordable housing is located in or near the redevelopment project area within the municipality.

(8) On and after November 1, 1999, if, after the adoption of the redevelopment plan for

the redevelopment project area, any municipality desires to amend its redevelopment plan to remove more inhabited residential units than specified in its original redevelopment plan, that change shall be made in accordance with the procedures in subsection (c) of Section 11-74.4-5.

(9) For redevelopment project areas designated prior to November 1, 1999, the redevelopment plan may be amended without further joint review board meeting or hearing, provided that the municipality shall give notice of any such changes by mail to each affected taxing district and registrant on the interested party registry, to authorize the municipality to expend tax increment revenues for redevelopment project costs defined by paragraphs (5) and (7.5), subparagraphs (E) and (F) of paragraph (11), and paragraph (11.5) of subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3, so long as the changes do not increase the total estimated redevelopment project costs set out in the redevelopment plan by more than 5% after adjustment for inflation from the date the plan was adopted.

(o) "Redevelopment project" means any public and private development project in furtherance of the objectives of a redevelopment plan. On and after November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), no redevelopment plan may be approved or amended that includes the development of vacant land (i) with a golf course and related clubhouse and other facilities or (ii) designated by federal, State, county, or municipal government as public land for outdoor recreational activities or for nature preserves and used for that purpose within 5 years prior to the adoption of the redevelopment plan. For the purpose of this subsection, "recreational activities" is limited to mean camping and hunting.

(p) "Redevelopment project area" means an area designated by the municipality, which is not less in the aggregate than 1 1/2 acres and in respect to which the municipality has made a finding that there exist conditions which cause the area to be classified as an industrial park conservation area or a blighted area or a conservation area, or a combination of both blighted areas and conservation areas.

(q) "Redevelopment project costs" mean and include the sum total of all reasonable or necessary costs incurred or estimated to be incurred, and any such costs incidental to a redevelopment plan and a redevelopment project. Such costs include, without limitation, the following:

(1) Costs of studies, surveys, development of plans, and specifications, implementation and administration of the redevelopment plan including but not limited to staff and professional service costs for architectural, engineering, legal, financial, planning or other services, provided however that no charges for professional services may be based on a percentage of the tax increment collected; except that on and after November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), no contracts for professional services, excluding architectural and engineering services, may be entered into if the terms of the contract extend beyond a period of 3 years. In addition, "redevelopment project costs" shall not include lobbying expenses. After consultation with the municipality, each tax increment consultant or advisor to a municipality that plans to designate or has designated a redevelopment project area shall inform the municipality in writing of any contracts that the consultant or advisor has entered into with entities or individuals that have received, or are receiving, payments financed by tax increment revenues produced by the redevelopment project area with respect to which the consultant or advisor has performed, or will be performing, service for the municipality. This requirement shall be satisfied by the consultant or advisor before the commencement of services for the municipality and thereafter whenever any other contracts with those individuals or entities are executed by the consultant or advisor;

(1.5) After July 1, 1999, annual administrative costs shall not include general overhead or administrative costs of the municipality that would still have been incurred by the municipality if the municipality had not designated a redevelopment project area or approved a redevelopment plan;

(1.6) The cost of marketing sites within the redevelopment project area to prospective businesses, developers, and investors;

(2) Property assembly costs, including but not limited to acquisition of land and other property, real or personal, or rights or interests therein, demolition of buildings, site preparation, site improvements that serve as an engineered barrier addressing ground level or below ground environmental contamination, including, but not limited to parking lots and other concrete or asphalt barriers, and the clearing and grading of land;

(3) Costs of rehabilitation, reconstruction or repair or remodeling of existing public or private buildings, fixtures, and leasehold improvements; and the cost of replacing an existing public building if pursuant to the implementation of a redevelopment project the existing public building is to be demolished to use the site for private investment or devoted to a different use requiring private investment;

(4) Costs of the construction of public works or improvements, except that on and after

November 1, 1999, redevelopment project costs shall not include the cost of constructing a new municipal public building principally used to provide offices, storage space, or conference facilities or vehicle storage, maintenance, or repair for administrative, public safety, or public works personnel and that is not intended to replace an existing public building as provided under paragraph (3) of subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3 unless either (i) the construction of the new municipal building implements a redevelopment project that was included in a redevelopment plan that was adopted by the municipality prior to November 1, 1999 or (ii) the municipality makes a reasonable determination in the redevelopment plan, supported by information that provides the basis for that determination, that the new municipal building is required to meet an increase in the need for public safety purposes anticipated to result from the implementation of the redevelopment plan;

(5) Costs of job training and retraining projects, including the cost of "welfare to work" programs implemented by businesses located within the redevelopment project area;

(6) Financing costs, including but not limited to all necessary and incidental expenses related to the issuance of obligations and which may include payment of interest on any obligations issued hereunder including interest accruing during the estimated period of construction of any redevelopment project for which such obligations are issued and for not exceeding 36 months thereafter and including reasonable reserves related thereto;

(7) To the extent the municipality by written agreement accepts and approves the same, all or a portion of a taxing district's capital costs resulting from the redevelopment project necessarily incurred or to be incurred within a taxing district in furtherance of the objectives of the redevelopment plan and project.

(7.5) For redevelopment project areas designated (or redevelopment project areas amended to add or increase the number of tax-increment-financing assisted housing units) on or after November 1, 1999, an elementary, secondary, or unit school district's increased costs attributable to assisted housing units located within the redevelopment project area for which the developer or redeveloper receives financial assistance through an agreement with the municipality or because the municipality incurs the cost of necessary infrastructure improvements within the boundaries of the assisted housing sites necessary for the completion of that housing as authorized by this Act, and which costs shall be paid by the municipality from the Special Tax Allocation Fund when the tax increment revenue is received as a result of the assisted housing units and shall be calculated annually as follows:

(A) for foundation districts, excluding any school district in a municipality with a population in excess of 1,000,000, by multiplying the district's increase in attendance resulting from the net increase in new students enrolled in that school district who reside in housing units within the redevelopment project area that have received financial assistance through an agreement with the municipality or because the municipality incurs the cost of necessary infrastructure improvements within the boundaries of the housing sites necessary for the completion of that housing as authorized by this Act since the designation of the redevelopment project area by the most recently available per capita tuition cost as defined in Section 10-20.12a of the School Code less any increase in general State aid as defined in Section 18-8.05 of the School Code attributable to these added new students subject to the following annual limitations:

(i) for unit school districts with a district average 1995-96 Per Capita

Tuition Charge of less than \$5,900, no more than 25% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act;

(ii) for elementary school districts with a district average 1995-96 Per Capita

Tuition Charge of less than \$5,900, no more than 17% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act; and

(iii) for secondary school districts with a district average 1995-96 Per Capita

Tuition Charge of less than \$5,900, no more than 8% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act.

(B) For alternate method districts, flat grant districts, and foundation districts with a district average 1995-96 Per Capita Tuition Charge equal to or more than \$5,900, excluding any school district with a population in excess of 1,000,000, by multiplying the district's increase in attendance resulting from the net increase in new students enrolled in that school district who reside in housing units within the redevelopment project area that have received financial assistance through an

agreement with the municipality or because the municipality incurs the cost of necessary infrastructure improvements within the boundaries of the housing sites necessary for the completion of that housing as authorized by this Act since the designation of the redevelopment project area by the most recently available per capita tuition cost as defined in Section 10-20.12a of the School Code less any increase in general state aid as defined in Section 18-8.05 of the School Code attributable to these added new students subject to the following annual limitations:

(i) for unit school districts, no more than 40% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act;

(ii) for elementary school districts, no more than 27% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act; and

(iii) for secondary school districts, no more than 13% of the total amount of property tax increment revenue produced by those housing units that have received tax increment finance assistance under this Act.

(C) For any school district in a municipality with a population in excess of 1,000,000, the following restrictions shall apply to the reimbursement of increased costs under this paragraph (7.5):

(i) no increased costs shall be reimbursed unless the school district certifies that each of the schools affected by the assisted housing project is at or over its student capacity;

(ii) the amount reimbursable shall be reduced by the value of any land donated to the school district by the municipality or developer, and by the value of any physical improvements made to the schools by the municipality or developer; and

(iii) the amount reimbursed may not affect amounts otherwise obligated by the terms of any bonds, notes, or other funding instruments, or the terms of any redevelopment agreement.

Any school district seeking payment under this paragraph (7.5) shall, after July 1 and before September 30 of each year, provide the municipality with reasonable evidence to support its claim for reimbursement before the municipality shall be required to approve or make the payment to the school district. If the school district fails to provide the information during this period in any year, it shall forfeit any claim to reimbursement for that year. School districts may adopt a resolution waiving the right to all or a portion of the reimbursement otherwise required by this paragraph (7.5). By acceptance of this reimbursement the school district waives the right to directly or indirectly set aside, modify, or contest in any manner the establishment of the redevelopment project area or projects;

(7.7) For redevelopment project areas designated (or redevelopment project areas amended to add or increase the number of tax-increment-financing assisted housing units) on or after January 1, 2005 (the effective date of Public Act 93-961), a public library district's increased costs attributable to assisted housing units located within the redevelopment project area for which the developer or redeveloper receives financial assistance through an agreement with the municipality or because the municipality incurs the cost of necessary infrastructure improvements within the boundaries of the assisted housing sites necessary for the completion of that housing as authorized by this Act shall be paid to the library district by the municipality from the Special Tax Allocation Fund when the tax increment revenue is received as a result of the assisted housing units. This paragraph (7.7) applies only if (i) the library district is located in a county that is subject to the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law or (ii) the library district is not located in a county that is subject to the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law but the district is prohibited by any other law from increasing its tax levy rate without a prior voter referendum.

The amount paid to a library district under this paragraph (7.7) shall be calculated by multiplying (i) the net increase in the number of persons eligible to obtain a library card in that district who reside in housing units within the redevelopment project area that have received financial assistance through an agreement with the municipality or because the municipality incurs the cost of necessary infrastructure improvements within the boundaries of the housing sites necessary for the completion of that housing as authorized by this Act since the designation of the redevelopment project area by (ii) the per-patron cost of providing library services so long as it does not exceed \$120. The per-patron cost shall be the Total Operating Expenditures Per Capita as stated in the most recent Illinois Public Library Statistics produced by the Library Research Center at the University of Illinois. The municipality may

deduct from the amount that it must pay to a library district under this paragraph any amount that it has voluntarily paid to the library district from the tax increment revenue. The amount paid to a library district under this paragraph (7.7) shall be no more than 2% of the amount produced by the assisted housing units and deposited into the Special Tax Allocation Fund.

A library district is not eligible for any payment under this paragraph (7.7) unless the library district has experienced an increase in the number of patrons from the municipality that created the tax-increment-financing district since the designation of the redevelopment project area.

Any library district seeking payment under this paragraph (7.7) shall, after July 1 and before September 30 of each year, provide the municipality with convincing evidence to support its claim for reimbursement before the municipality shall be required to approve or make the payment to the library district. If the library district fails to provide the information during this period in any year, it shall forfeit any claim to reimbursement for that year. Library districts may adopt a resolution waiving the right to all or a portion of the reimbursement otherwise required by this paragraph (7.7). By acceptance of such reimbursement, the library district shall forfeit any right to directly or indirectly set aside, modify, or contest in any manner whatsoever the establishment of the redevelopment project area or projects;

(7.9) For redevelopment project areas designated or amended on or after January 1, 2010, if a fire protection district is not subject to an intergovernmental agreement with the municipality for the purposes of funding increased costs of the district because of new development, then the fire protection district's increased costs attributable to the redevelopment project area may be paid to the fire protection district by the municipality from the Special Tax Allocation Fund when the tax increment revenue is received.

The amount paid to a fire protection district under this paragraph (7.9) may be calculated as follows:

(A) By multiplying (i) the net increase in the number of persons served by the fire protection district by (ii) the fire protection district's per-person cost of providing fire protection services.

(B) If a redevelopment project area contains one or more buildings over 2 stories in height, and if the fire protection district serving the redevelopment project area does not possess a ladder apparatus capable of reaching the roof of the tallest building in the redevelopment project area, the amount paid to the fire protection district under this paragraph (7.9) may include the cost of a ladder apparatus capable of reaching the roof of the tallest building in the redevelopment project area.

(C) If the development of the redevelopment project area requires the purchase of new apparatus or equipment, or the addition of new personnel to serve the needs of the redevelopment project area, the amount paid to the fire protection district under this paragraph (7.9) may include the cost of new apparatus or equipment, or the addition of new personnel.

(D) If the development of the redevelopment project area requires the construction of a new fire station to serve the increased needs of the redevelopment project area, the amount paid to the fire protection district under this paragraph (7.9) may include the cost to design and construct the new fire station, as well as the cost of apparatus, equipment, and personnel for the new fire station.

Any fire protection district seeking payment under this paragraph (7.9) shall, after July 1 and before September 30 of each year, provide the municipality with convincing evidence to support a claim for reimbursement before the municipality may approve or make a payment to the fire protection district. If a fire protection district accepts payment from a municipality under this paragraph (7.9), then the fire protection district shall forfeit any right to directly or indirectly set aside, modify, or contest in any manner whatsoever the establishment of the redevelopment project area or projects.

(8) Relocation costs to the extent that a municipality determines that relocation costs shall be paid or is required to make payment of relocation costs by federal or State law or in order to satisfy subparagraph (7) of subsection (n);

(9) Payment in lieu of taxes;

(10) Costs of job training, retraining, advanced vocational education or career education, including but not limited to courses in occupational, semi-technical or technical fields leading directly to employment, incurred by one or more taxing districts, provided that such costs (i) are related to the establishment and maintenance of additional job training, advanced vocational education or career education programs for persons employed or to be employed by employers located in a redevelopment project area; and (ii) when incurred by a taxing district or taxing districts other than the municipality, are set forth in a written agreement by or among the municipality and the taxing district or taxing districts, which agreement describes the program to be undertaken, including but not limited to the number of employees to be trained, a description of the training and services to be provided, the number and type of positions available or to be available, itemized costs of the program and sources of funds to pay for the

same, and the term of the agreement. Such costs include, specifically, the payment by community college districts of costs pursuant to Sections 3-37, 3-38, 3-40 and 3-40.1 of the Public Community College Act and by school districts of costs pursuant to Sections 10-22.20a and 10-23.3a of The School Code;

(11) Interest cost incurred by a redeveloper related to the construction, renovation or rehabilitation of a redevelopment project provided that:

(A) such costs are to be paid directly from the special tax allocation fund established pursuant to this Act;

(B) such payments in any one year may not exceed 30% of the annual interest costs incurred by the redeveloper with regard to the redevelopment project during that year;

(C) if there are not sufficient funds available in the special tax allocation fund to make the payment pursuant to this paragraph (11) then the amounts so due shall accrue and be payable when sufficient funds are available in the special tax allocation fund;

(D) the total of such interest payments paid pursuant to this Act may not exceed 30% of the total (i) cost paid or incurred by the redeveloper for the redevelopment project plus (ii) redevelopment project costs excluding any property assembly costs and any relocation costs incurred by a municipality pursuant to this Act; and

(E) the cost limits set forth in subparagraphs (B) and (D) of paragraph (11) shall be modified for the financing of rehabilitated or new housing units for low-income households and very low-income households, as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act. The percentage of 75% shall be substituted for 30% in subparagraphs (B) and (D) of paragraph (11).

(F) Instead of the eligible costs provided by subparagraphs (B) and (D) of paragraph (11), as modified by this subparagraph, and notwithstanding any other provisions of this Act to the contrary, the municipality may pay from tax increment revenues up to 50% of the cost of construction of new housing units to be occupied by low-income households and very low-income households as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act. The cost of construction of those units may be derived from the proceeds of bonds issued by the municipality under this Act or other constitutional or statutory authority or from other sources of municipal revenue that may be reimbursed from tax increment revenues or the proceeds of bonds issued to finance the construction of that housing.

The eligible costs provided under this subparagraph (F) of paragraph (11) shall be an eligible cost for the construction, renovation, and rehabilitation of all low and very low-income housing units, as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act, within the redevelopment project area. If the low and very low-income units are part of a residential redevelopment project that includes units not affordable to low and very low-income households, only the low and very low-income units shall be eligible for benefits under subparagraph (F) of paragraph (11). The standards for maintaining the occupancy by low-income households and very low-income households, as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act, of those units constructed with eligible costs made available under the provisions of this subparagraph (F) of paragraph (11) shall be established by guidelines adopted by the municipality. The responsibility for annually documenting the initial occupancy of the units by low-income households and very low-income households, as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act, shall be that of the then current owner of the property. For ownership units, the guidelines will provide, at a minimum, for a reasonable recapture of funds, or other appropriate methods designed to preserve the original affordability of the ownership units. For rental units, the guidelines will provide, at a minimum, for the affordability of rent to low and very low-income households. As units become available, they shall be rented to income-eligible tenants. The municipality may modify these guidelines from time to time; the guidelines, however, shall be in effect for as long as tax increment revenue is being used to pay for costs associated with the units or for the retirement of bonds issued to finance the units or for the life of the redevelopment project area, whichever is later.

(11.5) If the redevelopment project area is located within a municipality with a population of more than 100,000, the cost of day care services for children of employees from low-income families working for businesses located within the redevelopment project area and all or a portion of the cost of operation of day care centers established by redevelopment project area businesses to serve employees from low-income families working in businesses located in the redevelopment project area. For the purposes of this paragraph, "low-income families" means families whose annual income does not exceed 80% of the municipal, county, or regional median income, adjusted for family size, as the annual income and municipal, county, or regional median income are determined from time



to time by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.

(12) Unless explicitly stated herein the cost of construction of new privately-owned buildings shall not be an eligible redevelopment project cost.

(13) After November 1, 1999 (the effective date of Public Act 91-478), none of the redevelopment project costs enumerated in this subsection shall be eligible redevelopment project costs if those costs would provide direct financial support to a retail entity initiating operations in the redevelopment project area while terminating operations at another Illinois location within 10 miles of the redevelopment project area but outside the boundaries of the redevelopment project area municipality. For purposes of this paragraph, termination means a closing of a retail operation that is directly related to the opening of the same operation or like retail entity owned or operated by more than 50% of the original ownership in a redevelopment project area, but it does not mean closing an operation for reasons beyond the control of the retail entity, as documented by the retail entity, subject to a reasonable finding by the municipality that the current location contained inadequate space, had become economically obsolete, or was no longer a viable location for the retailer or serviceman.

(14) No cost shall be a redevelopment project cost in a redevelopment project area if used to demolish, remove, or substantially modify a historic resource, after August 26, 2008 (the effective date of Public Act 95-934) ~~this amendatory Act of the 95th General Assembly~~, unless no prudent and feasible alternative exists. "Historic resource" for the purpose of this item (14) means (i) a place or structure that is included or eligible for inclusion on the National Register of Historic Places or (ii) a contributing structure in a district on the National Register of Historic Places. This item (14) does not apply to a place or structure for which demolition, removal, or modification is subject to review by the preservation agency of a Certified Local Government designated as such by the National Park Service of the United States Department of the Interior.

If a special service area has been established pursuant to the Special Service Area Tax Act or Special Service Area Tax Law, then any tax increment revenues derived from the tax imposed pursuant to the Special Service Area Tax Act or Special Service Area Tax Law may be used within the redevelopment project area for the purposes permitted by that Act or Law as well as the purposes permitted by this Act.

(r) "State Sales Tax Boundary" means the redevelopment project area or the amended redevelopment project area boundaries which are determined pursuant to subsection (9) of Section 11-74.4-8a of this Act. The Department of Revenue shall certify pursuant to subsection (9) of Section 11-74.4-8a the appropriate boundaries eligible for the determination of State Sales Tax Increment.

(s) "State Sales Tax Increment" means an amount equal to the increase in the aggregate amount of taxes paid by retailers and servicemen, other than retailers and servicemen subject to the Public Utilities Act, on transactions at places of business located within a State Sales Tax Boundary pursuant to the Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, the Use Tax Act, the Service Use Tax Act, and the Service Occupation Tax Act, except such portion of such increase that is paid into the State and Local Sales Tax Reform Fund, the Local Government Distributive Fund, the Local Government Tax Fund and the County and Mass Transit District Fund, for as long as State participation exists, over and above the Initial Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts for such taxes as certified by the Department of Revenue and paid under those Acts by retailers and servicemen on transactions at places of business located within the State Sales Tax Boundary during the base year which shall be the calendar year immediately prior to the year in which the municipality adopted tax increment allocation financing, less 3.0% of such amounts generated under the Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, Use Tax Act and Service Use Tax Act and the Service Occupation Tax Act, which sum shall be appropriated to the Department of Revenue to cover its costs of administering and enforcing this Section. For purposes of computing the aggregate amount of such taxes for base years occurring prior to 1985, the Department of Revenue shall compute the Initial Sales Tax Amount for such taxes and deduct therefrom an amount equal to 4% of the aggregate amount of taxes per year for each year the base year is prior to 1985, but not to exceed a total deduction of 12%. The amount so determined shall be known as the "Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amount". For purposes of determining the State Sales Tax Increment the Department of Revenue shall for each period subtract from the tax amounts received from retailers and servicemen on transactions located in the State Sales Tax Boundary, the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts for the Retailers' Occupation Tax Act, the Use Tax Act, the Service Use Tax Act and the Service Occupation Tax Act. For the State Fiscal Year 1989 this calculation shall be made by utilizing the calendar year 1987 to determine the tax amounts received. For the State Fiscal Year 1990, this calculation shall be made by utilizing the period from January 1, 1988, until September 30, 1988, to determine the tax amounts received from retailers and servicemen, which shall have deducted therefrom

nine-twelfths of the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts as appropriate. For the State Fiscal Year 1991, this calculation shall be made by utilizing the period from October 1, 1988, until June 30, 1989, to determine the tax amounts received from retailers and servicemen, which shall have deducted therefrom nine-twelfths of the certified Initial State Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts as appropriate. For every State Fiscal Year thereafter, the applicable period shall be the 12 months beginning July 1 and ending on June 30, to determine the tax amounts received which shall have deducted therefrom the certified Initial Sales Tax Amounts, Adjusted Initial Sales Tax Amounts or the Revised Initial Sales Tax Amounts. Municipalities intending to receive a distribution of State Sales Tax Increment must report a list of retailers to the Department of Revenue by October 31, 1988 and by July 31, of each year thereafter.

(t) "Taxing districts" means counties, townships, cities and incorporated towns and villages, school, road, park, sanitary, mosquito abatement, forest preserve, public health, fire protection, river conservancy, tuberculosis sanitarium and any other municipal corporations or districts with the power to levy taxes.

(u) "Taxing districts' capital costs" means those costs of taxing districts for capital improvements that are found by the municipal corporate authorities to be necessary and directly result from the redevelopment project.

(v) As used in subsection (a) of Section 11-74.4-3 of this Act, "vacant land" means any parcel or combination of parcels of real property without industrial, commercial, and residential buildings which has not been used for commercial agricultural purposes within 5 years prior to the designation of the redevelopment project area, unless the parcel is included in an industrial park conservation area or the parcel has been subdivided; provided that if the parcel was part of a larger tract that has been divided into 3 or more smaller tracts that were accepted for recording during the period from 1950 to 1990, then the parcel shall be deemed to have been subdivided, and all proceedings and actions of the municipality taken in that connection with respect to any previously approved or designated redevelopment project area or amended redevelopment project area are hereby validated and hereby declared to be legally sufficient for all purposes of this Act. For purposes of this Section and only for land subject to the subdivision requirements of the Plat Act, land is subdivided when the original plat of the proposed Redevelopment Project Area or relevant portion thereof has been properly certified, acknowledged, approved, and recorded or filed in accordance with the Plat Act and a preliminary plat, if any, for any subsequent phases of the proposed Redevelopment Project Area or relevant portion thereof has been properly approved and filed in accordance with the applicable ordinance of the municipality.

(w) "Annual Total Increment" means the sum of each municipality's annual Net Sales Tax Increment and each municipality's annual Net Utility Tax Increment. The ratio of the Annual Total Increment of each municipality to the Annual Total Increment for all municipalities, as most recently calculated by the Department, shall determine the proportional shares of the Illinois Tax Increment Fund to be distributed to each municipality.

(Source: P.A. 94-260, eff. 7-19-05; 94-268, eff. 7-19-05; 94-297, eff. 7-21-05; 94-302, eff. 7-21-05; 94-702, eff. 6-1-06; 94-704, eff. 12-5-05; 94-711, eff. 6-1-06; 94-778, eff. 5-19-06; 94-782, eff. 5-19-06; 94-783, eff. 5-19-06; 94-810, eff. 5-26-06; 94-903, eff. 6-22-06; 94-1091, eff. 1-26-07; 94-1092, eff. 1-26-07; 95-15, eff. 7-16-07; 95-164, eff. 1-1-08; 95-331, eff. 8-21-07; 95-346, eff. 8-21-07; 95-459, eff. 8-27-07; 95-653, eff. 1-1-08; 95-662, eff. 10-11-07; 95-683, eff. 10-19-07; 95-709, eff. 1-29-08; 95-876, eff. 8-21-08; 95-932, eff. 8-26-08; 95-934, eff. 8-26-08; 95-964, eff. 9-23-08; 95-977, eff. 9-22-08; 95-1028, eff. 1-1-10; revised 1-27-09.)

Section 95. No acceleration or delay. Where this Act makes changes in a statute that is represented in this Act by text that is not yet or no longer in effect (for example, a Section represented by multiple versions), the use of that text does not accelerate or delay the taking effect of (i) the changes made by this Act or (ii) provisions derived from any other Public Act.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILL 1282.

SENATE BILL 1390. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Judiciary I - Civil Law, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1390 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The General Not For Profit Corporation Act of 1986 is amended by changing Sections 101.80, 103.12, 107.10, 107.40, 107.50, 107.75, 108.05, 108.10, 108.35, 108.45, 108.60, 108.70, and 110.30 as follows:

(805 ILCS 105/101.80) (from Ch. 32, par. 101.80)

Sec. 101.80. Definitions. As used in this Act, unless the context otherwise requires, the words and phrases defined in this Section shall have the meanings set forth herein.

(a) "Anniversary" means that day each year exactly one or more years after:

- (1) The date of filing the articles of incorporation prescribed by Section 102.10 of this Act, in the case of a domestic corporation;
- (2) The date of filing the application for authority prescribed by Section 113.15 of this Act in the case of a foreign corporation;
- (3) The date of filing the statement of acceptance prescribed by Section 101.75 of this Act, in the case of a corporation electing to accept this Act; or
- (4) The date of filing the articles of consolidation prescribed by Section 111.25 of this Act in the case of a consolidation.

(b) "Anniversary month" means the month in which the anniversary of the corporation occurs.

(c) "Articles of incorporation" means the original articles of incorporation including the articles of incorporation of a new corporation set forth in the articles of consolidation or set forth in a statement of election to accept this Act, and all amendments thereto, whether evidenced by articles of amendment, articles of merger or statement of correction affecting articles. Restated articles of incorporation shall supersede the original articles of incorporation and all amendments thereto prior to the effective date of filing the articles of amendment incorporating the restated articles of incorporation. In the case of a corporation created by a Special Act of the Legislature, "Articles of incorporation" means the special charter and any amendments thereto made by Special Act of the Legislature or pursuant to general laws.

(d) "Board of directors" means the group of persons vested with the management of the affairs of the corporation irrespective of the name by which such group is designated.

(e) "Bylaws" means the code or codes of rules adopted for the regulation or management of the affairs of the corporation irrespective of the name or names by which such rules are designated.

(f) "Corporation" or "domestic corporation" means a domestic not-for-profit corporation subject to the provisions of this Act, except a foreign corporation.

(g) "Delivered," for the purpose of determining if any notice required by this Act is effective, means:

- (1) Transferred or presented to someone in person;
- (2) Deposited in the United States mail addressed to the person at his, her or its address as it appears on the records of the corporation, with sufficient first-class postage prepaid thereon;
- (3) Posted at such place and in such manner or otherwise transmitted to the person's premises as may be authorized and set forth in the articles of incorporation or the bylaws; or
- (4) Transmitted by electronic means to the e-mail address, facsimile number, or other contact information appearing that appears on the records of the corporation as may be authorized or approved and set forth in the articles of incorporation or the bylaws.

(h) "Foreign corporation" means a not-for-profit corporation as defined and organized under the laws other than the laws of this State, for a purpose or purposes for which a corporation may be organized under this Act.

(i) "Incorporator" means one of the signers of the original articles of incorporation.

(j) "Insolvent" means that a corporation is unable to pay its debts as they become due in the usual course of the conduct of its affairs.

(k) "Member" means a person or any organization, whether not for profit or otherwise, having membership rights in a corporation in accordance with the provisions of its articles of incorporation or bylaws.

(l) "Net assets," for the purpose of determining the authority of a corporation to make distributions, is equal to the difference between the assets of the corporation and the liabilities of the corporation.

(m) "Not-for-profit corporation" means a corporation subject to this Act and organized solely for one or

more of the purposes authorized by Section 103.05 of this Act.

(n) "Registered office" means that office maintained by the corporation in this State, the address of which is on file in the office of the Secretary of State, at which any process, notice or demand required or permitted by law may be served upon the registered agent of the corporation.

(o) "Special charter" means the charter granted to a corporation created by special act of the Legislature whether or not the term "charter" or "special charter" is used in such special act.

(p) ~~Unless otherwise prohibited by~~ ~~To the extent permitted in~~ the articles of incorporation or the bylaws of the corporation, actions required to be "written", to be "in writing", to have "written consent", to have "written approval" and the like by or of members, directors, or committee members shall include any communication transmitted or received by electronic means.

(Source: P.A. 92-33, eff. 7-1-01; 92-572, eff. 6-26-02.)

(805 ILCS 105/103.12) (from Ch. 32, par. 103.12)

Sec. 103.12. Private foundations - Federal tax laws. In the absence of an express provision to the contrary in its articles of incorporation, a corporation, as defined in Section 509 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as may be amended from time to time 1954, during the period it is a private foundation:

(a) Shall not engage in any act of self-dealing as defined in Section 4941(d) thereof;

(b) Shall distribute its income for each taxable year at such time and in such manner as not to become subject to the tax on undistributed income imposed by Section 4942 thereof;

(c) Shall not retain any excess business holdings as defined in Section 4943(c) thereof;

(d) Shall not make any investment in such manner as to subject it to tax under Section 4944 thereof;

(e) Shall not make any taxable expenditure as defined in Section 4945(d) thereof.

(Source: P.A. 84-1423.)

(805 ILCS 105/107.10) (from Ch. 32, par. 107.10)

Sec. 107.10. Informal action by members entitled to vote. (a) Unless otherwise provided in the articles of incorporation or the bylaws, any action required by this Act to be taken at any annual or special meeting of the members entitled to vote, or any other action which may be taken at a meeting of the members entitled to vote, may be taken without a meeting in writing by mail, e-mail, or any other electronic means pursuant to which the action receives approval ~~without a meeting and without a vote, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed either: (i) by all of the members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof, or (ii) by the members having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which a quorum was all members entitled to vote thereon were present and voting.~~

(b) ~~Such informal action by~~ ~~If such consent is signed by less than all of the members entitled to vote, then such consent~~ shall become effective only: ~~(1) if, at least 5 days prior to the effective date of such informal action~~ ~~consent~~, a notice in writing of the proposed action is delivered to all of the members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof who have not voted, and if prompt notice of any such informal action ~~(2) if, after the effective date of such consent, prompt notice in writing of the taking of the corporate action without a meeting is delivered to those members entitled to vote who have not consented in writing.~~

(c) In the event that the action which is approved ~~consented to~~ is such as would have required the filing of a certificate under any other Section of this Act if such action had been voted on by the members at a meeting thereof, the certificate filed under such other Section shall state, in lieu of any statement required by such Section concerning any vote of members, that an informal vote ~~written consent~~ has been conducted given in accordance with the provisions of this Section and that written notice has been delivered as provided in this Section.

(Source: P.A. 84-1423.)

(805 ILCS 105/107.40) (from Ch. 32, par. 107.40)

Sec. 107.40. Voting. (a) The right of the members, or any class or classes of members, to vote may be limited, enlarged or denied to the extent specified in the articles of incorporation or the bylaws. Unless so limited, enlarged or denied, each member, regardless of class, shall be entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a vote of members.

(b) The articles of incorporation or the bylaws may provide that in all elections for directors every member entitled to vote shall have the right to cumulate his or her vote and to give one candidate a number of votes equal to his or her vote multiplied by the number of directors to be elected, or to distribute such votes on the same principle among as many candidates as he or she shall think fit.

(c) If a corporation has no members or its members have no right to vote with respect to a particular matter, the directors shall have the sole voting power with respect to such matter.

(Source: P.A. 84-1423.)

(805 ILCS 105/107.50) (from Ch. 32, par. 107.50)

Sec. 107.50. Proxies. A member entitled to vote may vote in person or, unless the articles of incorporation or ~~the bylaws explicitly prohibit otherwise provide~~, by proxy executed in writing by the member or by that member's duly authorized attorney-in-fact. No proxy shall be valid after 11 months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise provided in the proxy. Unless otherwise prohibited by the articles of incorporation or bylaws, the election of directors, officers, or representatives by members may be conducted by mail, e-mail, or any other electronic means as set forth in subsection (a) of Section 107.10. ~~Where directors or officers are to be elected by members, the bylaws may provide that such elections may be conducted by mail.~~

(Source: P.A. 84-1423.)

(805 ILCS 105/107.75) (from Ch. 32, par. 107.75)

Sec. 107.75. Books and records.

(a) Each corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of account and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of its members, board of directors and committees having any of the authority of the board of directors; and shall keep at its registered office or principal office a record giving the names and addresses of its members entitled to vote. Any voting member shall have the right to examine, in person or by agent, at any reasonable time or times, the corporation's books and records of account and minutes, and to make extracts therefrom, but only for a proper purpose. In order to exercise this right, a voting member must make written demand upon the corporation, stating with particularity the records sought to be examined and the purpose therefor. If the corporation refuses examination, the voting member may file suit in the circuit court of the county in which either the registered agent or principal office of the corporation is located to compel by mandamus or otherwise such examination as may be proper. If a voting member seeks to examine books or records of account the burden of proof is upon the voting member to establish a proper purpose. If the purpose is to examine minutes, the burden of proof is upon the corporation to establish that the voting member does not have a proper purpose. All books and records of a corporation may be inspected by any member entitled to vote, or that member's agent or attorney, for any proper purpose at any reasonable time.

(b) A residential cooperative not-for-profit corporation containing 50 or more single family units with individual unit legal descriptions based upon a recorded plat of a subdivision and located in a county with a population between 780,000 and 3,000,000 shall keep an accurate and complete account of all transfers of membership and shall, on a quarterly basis, record all transfers of membership with the county clerk of the county in which the residential cooperative is located. Additionally, a list of all transfers of membership shall be available for inspection by any member of the corporation.

(Source: P.A. 91-465, eff. 8-6-99.)

(805 ILCS 105/108.05) (from Ch. 32, par. 108.05)

Sec. 108.05. Board of directors.

(a) Each corporation shall have a board of directors, and except as provided in articles of incorporation, the affairs of the corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of the board of directors.

(b) ~~The articles of incorporation or bylaws may prescribe qualifications for directors.~~ A director need not be a resident of this State or a member of the corporation unless the articles of incorporation or bylaws so prescribe. The articles of incorporation or the bylaws may prescribe other qualifications for directors.

(c) Unless otherwise provided in the articles of incorporation or bylaws, the board of directors, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office, shall have authority to establish reasonable compensation of all directors for services to the corporation as directors, officers or otherwise, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 108.60 of this Act.

(d) No director may act by proxy on any matter.

(Source: P.A. 95-368, eff. 8-23-07.)

(805 ILCS 105/108.10) (from Ch. 32, par. 108.10)

Sec. 108.10. Number, election and resignation of directors. (a) The board of directors of a corporation shall consist of three or more directors. The number of directors shall be fixed by the bylaws, except the number of initial directors shall be fixed by the incorporators in the articles of incorporation. In the absence of a bylaw fixing the number of directors, the number shall be the same as that fixed in the articles of incorporation. The number of directors may be increased or decreased from time to time by amendment to the bylaws.

(b) The bylaws may establish a variable range for the size of the board by prescribing a minimum and maximum (which may not be less than 3 or exceed the minimum by more than 5) number of directors. If a

variable range is established, unless the bylaws otherwise provide, the number of directors may be fixed or changed from time to time, within the minimum and maximum, by the directors without further amendment to the bylaws.

(c) The terms of all directors expire at the next meeting for the election of directors following their election unless their terms are staggered under subsection (e). The term of a director elected to fill a vacancy expires at the next annual meeting of the members entitled to vote at which his or her predecessor's term would have expired or in accordance with Section 108.30 of this Act. The term of a director elected as a result of an increase in the number of directors expires at the next annual meeting of members entitled to vote unless the term is staggered under subsection (e).

(d) Despite the expiration of a director's term, he or she continues to serve until the next meeting of members or directors entitled to vote on directors at which directors are elected. An amendment to the bylaws decreasing A decrease in the number of directors or eliminating the position of a director elected or appointed by persons or entities other than the members may shorten the terms of incumbent directors; provided, however, such amendment has been approved by the party with the authority to elect or appoint such directors does not shorten an incumbent director's term.

(e) The articles of incorporation or the bylaws may provide that directors may be divided into classes and the terms of office of several classes need not be uniform. Each director shall hold office for the term for which he is elected and until his successor shall have been elected and qualified.

(f) If the articles of incorporation or bylaws authorize dividing the members into classes, the articles or bylaws may also authorize the election of all or a specified number or percentage of directors by one or more authorized classes of members.

(g) A director may resign at any time by written notice delivered to the board of directors, its chairman, or to the president or secretary of the corporation. A resignation is effective when the notice is delivered unless the notice specifies a future date. The pending vacancy may be filled before the effective date, but the successor shall not take office until the effective date.

(Source: P.A. 84-1423.)

(805 ILCS 105/108.35) (from Ch. 32, par. 108.35)

Sec. 108.35. Removal of directors. (a) One or more of the directors may be removed, with or without cause. In the case of a corporation having a board of directors which is classified in accordance with subsection 108.10(e) of this Act, the articles of incorporation or bylaws may provide that such directors may only be removed for cause no director may be removed except for cause if the articles of incorporation or the bylaws so provide.

(b) In the case of a corporation with no members or with no members entitled to vote on directors, a director may be removed by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office present and voting at a meeting of the board of directors at which a quorum is present.

(c) In the case of a corporation with members entitled to vote for directors, no director may be removed, except as follows:

(1) A director may be removed by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the votes present and voted, either in person or by proxy.

(2) No director shall be removed at a meeting of members entitled to vote unless the written notice of such meeting is delivered to all members entitled to vote on removal of directors. Such notice shall state that a purpose of the meeting is to vote upon the removal of one or more directors named in the notice. Only the named director or directors may be removed at such meeting.

(3) In the case of a corporation having cumulative voting, if less than the entire board is to be removed, no director may be removed, with or without cause, if the votes cast against his or her removal would be sufficient to elect him or her if then cumulatively voted at an election of the entire board of directors.

(4) If a director is elected by a class of voting members entitled to vote, directors or other electors, that director may be removed only by the same class of members entitled to vote, directors or electors which elected the director.

(d) The provisions of subsections (a), (b) and (c) shall not preclude the Circuit Court from removing a director of the corporation from office in a proceeding commenced either by the corporation or by members entitled to vote holding at least 10 percent of the outstanding votes of any class if the court finds (1) the director is engaged in fraudulent or dishonest conduct or has grossly abused his or her position to the detriment of the corporation, and (2) removal is in the best interest of the corporation. If the court removes a director, it may bar the director from reelection for a period prescribed by the court. If such a proceeding is commenced by a member entitled to vote, such member shall make the corporation a party defendant.

(Source: P.A. 84-1423.)

(805 ILCS 105/108.45) (from Ch. 32, par. 108.45)

Sec. 108.45. Informal action by directors. (a) Unless specifically prohibited by the articles of incorporation or bylaws, any action required by this Act to be taken at a meeting of the board of directors of a corporation, or any other action which may be taken at a meeting of the board of directors or a committee thereof, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the directors and all of any nondirector committee members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof, or by all the members of such committee, as the case may be.

(b) The consent shall be evidenced by one or more written approvals, each of which sets forth the action taken and ~~provides a written record of approval bears the signature of one or more directors or committee members~~. All the approvals evidencing the consent shall be delivered to the secretary to be filed in the corporate records. The action taken shall be effective when all the directors or the committee members, as the case may be, have approved the consent unless the consent specifies a different effective date.

(c) Any such consent signed by all the directors or all the committee members, as the case may be, shall have the same effect as a unanimous vote and may be stated as such in any document filed with the Secretary of State under this Act.

(Source: P.A. 84-1423.)

(805 ILCS 105/108.60) (from Ch. 32, par. 108.60)

Sec. 108.60. Conflicting interest transactions ~~Director conflict of interest~~.

(a) A contract or transaction between a corporation and one or more of its members, directors, members of a designated body, or officers or between a corporation and any other corporation, partnership, association, or other entity in which one or more of its directors, members of a designated body, or officers are directors or officers, hold a similar position, or have a financial interest, is not void or voidable solely for that reason, or solely because the member, director, member of a designated body, or officer is present at or participates in the meeting of the board of directors or committee having the authority of the board that authorizes the contract or transaction, or solely because his, her, or their votes are counted for that purpose, if:

(1) the material facts as to the relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the board of directors or committee having the authority of the board and the board or such committee in good faith authorizes the contract or transaction by the affirmative votes of a majority of the disinterested directors even though the disinterested directors are less than a quorum;

(2) the material facts as to the relationship or interest of the member, director, or officer and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the members entitled to vote thereon, if any, and the contract or transaction is specifically authorized, approved, or ratified in good faith by vote of those members; or

(3) the contract or transaction is fair as to the corporation as of the time it is authorized, approved, or ratified by the board of directors or the members.

(b) Common or interested directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the board or committee having the authority of the board that authorizes a contract or transaction specified in subsection (a).

~~(a) If a transaction is fair to a corporation at the time it is authorized, approved, or ratified, the fact that a director of the corporation is directly or indirectly a party to the transaction is not grounds for invalidating the transaction.~~

~~(b) In a proceeding contesting the validity of a transaction described in subsection (a), the person asserting validity has the burden of proving fairness unless:~~

~~(1) The material facts of the transaction and the director's interest or relationship were disclosed or known to the board of directors or a committee consisting entirely of directors and the board or committee authorized, approved or ratified the transaction by the affirmative votes of a majority of disinterested directors, even though the disinterested directors be less than a quorum; or~~

~~(2) The material facts of the transaction and the director's interest or relationship were disclosed or known to the members entitled to vote, if any, and they authorized, approved or ratified the transaction without counting the vote of any member who is an interested director.~~

~~(c) The presence of the director, who is directly or indirectly a party to the transaction described in subsection (a), or a director who is otherwise not disinterested, may be counted in determining whether a quorum is present but may not be counted when the board of directors or a committee of the board takes action on the transaction.~~

~~(d) For purposes of this Section, a director is "indirectly" a party to a transaction if the other party to the transaction is an entity in which the director has a material financial interest or of which the director is an~~

~~officer, director or general partner.~~

(Source: P.A. 84-1423.)

(805 ILCS 105/108.70) (from Ch. 32, par. 108.70)

Sec. 108.70. Limited Liability of directors, officers, board members, and persons who serve without compensation.

(a) No director or officer serving without compensation, other than reimbursement for actual expenses, of a corporation organized under this Act or any predecessor Act and exempt, or qualified for exemption, from taxation pursuant to Section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, shall be liable, and no cause of action may be brought, for damages resulting from the exercise of judgment or discretion in connection with the duties or responsibilities of such director or officer unless the act or omission involved willful or wanton conduct.

(b) No director of a corporation organized under this Act or any predecessor Act for the purposes identified in items (14), (19), (21) and (22) of subsection (a) of Section 103.05 of this Act, and exempt or qualified for exemption from taxation pursuant to Section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, shall be liable, and no cause of action may be brought for damages resulting from the exercise of judgment or discretion in connection with the duties or responsibilities of such director, unless: (1) such director earns in excess of \$25,000 ~~\$5,000~~ per year from his duties as director, other than reimbursement for actual expenses; or (2) the act or omission involved willful or wanton conduct.

(b-5) Except for willful and wanton conduct, no volunteer board member serving without compensation, other than reimbursement for actual expenses, of a corporation organized under this Act or any predecessor Act and exempt, or qualified for exemption, from taxation pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, shall be liable, and no action may be brought, for damages resulting from any action of the executive director concerning the false reporting of or intentional tampering with financial records of the organization, where the actions of the executive director result in legal action.

This subsection (b-5) shall not apply to any action taken by the Attorney General (i) in the exercise of his or her common law or statutory power and duty to protect charitable assets or (ii) in the exercise of his or her authority to enforce the laws of this State that apply to trustees of a charity, as that term is defined in the Charitable Trust Act and the Solicitation for Charity Act.

(c) No person who, without compensation other than reimbursement for actual expenses, renders service to or for a corporation organized under this Act or any predecessor Act and exempt or qualified for exemption from taxation pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, shall be liable, and no cause of action may be brought, for damages resulting from an act or omission in rendering such services, unless the act or omission involved willful or wanton conduct.

(d) (Blank).

(e) Nothing in this Section is intended to bar any cause of action against the corporation or change the liability of the corporation arising out of an act or omission of any director, officer or person exempt from liability for negligence under this Section.

(Source: P.A. 95-342, eff. 1-1-08.)

(805 ILCS 105/110.30) (from Ch. 32, par. 110.30)

Sec. 110.30. Articles of amendment.

(a) Except as provided in Section 110.40 of this Act, the articles of amendment shall be executed and filed in duplicate in accordance with Section 101.10 of this Act and shall set forth:

(1) The name of the corporation;

(2) The text of each amendment adopted;

(3) If the amendment was adopted pursuant to Section 110.15 of this Act:

(i) A statement that the amendment received the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors in office, at a meeting of the board of directors, and the date of the meeting; or

(ii) A statement that the amendment was adopted by written consent, signed by all the directors in office, in compliance with Section 108.45 of this Act;

(4) If the amendment was adopted pursuant to Section 110.20 of this Act:

(i) A statement that the amendment was adopted at a meeting of members entitled to vote by the affirmative vote of the members having not less than the minimum number of votes necessary to adopt such amendment, as provided by this Act, the articles of incorporation or the bylaws, and the date of the meeting; or

(ii) A statement that the amendment was adopted by ~~written consent signed by~~ members entitled to vote having

not less than the minimum number of votes necessary to adopt such amendment, as provided by this



Act, the articles of incorporation, or the bylaws, in compliance with Section 107.10 of this Act.

- (5) If the amendment restates the articles of incorporation, the amendment shall so state and shall set forth:
- (i) The text of the articles as restated;
  - (ii) The date of incorporation, the name under which the corporation was incorporated, subsequent names, if any, that the corporation adopted pursuant to amendment of its articles of incorporation, and the effective date of any such amendments;
  - (iii) The address of the registered office and the name of the registered agent on the date of filing the restated articles.
- The articles as restated must include all the information required by subsection (a) of Section 102.10 of this Act, except that the articles need not set forth the information required by paragraphs 3, 4 or 5 thereof. If any provision of the articles of incorporation is amended in connection with the restatement, the articles of amendment shall clearly identify such amendment.
- (6) If, pursuant to Section 110.35 of this Act, the amendment is to become effective subsequent to the date on which the articles of amendment are filed, the date on which the amendment is to become effective.
- (7) If the amendment revives the articles of incorporation and extends the period of corporate duration, the amendment shall so state and shall set forth:
- (i) The date the period of duration expired under the articles of incorporation;
  - (ii) A statement that the period of duration will be perpetual, or, if a limited duration is to be provided, the date to which the period of duration is to be extended; and
  - (iii) A statement that the corporation has been in continuous operation since before the date of expiration of its original period of duration.

(b) When the provisions of this Section have been complied with, the Secretary of State shall file the articles of amendment.

(Source: P.A. 92-33, eff. 7-1-01.)"

Representative Fritchey offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Bill 1390, AS AMENDED, with reference to page and line numbers of House Amendment No. 1, as follows:

on page 6, by replacing lines 5 through 25 with the following:

"(805 ILCS 105/107.10) (from Ch. 32, par. 107.10)

Sec. 107.10. Informal action by members entitled to vote. (a) Unless otherwise provided in the articles of incorporation or the bylaws, any action required by this Act to be taken at any annual or special meeting of the members entitled to vote, or any other action which may be taken at a meeting of the members entitled to vote, may be taken by ballot without a meeting in writing by mail, email, or any other electronic means pursuant to which the members entitled to vote thereon are given the opportunity to vote for or against the proposed action, and the action receives approval by a majority of the members casting votes, or such larger number as may be required by the Act, the articles of incorporation, or the bylaws, provided that the number of members casting votes would constitute a quorum if such action had been taken at a meeting. Voting must remain open for not less than 5 days from the date the ballot is delivered; provided, however, in the case of a removal of one or more directors, a merger, consolidation, dissolution or sale, lease or exchange of assets, the voting must remain open for not less than 20 days from the date the ballot is delivered, without a meeting and without a vote, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed either: (i) by all of the members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof, or (ii) by the members having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all members entitled to vote thereon were present and voting.

(b) Such informal action by members If such consent is signed by less than all of the members entitled to vote, then such consent shall become effective only:-(1) if, at least 5 days prior to the effective date of such informal action consent, a notice in writing of the proposed action is delivered to all of the members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof, and (2) if, after the effective date of such consent, prompt notice in writing of the taking of the corporate action without a meeting is delivered to those members entitled to vote who have not consented in writing.

(c) In the event that the action which is approved consented to is such as would have required the filing of a certificate under any other Section of this Act if such action had been voted on by the members at a

meeting thereof, the certificate filed under such other Section shall state, in lieu of any statement required by such Section concerning any vote of members, that an informal vote ~~written consent~~ has been conducted given in accordance with the provisions of this Section and that written notice has been delivered as provided in this Section.

(Source: P.A. 84-1423.); and

on page 7, by deleting lines 1 through 17; and

on page 16, by replacing lines 18 through 25 with the following:

"(805 ILCS 105/108.60) (from Ch. 32, par. 108.60)

Sec. 108.60. Director conflict of interest. (a) If a transaction is fair to a corporation at the time it is authorized, approved, or ratified, the fact that a director of the corporation is directly or indirectly a party to the transaction is not grounds for invalidating the transaction.

(b) In a proceeding contesting the validity of a transaction described in subsection (a), the person asserting validity has the burden of proving fairness unless:

(1) The material facts of the transaction and the director's interest or relationship were disclosed or known to the board of directors or a committee consisting entirely of directors and the board or committee authorized, approved or ratified the transaction by the affirmative votes of a majority of disinterested directors, even though the disinterested directors be less than a quorum; or

(2) The material facts of the transaction and the director's interest or relationship were disclosed or known to the members entitled to vote, if any, and they authorized, approved or ratified the transaction without counting the vote of any member who is an interested director.

(c) The presence of the director, who is directly or indirectly a party to the transaction described in subsection (a), or a director who is otherwise not disinterested, may be counted in determining whether a quorum is present but may not be counted when the board of directors or a committee of the board takes action on the transaction.

(d) For purposes of this Section, a director is "indirectly" a party to a transaction if the other party to the transaction is an entity in which the director has a material financial interest or of which the director is an officer, director or general partner.

(e) The provisions of this Section do not apply where a director of the corporation is directly or indirectly a party to a transaction involving a grant or contribution, without consideration, by one organization to another.

(Source: P.A. 84-1423.); and

by deleting pages 17 through 18; and

on page 19, by deleting lines 1 through 8.

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 1335. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Executive, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1335 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 1. Short Title. This Act may be cited as the Bowling Center Act.

Section 5. Definitions. As used in this Act:

"Operator" means a person or entity that owns, manages, controls, directs, or has operational responsibility for a bowling center.

"Bowler" means a person in a bowling center for the purpose of recreational or competitive bowling.

"Bowling center" means a building, facility, or premises that provides an area specifically designed to be used by the public for recreational or competitive bowling.

"Bowling shoes" mean shoes that are specifically designed for the purpose of recreational or competitive bowling.

Section 10. Operator notice to bowlers. An operator shall post a notice in a conspicuous place near each bowling center entrance and exit that reads as follows: "Bowling shoes are specialized footwear and are not intended to be worn outside a bowling center because the bowling shoes may be affected by substances or

materials such as: snow, ice, rain, moisture, food, or debris. Such substances or materials on bowling shoes that have been worn outside a bowling center may cause the person wearing the bowling shoes to slip, trip, stumble, or fall on the floor or alley surfaces in the bowling center."

Section 15. Civil liability. If the operator posts a notice in a conspicuous place near each bowling center entrance and exit in the form described in Section 10, the operator, except for willful and wanton misconduct, shall not be held civilly liable for injuries resulting from a slip, trip, stumble, or fall inside the bowling center solely caused by some substance or material on the bowler's bowling shoes that was acquired outside the bowling center immediately before entering or re-entering the bowling center.

Section 98. Applicability. This Act applies only to causes of action accruing on or after January 1, 2010."

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILL 1440.

SENATE BILL 1448. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time. The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Executive, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1448 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Public Utilities Act is amended by changing Section 9-222.1 as follows:  
(220 ILCS 5/9-222.1) (from Ch. 111 2/3, par. 9-222.1)

Sec. 9-222.1. A business enterprise which is located within an area designated by a county or municipality as an enterprise zone pursuant to the Illinois Enterprise Zone Act or located in a federally designated Foreign Trade Zone or Sub-Zone shall be exempt from the additional charges added to the business enterprise's utility bills as a pass-on of municipal and State utility taxes under Sections 9-221 and 9-222 of this Act, to the extent such charges are exempted by ordinance adopted in accordance with paragraph (e) of Section 8-11-2 of the Illinois Municipal Code in the case of municipal utility taxes, and to the extent such charges are exempted by the percentage specified by the Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity in the case of State utility taxes, provided such business enterprise meets the following criteria:

(1) it ~~either~~ (i) makes investments which cause the creation of a minimum of 200 full-time equivalent jobs in Illinois; (ii) makes investments of at least \$175,000,000 which cause the creation of a minimum of 150 full-time equivalent jobs in Illinois; ~~or~~ (iii) makes investments that cause the retention of a minimum of 300 full-time equivalent jobs in the manufacturing sector, as defined by the North American Industry Classification System, in an area in Illinois in which the unemployment rate is above 9% and makes an application to the Department within 3 months after the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly and certifies relocation of the 300 full-time equivalent jobs within 36 months after the application; or (iv) makes investments which cause the retention of a minimum of 1,000 full-time jobs in Illinois; and

(2) it is either (i) located in an Enterprise Zone established pursuant to the Illinois Enterprise Zone Act or (ii) it is located in a federally designated Foreign Trade Zone or Sub-Zone and is designated a High Impact Business by the Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity; and

(3) it is certified by the Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity as complying with the requirements specified in clauses (1) and (2) of this Section.

The Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity shall determine the period during which such exemption from the charges imposed under Section 9-222 is in effect which shall not exceed 30 years or the certified term of the enterprise zone, whichever period is shorter, except that the exemption period for a business enterprise qualifying under item (iii) of clause (1) of this Section shall not exceed 30 years.

The Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity shall have the power to promulgate rules and regulations to carry out the provisions of this Section including procedures for complying with the requirements specified in clauses (1) and (2) of this Section and procedures for applying for the exemptions authorized under this Section; to define the amounts and types of eligible investments which business

enterprises must make in order to receive State utility tax exemptions pursuant to Sections 9-222 and 9-222.1 of this Act; to approve such utility tax exemptions for business enterprises whose investments are not yet placed in service; and to require that business enterprises granted tax exemptions repay the exempted tax should the business enterprise fail to comply with the terms and conditions of the certification. However, no business enterprise shall be required, as a condition for certification under clause (3) of this Section, to attest that its decision to invest under clause (1) of this Section and to locate under clause (2) of this Section is predicated upon the availability of the exemptions authorized by this Section.

A business enterprise shall be exempt, in whole or in part, from the pass-on charges of municipal utility taxes imposed under Section 9-221, only if it meets the criteria specified in clauses (1) through (3) of this Section and the municipality has adopted an ordinance authorizing the exemption under paragraph (e) of Section 8-11-2 of the Illinois Municipal Code. Upon certification of the business enterprises by the Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity, the Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity shall notify the Department of Revenue of such certification. The Department of Revenue shall notify the public utilities of the exemption status of business enterprises from the pass-on charges of State and municipal utility taxes. Such exemption status shall be effective within 3 months after certification of the business enterprise.

(Source: P.A. 94-793, eff. 5-19-06.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILL 1510.

#### **RECALL**

At the request of the principal sponsor, Representative Zalewski, SENATE BILL 1493 was recalled from the order of Third Reading to the order of Second Reading.

#### **SENATE BILLS ON SECOND READING**

SENATE BILL 1493. Having been recalled on May 18, 2009, the same was again taken up. Representative Zalewski offered the following amendment and moved its adoption.

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1493, on page 2, lines 7, 9, 17 and 22, after "Star" each time it appears, by inserting "and Fallen Heroes".

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was again advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILL 1512.

SENATE BILL 1544. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Revenue & Finance, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1544 on page 1, by replacing lines 10 through 13 with the following:

"the Fund, the Department shall make grants to food banks for the purpose of purchasing food and related supplies. In this Section, "food bank" means an entity that collects donations and purchases food and related supplies for distribution to the needy."

Representative Jakobsson offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Bill 1544, AS AMENDED, with reference to page and line numbers of House Amendment No. 1, on page 1, by replacing lines 6 and 7 with the following:

"Section, "food bank" means a public or charitable institution that maintains an established operation involving the provision of food or edible commodities, or the products of food or edible commodities, to food pantries, soup kitchens, hunger relief centers, or other food or feeding centers that, as an integral part of their normal activities, provide meals or food to feed needy persons on a regular basis"; and on page 1, line 8, by deleting "needy".

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILL 1611.

SENATE BILL 349. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time. The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Executive, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 349 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 1. Short title. This Act may be cited as the Video Gaming Act.

Section 5. Definitions. As used in this Act:

"Board" means the Illinois Gaming Board.

"Credit" means 5, 10, or 25 cents either won or purchased by a player.

"Distributor" means an individual, partnership, or corporation licensed under this Act to buy, sell, lease, or distribute video gaming terminals or major components or parts of video gaming terminals to or from terminal operators.

"Terminal operator" means an individual, partnership or corporation that is licensed under this Act and that owns, services, and maintains video gaming terminals for placement in licensed establishments, licensed fraternal establishments, or licensed veterans establishments.

"Licensed technician" means an individual who is licensed under this Act to repair, service, and maintain video gaming terminals.

"Manufacturer" means an individual, partnership, or corporation that is licensed under this Act and that manufactures or assembles video gaming terminals.

"Supplier" means an individual, partnership, or corporation that is licensed under this Act to supply major components or parts to video gaming terminals to licensed terminal operators.

"Net terminal income" means money put into a video gaming terminal minus credits paid out to players.

"Video gaming terminal" means any electronic video game machine that, upon insertion of cash, is available to play or simulate the play of a video game, including but not limited to video poker, line up, and blackjack, authorized by the Board utilizing a video display and microprocessors in which the player may receive free games or credits that can be redeemed for cash. The term does not include a machine that directly dispenses coins, cash, or tokens or is for amusement purposes only.

"Licensed establishment" means any licensed retail establishment where alcoholic liquor is drawn, poured, mixed, or otherwise served for consumption on the premises. "Licensed establishment" does not include a facility operated by an organization licensee, an intertrack wagering licensee, or an intertrack wagering location licensee licensed under the Illinois Horse Racing Act of 1975 or a riverboat licensed under the Riverboat Gambling Act.

"Licensed fraternal establishment" means the location where a qualified fraternal organization that

derives its charter from a national fraternal organization regularly meets.

"Licensed veterans establishment" means the location where a qualified veterans organization that derives its charter from a national veterans organization regularly meets.

"Licensed truck stop establishment" means a facility that is at least a 3-acre facility with a convenience store and with separate diesel islands for fueling commercial motor vehicles and parking spaces for commercial motor vehicles as defined in Section 18b-101 of the Illinois Vehicle Code.

Section 15. Minimum requirements for licensing and registration. Every video gaming terminal offered for play shall first be tested and approved pursuant to the rules of the Board, and each video gaming terminal offered in this State for play shall conform to an approved model. The Board may contract with an independent outside vendor for the examination of video gaming machines and associated equipment as required by this Section. Each approved model shall, at a minimum, meet the following criteria:

(1) It must conform to all requirements of federal law and regulations, including FCC Class A Emissions Standards.

(2) It must theoretically pay out a mathematically demonstrable percentage during the expected lifetime of the machine of all amounts played, which must not be less than 80%. Video gaming terminals that may be affected by skill must meet this standard when using a method of play that will provide the greatest return to the player over a period of continuous play.

(3) It must use a random selection process to determine the outcome of each play of a game. The random selection process must meet 99% confidence limits using a standard chi-squared test for (randomness) goodness of fit.

(4) It must display an accurate representation of the game outcome.

(5) It must not automatically alter pay tables or any function of the video gaming terminal based on internal computation of hold percentage or have any means of manipulation that affects the random selection process or probabilities of winning a game.

(6) It must not be adversely affected by static discharge or other electromagnetic interference.

(7) It must be capable of detecting and displaying the following conditions during idle states or on demand: power reset; door open; and door just closed.

(8) It must have the capacity to display complete play history (outcome, intermediate play steps, credits available, bets placed, credits paid, and credits cashed out) for the most recent game played and 10 games prior thereto.

(9) The theoretical payback percentage of a video gaming terminal must not be capable of being changed without making a hardware or software change in the video gaming terminal.

(10) Video gaming terminals must be designed so that replacement of parts or modules required for normal maintenance does not necessitate replacement of the electromechanical meters.

(11) It must have nonresettable meters housed in a locked area of the terminal that keep a permanent record of all cash inserted into the machine, all winnings made by the terminal printer, credits played in for video gaming terminals, and credits won by video gaming players. The video gaming terminal must provide the means for on-demand display of stored information as determined by the Board.

(12) Electronically stored meter information required by this Section must be preserved for a minimum of 180 days after a power loss to the service.

(13) It must have one or more mechanisms that accept coins or cash in the form of bills. The mechanisms shall be designed to prevent obtaining credits without paying by stringing, slamming, drilling, or other means.

(14) It shall have accounting software that keeps an electronic record which includes, but is not limited to, the following: total cash inserted into the video gaming terminal; the value of winning tickets claimed by players; the total credits played; and the total credits awarded by a video gaming terminal.

(15) It shall be linked by a central communications system to provide auditing program information as approved by the Board. In no event may the communications system approved by the Board limit participation to only one manufacturer of video gaming terminals by either the cost in implementing the necessary program modifications to communicate or the inability to communicate with the central communications system.

(16) It shall be able to receive and broadcast amber alert messages.

Section 20. Direct dispensing of receipt tickets only. A video gaming terminal may not directly dispense coins, cash, tokens, or any other article of exchange or value except for receipt tickets. Tickets shall be

dispensed by pressing the ticket dispensing button on the video gaming terminal at the end of one's turn or play. The ticket shall indicate the total amount of credits and the cash award, the time of day in a 24-hour format showing hours and minutes, the date, the terminal serial number, the sequential number of the ticket, and an encrypted validation number from which the validity of the prize may be determined. The player shall turn in this ticket to the appropriate person at the licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment to receive the cash award. The cost of the credit shall be 5 cents, 10 cents, or 25 cents, and the maximum wager played per hand shall not exceed \$2. No cash award for the maximum wager on any individual hand shall exceed \$500.

Section 25. Restriction of licensees.

(a) Manufacturer. A person may not be licensed as a manufacturer of a video gaming terminal in Illinois unless the person has a valid manufacturer's license issued under this Act. A manufacturer may only sell video gaming terminals for use in Illinois to persons having a valid distributor's license.

(b) Distributor. A person may not sell, distribute, lease, or market a video gaming terminal in Illinois unless the person has a valid distributor's license issued under this Act. A distributor may only sell video gaming terminals for use in Illinois to persons having a valid distributor's or terminal operator's license.

(c) Terminal operator. A person may not own, maintain, or place a video gaming terminal unless he has a valid terminal operator's license issued under this Act. A terminal operator may only place video gaming terminals for use in Illinois in licensed establishments, licensed truck stop establishments, licensed fraternal establishments, and licensed veterans establishments. No terminal operator may give anything of value, including but not limited to a loan or financing arrangement, to a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment as any incentive or inducement to locate video terminals in that establishment. Of the after-tax profits from a video gaming terminal, 50% shall be paid to the terminal operator and 50% shall be paid to the licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment. A terminal operator shall be entitled to access all information recorded by the operator's machines. No terminal operator may own or have a substantial interest in more than 5% of the video gaming terminals licensed in this State.

(d) Licensed technician. A person may not service, maintain, or repair a video gaming terminal in this State unless he or she (1) has a valid technician's license issued under this Act, (2) is a terminal operator, or (3) is employed by a terminal operator, distributor, or manufacturer.

(e) Licensed establishment. Except for a facility operated by an organization licensee, an intertrack wagering licensee, or an intertrack wagering location licensee licensed under the Illinois Horse Racing Act of 1975 or a riverboat licensed under the Riverboat Gambling Act, a valid liquor license shall be prima facie evidence of compliance with the licensing requirements of this Act to operate video gaming terminals. No video gaming terminal may be placed in any licensed establishment, licensed veterans establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, or licensed fraternal establishment unless the owner or agent of the owner of the licensed establishment, licensed veterans establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, or licensed fraternal establishment has entered into a written use agreement with the terminal operator for placement of the terminals. A copy of the use agreement shall be on file in the terminal operator's place of business and available for inspection by individuals authorized by the Board. A licensed establishment may operate up to 3 video gaming terminals on its premises at any time. A licensed truck stop establishment, licensed veterans establishment, or licensed fraternal establishment may operate up to 5 video gaming terminals on its premises at any time.

(f) Residency requirement. Each licensed distributor and terminal operator must be an Illinois resident. However, if an out of state distributor or terminal operator has performed its respective business within Illinois for at least 48 months prior to the effective date of this Act, the out of state person may be eligible for licensing under this Act, upon application to and approval of the Board.

(g) Financial interest restrictions. As used in this Act, "substantial interest" in a partnership, corporation, organization, association, or business means:

(A) When, with respect to a sole proprietorship, an individual or his or her spouse owns, operates, manages, or conducts, directly or indirectly, the organization, association, or business, or any part thereof; or

(B) When, with respect to a partnership, the individual or his or her spouse shares in any of the profits, or potential profits, of the partnership activities; or

(C) When, with respect to a corporation, an individual or his or her spouse is an officer or director, or the individual or his or her marital community is a holder, directly or

beneficially, of 5% or more of any class of stock of the corporation; or

(D) When, with respect to an organization not covered in (A), (B) or (C) above, an individual or his or her spouse is an officer or manages the business affairs, or the individual or his or her spouse is the owner of or otherwise controls 10% or more of the assets of the organization; or

(E) When an individual or his or her spouse furnishes 5% or more of the capital, whether in cash, goods, or services, for the operation of any business, association, or organization during any calendar year.

(h) Location restriction. A licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment that is located within 1,000 feet of a facility operated by an organizational licensee, an intertrack wagering licensee, or an intertrack wagering location licensee licensed under the Illinois Horse Racing Act of 1975, the home dock of a riverboat licensed under the Riverboat Gambling Act, a school, or a church is ineligible to operate a video gaming terminal.

Section 27. Prohibition of video gaming by political subdivision. A municipality may pass an ordinance prohibiting video gaming within the corporate limits of the municipality. A county board may, for the unincorporated area of the county, pass an ordinance prohibiting video gaming within the unincorporated area of the county.

Section 30. Multiple types of licenses prohibited. A video gaming terminal manufacturer may not be licensed as a video gaming terminal distributor or operator or own, manage, or control a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment, and shall be licensed only to sell to distributors. A video gaming terminal distributor may not be licensed as a video gaming terminal manufacturer or operator or own, manage, or control a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment, and shall only contract with a licensed terminal operator. A video gaming terminal operator may not be licensed as a video gaming terminal manufacturer or distributor or own, manage, or control a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment, and shall be licensed only to contract with licensed distributors and licensed establishments, licensed truck stop establishments, licensed fraternal establishments, and licensed veterans establishments. An owner or manager of a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment may not be licensed as a video gaming terminal manufacturer, distributor, or operator, and shall only contract with a licensed operator to place and service this equipment.

Section 35. Display of license; confiscation; violation as felony. Each video gaming terminal shall be licensed by the Board before placement or operation on the premises of a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment. The license of each video gaming terminal shall be maintained at the location where the video gaming terminal is operated. Failure to do so is a petty offense with a fine not to exceed \$100. Any licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment used for the conduct of gambling games in violation of this Act shall be considered a gambling place in violation of Section 28-3 of the Criminal Code of 1961. Every gambling device found in a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment operating gambling games in violation of this Act shall be subject to seizure, confiscation, and destruction as provided in Section 28-5 of the Criminal Code of 1961. Any license issued under the Liquor Control Act of 1934 to any owner or operator of a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment that operates or permits the operation of a video gaming terminal within its establishment in violation of this Act shall be immediately revoked. No person may own, operate, have in his or her possession or custody or under his or her control, or permit to be kept in any place under his or her possession or control, any device that awards credits and contains a circuit, meter, or switch capable of removing and recording the removal of credits when the award of credits is dependent upon chance. A violation of this Section is a Class 4 felony. All devices that are owned, operated, or possessed in violation of this Section are hereby declared to be public nuisances and shall be subject to seizure, confiscation, and destruction as provided in Section 28-5 of the Criminal Code of 1961. The provisions of this Section do not apply to devices or electronic video game terminals licensed pursuant to this Act.

Section 40. Video gaming terminal use by minors prohibited. No licensee shall cause or permit any person under the age of 21 years to use or play a video gaming terminal. Any licensee who knowingly permits a person under the age of 21 years to use or play a video gaming terminal is guilty of a business offense and shall be fined an amount not to exceed \$5,000.



Section 45. Issuance of license.

(a) The burden is upon each applicant to demonstrate his suitability for licensure. Each video gaming terminal manufacturer, distributor, operator, licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, and licensed veterans establishment shall be licensed by the Board. The Board may not issue a license under this Act to any person who, within 10 years of the date of the application, has been convicted of a felony under the laws of this State, any other state, or the United States, or to any firm or corporation in which such a person is an officer, director, or managerial employee.

(b) A non-refundable application fee shall be paid at the time an application for a license is filed with the Board in the following amounts:

(1) Manufacturer.....	\$5,000
(2) Distributor.....	\$5,000
(3) Terminal operator.....	\$5,000
(4) Supplier.....	\$2,500
(5) Technician.....	\$100

(c) Any application not approved within 90 days of receipt by the Board shall be deemed approved.

(d) Each licensed distributor, terminal operator, or person with a substantial interest in a distributor or terminal operator must have resided in Illinois for at least 24 months prior to application unless he or she has performed his or her respective business in Illinois for at least 48 months prior to the effective date of this Act.

The Board shall establish an annual fee for each license not to exceed the following:

(1) Manufacturer.....	\$10,000
(2) Distributor.....	\$10,000
(3) Terminal operator.....	\$5,000
(4) Supplier.....	\$2,000
(5) Technician.....	\$100
(6) Licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment.....	\$100
(7) Video gaming terminal.....	\$100

Section 50. Distribution of license fees.

(a) All fees collected under Section 45 shall be deposited in the State Gaming Fund.

(b) Fees collected under Section 45 shall be used as follows:

- (1) Twenty-five percent shall be paid to programs for the treatment of compulsive gambling.
- (2) Seventy-five percent shall be used for the administration of this Act.

(c) All licenses issued by the Board under this Act are renewable annually unless sooner cancelled or terminated. No license issued under this Act is transferable or assignable.

Section 55. Precondition for licensed establishment. In all cases of application for a licensed establishment, to operate a video gaming terminal, each licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment shall possess a valid liquor license issued by the Illinois Liquor Control Commission in effect at the time of application and at all times thereafter during which a video gaming terminal is made available to the public for play at that location.

Section 57. Insurance. Each licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, and licensed veterans establishment shall maintain insurance on any gaming device on its premises in an amount set by the Board.

Section 58. Location of terminals. Video gaming terminals must be located in an area restricted to persons over 21 years of age the entrance to which is within the view of at least one employee of the establishment in which they are located who is over 21 years of age.

Section 60. Imposition and distribution of tax.

(a) A tax of 25% is imposed on net terminal income and shall be collected by the Board.

(b) Of the tax collected under this Section, four-fifths shall be deposited into the School Infrastructure Fund and one-fifth shall be deposited into the Local Government Video Gaming Distributive Fund. Deposits into the School Infrastructure Fund pursuant to this Section shall be allocated in accordance with the provisions of the School Construction Law.

(c) Revenues generated from the play of video gaming terminals shall be deposited by the terminal operator, who is responsible for tax payments, in a specially created, separate bank account maintained by the video gaming terminal operator to allow for electronic fund transfers of moneys for tax payment.

(d) Each licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, and licensed veterans establishment shall maintain an adequate video gaming fund, with the amount to be determined by the Board.

Section 65. Fees. A non-home rule unit of government may not impose any fee for the operation of a video gaming terminal in excess of \$25 per year.

Section 70. Referendum. Upon the filing in the office of the clerk, at least 90 days before an election in any municipality or county, as the case may be, of a petition directed to such clerk, containing the signatures of not less than 25% of the legal voters of that municipality or county, the clerk shall certify such proposition to the proper election officials, who shall submit the proposition at such election to the voters of such municipality or county. The proposition shall be in the following form:

-----

Shall video gaming	YES
be prohibited in	-----
.....?	NO

-----

If a majority of the voters voting upon such last mentioned proposition in any municipality or county vote "YES", such video gaming shall be prohibited in such municipality or county. The petition mentioned in this Section shall be a public document and shall be subject to inspection by the public.

Section 75. Revenue sharing; Local Government Video Gaming Distributive Fund.

(a) As soon as may be practical after the first day of each month, the Department of Revenue shall allocate among those municipalities and counties of this State that have not prohibited video gaming pursuant to Section 27 the amount available in the Local Government Video Gaming Distributive Fund, a special fund in the State Treasury, as provided in Section 60. The Department shall then certify such allocations to the State Comptroller, who shall pay over to those eligible municipalities and counties the respective amounts allocated to them. The amount of such funds allocable to each such municipality and county shall be in proportion to the tax revenue generated from video gaming within the eligible municipality or county compared to the tax revenue generated from video gaming Statewide.

(b) The amounts allocated and paid to a municipality or county of this State pursuant to the provisions of this Section may be used for any general corporate purpose authorized for that municipality or county.

(c) Upon determination by the Department that an amount has been paid pursuant to this Section in excess of the amount to which the county or municipality receiving such payment was entitled, the county or municipality shall, upon demand by the Department, repay such amount. If such repayment is not made within a reasonable time, the Department shall withhold from future payments an amount equal to such overpayment. The Department shall redistribute the amount of such payment to the county or municipality entitled thereto.

Section 185. The Riverboat Gambling Act is amended by changing Section 5 as follows:  
(230 ILCS 10/5) (from Ch. 120, par. 2405)

Sec. 5. Gaming Board.

(a) (1) There is hereby established within the Department of Revenue an Illinois Gaming Board which shall have the powers and duties specified in this Act, and all other powers necessary and proper to fully and effectively execute this Act for the purpose of administering, regulating, and enforcing the system of riverboat gambling established by this Act. Its jurisdiction shall extend under this Act to every person, association, corporation, partnership and trust involved in riverboat gambling operations in the State of Illinois.

(2) The Board shall consist of 5 members to be appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate, one of whom shall be designated by the Governor to be chairman. Each member shall have a reasonable knowledge of the practice, procedure and principles of gambling operations. Each member shall either be a resident of Illinois or shall certify that he will become a resident of Illinois before taking office. At least one member shall be experienced in law enforcement and criminal investigation, at least one member shall be a certified public accountant experienced in accounting and auditing, and at least one member shall be a lawyer licensed to practice law in Illinois.

(3) The terms of office of the Board members shall be 3 years, except that the terms of office of the initial Board members appointed pursuant to this Act will commence from the effective date of this Act and run as follows: one for a term ending July 1, 1991, 2 for a term ending July 1, 1992, and 2 for a term ending July 1, 1993. Upon the expiration of the foregoing terms, the successors of such members shall serve a term for 3 years and until their successors are appointed and qualified for like terms. Vacancies in the Board shall be filled for the unexpired term in like manner as original appointments. Each member of the Board

shall be eligible for reappointment at the discretion of the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate.

(4) Each member of the Board shall receive \$300 for each day the Board meets and for each day the member conducts any hearing pursuant to this Act. Each member of the Board shall also be reimbursed for all actual and necessary expenses and disbursements incurred in the execution of official duties.

(5) No person shall be appointed a member of the Board or continue to be a member of the Board who is, or whose spouse, child or parent is, a member of the board of directors of, or a person financially interested in, any gambling operation subject to the jurisdiction of this Board, or any race track, race meeting, racing association or the operations thereof subject to the jurisdiction of the Illinois Racing Board. No Board member shall hold any other public office for which he shall receive compensation other than necessary travel or other incidental expenses. No person shall be a member of the Board who is not of good moral character or who has been convicted of, or is under indictment for, a felony under the laws of Illinois or any other state, or the United States.

(6) Any member of the Board may be removed by the Governor for neglect of duty, misfeasance, malfeasance, or nonfeasance in office.

(7) Before entering upon the discharge of the duties of his office, each member of the Board shall take an oath that he will faithfully execute the duties of his office according to the laws of the State and the rules and regulations adopted therewith and shall give bond to the State of Illinois, approved by the Governor, in the sum of \$25,000. Every such bond, when duly executed and approved, shall be recorded in the office of the Secretary of State. Whenever the Governor determines that the bond of any member of the Board has become or is likely to become invalid or insufficient, he shall require such member forthwith to renew his bond, which is to be approved by the Governor. Any member of the Board who fails to take oath and give bond within 30 days from the date of his appointment, or who fails to renew his bond within 30 days after it is demanded by the Governor, shall be guilty of neglect of duty and may be removed by the Governor. The cost of any bond given by any member of the Board under this Section shall be taken to be a part of the necessary expenses of the Board.

(8) Upon the request of the Board, the Department shall employ such personnel as may be necessary to carry out the functions of the Board. No person shall be employed to serve the Board who is, or whose spouse, parent or child is, an official of, or has a financial interest in or financial relation with, any operator engaged in gambling operations within this State or any organization engaged in conducting horse racing within this State. Any employee violating these prohibitions shall be subject to termination of employment.

(9) An Administrator shall perform any and all duties that the Board shall assign him. The salary of the Administrator shall be determined by the Board and approved by the Director of the Department and, in addition, he shall be reimbursed for all actual and necessary expenses incurred by him in discharge of his official duties. The Administrator shall keep records of all proceedings of the Board and shall preserve all records, books, documents and other papers belonging to the Board or entrusted to its care. The Administrator shall devote his full time to the duties of the office and shall not hold any other office or employment.

(b) The Board shall have general responsibility for the implementation of this Act. Its duties include, without limitation, the following:

(1) To decide promptly and in reasonable order all license applications. Any party aggrieved by an action of the Board denying, suspending, revoking, restricting or refusing to renew a license may request a hearing before the Board. A request for a hearing must be made to the Board in writing within 5 days after service of notice of the action of the Board. Notice of the action of the Board shall be served either by personal delivery or by certified mail, postage prepaid, to the aggrieved party. Notice served by certified mail shall be deemed complete on the business day following the date of such mailing. The Board shall conduct all requested hearings promptly and in reasonable order;

(2) To conduct all hearings pertaining to civil violations of this Act or rules and regulations promulgated hereunder;

(3) To promulgate such rules and regulations as in its judgment may be necessary to protect or enhance the credibility and integrity of gambling operations authorized by this Act and the regulatory process hereunder;

(4) To provide for the establishment and collection of all license and registration fees and taxes imposed by this Act and the rules and regulations issued pursuant hereto. All such fees and taxes shall be deposited into the State Gaming Fund;

(5) To provide for the levy and collection of penalties and fines for the violation of provisions of this Act and the rules and regulations promulgated hereunder. All such fines and penalties

shall be deposited into the Education Assistance Fund, created by Public Act 86-0018, of the State of Illinois;

(6) To be present through its inspectors and agents any time gambling operations are conducted on any riverboat for the purpose of certifying the revenue thereof, receiving complaints from the public, and conducting such other investigations into the conduct of the gambling games and the maintenance of the equipment as from time to time the Board may deem necessary and proper;

(7) To review and rule upon any complaint by a licensee regarding any investigative procedures of the State which are unnecessarily disruptive of gambling operations. The need to inspect and investigate shall be presumed at all times. The disruption of a licensee's operations shall be proved by clear and convincing evidence, and establish that: (A) the procedures had no reasonable law enforcement purposes, and (B) the procedures were so disruptive as to unreasonably inhibit gambling operations;

(8) To hold at least one meeting each quarter of the fiscal year. In addition, special meetings may be called by the Chairman or any 2 Board members upon 72 hours written notice to each member. All Board meetings shall be subject to the Open Meetings Act. Three members of the Board shall constitute a quorum, and 3 votes shall be required for any final determination by the Board. The Board shall keep a complete and accurate record of all its meetings. A majority of the members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business, for the performance of any duty, or for the exercise of any power which this Act requires the Board members to transact, perform or exercise en banc, except that, upon order of the Board, one of the Board members or an administrative law judge designated by the Board may conduct any hearing provided for under this Act or by Board rule and may recommend findings and decisions to the Board. The Board member or administrative law judge conducting such hearing shall have all powers and rights granted to the Board in this Act. The record made at the time of the hearing shall be reviewed by the Board, or a majority thereof, and the findings and decision of the majority of the Board shall constitute the order of the Board in such case;

(9) To maintain records which are separate and distinct from the records of any other State board or commission. Such records shall be available for public inspection and shall accurately reflect all Board proceedings;

(10) To file a written annual report with the Governor on or before March 1 each year and such additional reports as the Governor may request. The annual report shall include a statement of receipts and disbursements by the Board, actions taken by the Board, and any additional information and recommendations which the Board may deem valuable or which the Governor may request;

(11) (Blank); ~~and~~

(12) To assume responsibility for the administration and enforcement of the Bingo License and Tax Act, the Charitable Games Act, and the Pull Tabs and Jar Games Act if such responsibility is delegated to it by the Director of Revenue; ~~and -~~

(13) To assume responsibility for administration and enforcement of the Video Gaming Act.

(c) The Board shall have jurisdiction over and shall supervise all gambling operations governed by this Act. The Board shall have all powers necessary and proper to fully and effectively execute the provisions of this Act, including, but not limited to, the following:

(1) To investigate applicants and determine the eligibility of applicants for licenses and to select among competing applicants the applicants which best serve the interests of the citizens of Illinois.

(2) To have jurisdiction and supervision over all riverboat gambling operations in this State and all persons on riverboats where gambling operations are conducted.

(3) To promulgate rules and regulations for the purpose of administering the provisions of this Act and to prescribe rules, regulations and conditions under which all riverboat gambling in the State shall be conducted. Such rules and regulations are to provide for the prevention of practices detrimental to the public interest and for the best interests of riverboat gambling, including rules and regulations regarding the inspection of such riverboats and the review of any permits or licenses necessary to operate a riverboat under any laws or regulations applicable to riverboats, and to impose penalties for violations thereof.

(4) To enter the office, riverboats, facilities, or other places of business of a licensee, where evidence of the compliance or noncompliance with the provisions of this Act is likely to be found.

(5) To investigate alleged violations of this Act or the rules of the Board and to take appropriate disciplinary action against a licensee or a holder of an occupational license for a violation, or

institute appropriate legal action for enforcement, or both.

(6) To adopt standards for the licensing of all persons under this Act, as well as for electronic or mechanical gambling games, and to establish fees for such licenses.

(7) To adopt appropriate standards for all riverboats and facilities.

(8) To require that the records, including financial or other statements of any licensee under this Act, shall be kept in such manner as prescribed by the Board and that any such licensee involved in the ownership or management of gambling operations submit to the Board an annual balance sheet and profit and loss statement, list of the stockholders or other persons having a 1% or greater beneficial interest in the gambling activities of each licensee, and any other information the Board deems necessary in order to effectively administer this Act and all rules, regulations, orders and final decisions promulgated under this Act.

(9) To conduct hearings, issue subpoenas for the attendance of witnesses and subpoenas duces tecum for the production of books, records and other pertinent documents in accordance with the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act, and to administer oaths and affirmations to the witnesses, when, in the judgment of the Board, it is necessary to administer or enforce this Act or the Board rules.

(10) To prescribe a form to be used by any licensee involved in the ownership or management of gambling operations as an application for employment for their employees.

(11) To revoke or suspend licenses, as the Board may see fit and in compliance with applicable laws of the State regarding administrative procedures, and to review applications for the renewal of licenses. The Board may suspend an owners license, without notice or hearing upon a determination that the safety or health of patrons or employees is jeopardized by continuing a riverboat's operation. The suspension may remain in effect until the Board determines that the cause for suspension has been abated. The Board may revoke the owners license upon a determination that the owner has not made satisfactory progress toward abating the hazard.

(12) To eject or exclude or authorize the ejection or exclusion of, any person from riverboat gambling facilities where such person is in violation of this Act, rules and regulations thereunder, or final orders of the Board, or where such person's conduct or reputation is such that his presence within the riverboat gambling facilities may, in the opinion of the Board, call into question the honesty and integrity of the gambling operations or interfere with orderly conduct thereof; provided that the propriety of such ejection or exclusion is subject to subsequent hearing by the Board.

(13) To require all licensees of gambling operations to utilize a cashless wagering system whereby all players' money is converted to tokens, electronic cards, or chips which shall be used only for wagering in the gambling establishment.

(14) (Blank).

(15) To suspend, revoke or restrict licenses, to require the removal of a licensee or an employee of a licensee for a violation of this Act or a Board rule or for engaging in a fraudulent practice, and to impose civil penalties of up to \$5,000 against individuals and up to \$10,000 or an amount equal to the daily gross receipts, whichever is larger, against licensees for each violation of any provision of the Act, any rules adopted by the Board, any order of the Board or any other action which, in the Board's discretion, is a detriment or impediment to riverboat gambling operations.

(16) To hire employees to gather information, conduct investigations and carry out any other tasks contemplated under this Act.

(17) To establish minimum levels of insurance to be maintained by licensees.

(18) To authorize a licensee to sell or serve alcoholic liquors, wine or beer as defined in the Liquor Control Act of 1934 on board a riverboat and to have exclusive authority to establish the hours for sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor on board a riverboat, notwithstanding any provision of the Liquor Control Act of 1934 or any local ordinance, and regardless of whether the riverboat makes excursions. The establishment of the hours for sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor on board a riverboat is an exclusive power and function of the State. A home rule unit may not establish the hours for sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor on board a riverboat. This amendatory Act of 1991 is a denial and limitation of home rule powers and functions under subsection (h) of Section 6 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution.

(19) After consultation with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, to establish binding emergency orders upon the concurrence of a majority of the members of the Board regarding the navigability of water, relative to excursions, in the event of extreme weather conditions, acts of God or other extreme circumstances.

(20) To delegate the execution of any of its powers under this Act for the purpose of

administering and enforcing this Act and its rules and regulations hereunder.

(21) To take any other action as may be reasonable or appropriate to enforce this Act and rules and regulations hereunder.

(d) The Board may seek and shall receive the cooperation of the Department of State Police in conducting background investigations of applicants and in fulfilling its responsibilities under this Section. Costs incurred by the Department of State Police as a result of such cooperation shall be paid by the Board in conformance with the requirements of Section 2605-400 of the Department of State Police Law (20 ILCS 2605/2605-400).

(e) The Board must authorize to each investigator and to any other employee of the Board exercising the powers of a peace officer a distinct badge that, on its face, (i) clearly states that the badge is authorized by the Board and (ii) contains a unique identifying number. No other badge shall be authorized by the Board.

(Source: P.A. 91-40, eff. 1-1-00; 91-239, eff. 1-1-00; 91-883, eff. 1-1-01.)

Section 190. The Criminal Code of 1961 is amended by changing Sections 28-1, 28-1.1, and 28-3 as follows:

(720 ILCS 5/28-1) (from Ch. 38, par. 28-1)

Sec. 28-1. Gambling.

(a) A person commits gambling when he:

(1) Plays a game of chance or skill for money or other thing of value, unless excepted in subsection (b) of this Section; or

(2) Makes a wager upon the result of any game, contest, or any political nomination, appointment or election; or

(3) Operates, keeps, owns, uses, purchases, exhibits, rents, sells, bargains for the sale or lease of, manufactures or distributes any gambling device; or

(4) Contracts to have or give himself or another the option to buy or sell, or contracts to buy or sell, at a future time, any grain or other commodity whatsoever, or any stock or security of any company, where it is at the time of making such contract intended by both parties thereto that the contract to buy or sell, or the option, whenever exercised, or the contract resulting therefrom, shall be settled, not by the receipt or delivery of such property, but by the payment only of differences in prices thereof; however, the issuance, purchase, sale, exercise, endorsement or guarantee, by or through a person registered with the Secretary of State pursuant to Section 8 of the Illinois Securities Law of 1953, or by or through a person exempt from such registration under said Section 8, of a put, call, or other option to buy or sell securities which have been registered with the Secretary of State or which are exempt from such registration under Section 3 of the Illinois Securities Law of 1953 is not gambling within the meaning of this paragraph (4); or

(5) Knowingly owns or possesses any book, instrument or apparatus by means of which bets or wagers have been, or are, recorded or registered, or knowingly possesses any money which he has received in the course of a bet or wager; or

(6) Sells pools upon the result of any game or contest of skill or chance, political nomination, appointment or election; or

(7) Sets up or promotes any lottery or sells, offers to sell or transfers any ticket or share for any lottery; or

(8) Sets up or promotes any policy game or sells, offers to sell or knowingly possesses or transfers any policy ticket, slip, record, document or other similar device; or

(9) Knowingly drafts, prints or publishes any lottery ticket or share, or any policy ticket, slip, record, document or similar device, except for such activity related to lotteries, bingo games and raffles authorized by and conducted in accordance with the laws of Illinois or any other state or foreign government; or

(10) Knowingly advertises any lottery or policy game, except for such activity related to lotteries, bingo games and raffles authorized by and conducted in accordance with the laws of Illinois or any other state; or

(11) Knowingly transmits information as to wagers, betting odds, or changes in betting odds by telephone, telegraph, radio, semaphore or similar means; or knowingly installs or maintains equipment for the transmission or receipt of such information; except that nothing in this subdivision (11) prohibits transmission or receipt of such information for use in news reporting of sporting events or contests; or

(12) Knowingly establishes, maintains, or operates an Internet site that permits a person to play a game of chance or skill for money or other thing of value by means of the Internet or to

make a wager upon the result of any game, contest, political nomination, appointment, or election by means of the Internet.

(b) Participants in any of the following activities shall not be convicted of gambling therefor:

- (1) Agreements to compensate for loss caused by the happening of chance including without limitation contracts of indemnity or guaranty and life or health or accident insurance;
- (2) Offers of prizes, award or compensation to the actual contestants in any bona fide contest for the determination of skill, speed, strength or endurance or to the owners of animals or vehicles entered in such contest;
- (3) Pari-mutuel betting as authorized by the law of this State;
- (4) Manufacture of gambling devices, including the acquisition of essential parts therefor and the assembly thereof, for transportation in interstate or foreign commerce to any place outside this State when such transportation is not prohibited by any applicable Federal law; or the manufacture, distribution, or possession of video gaming terminals, as defined in the Video Gaming Act, by manufacturers, distributors, and terminal operators licensed to do so under the Video Gaming Act;
- (5) The game commonly known as "bingo", when conducted in accordance with the Bingo License and Tax Act;
- (6) Lotteries when conducted by the State of Illinois in accordance with the Illinois Lottery Law;
- (7) Possession of an antique slot machine that is neither used nor intended to be used in the operation or promotion of any unlawful gambling activity or enterprise. For the purpose of this subparagraph (b)(7), an antique slot machine is one manufactured 25 years ago or earlier;
- (8) Raffles when conducted in accordance with the Raffles Act;
- (9) Charitable games when conducted in accordance with the Charitable Games Act;
- (10) Pull tabs and jar games when conducted under the Illinois Pull Tabs and Jar Games Act; ~~or~~
- (11) Gambling games conducted on riverboats when authorized by the Riverboat Gambling Act; or -
- (12) Video gaming terminal games at a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment when conducted in accordance with the Video Gaming Act.

(c) Sentence.

Gambling under subsection (a)(1) or (a)(2) of this Section is a Class A misdemeanor. Gambling under any of subsections (a)(3) through (a)(11) of this Section is a Class A misdemeanor. A second or subsequent conviction under any of subsections (a)(3) through (a)(11), is a Class 4 felony. Gambling under subsection (a)(12) of this Section is a Class A misdemeanor. A second or subsequent conviction under subsection (a)(12) is a Class 4 felony.

(d) Circumstantial evidence.

In prosecutions under subsection (a)(1) through (a)(12) of this Section circumstantial evidence shall have the same validity and weight as in any criminal prosecution.

(Source: P.A. 91-257, eff. 1-1-00.)

(720 ILCS 5/28-1.1) (from Ch. 38, par. 28-1.1)

Sec. 28-1.1. Syndicated gambling.

(a) Declaration of Purpose. Recognizing the close relationship between professional gambling and other organized crime, it is declared to be the policy of the legislature to restrain persons from engaging in the business of gambling for profit in this State. This Section shall be liberally construed and administered with a view to carrying out this policy.

(b) A person commits syndicated gambling when he operates a "policy game" or engages in the business of bookmaking.

(c) A person "operates a policy game" when he knowingly uses any premises or property for the purpose of receiving or knowingly does receive from what is commonly called "policy":

- (1) money from a person other than the better or player whose bets or plays are represented by such money; or
- (2) written "policy game" records, made or used over any period of time, from a person other than the better or player whose bets or plays are represented by such written record.

(d) A person engages in bookmaking when he receives or accepts more than five bets or wagers upon the result of any trials or contests of skill, speed or power of endurance or upon any lot, chance, casualty, unknown or contingent event whatsoever, which bets or wagers shall be of such size that the total of the

amounts of money paid or promised to be paid to such bookmaker on account thereof shall exceed \$2,000. Bookmaking is the receiving or accepting of such bets or wagers regardless of the form or manner in which the bookmaker records them.

(e) Participants in any of the following activities shall not be convicted of syndicated gambling:

- (1) Agreements to compensate for loss caused by the happening of chance including without limitation contracts of indemnity or guaranty and life or health or accident insurance; and
- (2) Offers of prizes, award or compensation to the actual contestants in any bona fide contest for the determination of skill, speed, strength or endurance or to the owners of animals or vehicles entered in such contest; and
- (3) Pari-mutuel betting as authorized by law of this State; and
- (4) Manufacture of gambling devices, including the acquisition of essential parts therefor and the assembly thereof, for transportation in interstate or foreign commerce to any place outside this State when such transportation is not prohibited by any applicable Federal law; and
- (5) Raffles when conducted in accordance with the Raffles Act; and
- (6) Gambling games conducted on riverboats when authorized by the Riverboat Gambling Act

: and -

(7) Video gaming terminal games at a licensed establishment, licensed truck stop establishment, licensed fraternal establishment, or licensed veterans establishment when conducted in accordance with the Video Gaming Act.

(f) Sentence. Syndicated gambling is a Class 3 felony.

(Source: P.A. 86-1029; 87-435.)

(720 ILCS 5/28-3) (from Ch. 38, par. 28-3)

Sec. 28-3. Keeping a Gambling Place. A "gambling place" is any real estate, vehicle, boat or any other property whatsoever used for the purposes of gambling other than gambling conducted in the manner authorized by the Riverboat Gambling Act or the Video Gaming Act. Any person who knowingly permits any premises or property owned or occupied by him or under his control to be used as a gambling place commits a Class A misdemeanor. Each subsequent offense is a Class 4 felony. When any premises is determined by the circuit court to be a gambling place:

(a) Such premises is a public nuisance and may be proceeded against as such, and

(b) All licenses, permits or certificates issued by the State of Illinois or any subdivision or public agency thereof authorizing the serving of food or liquor on such premises shall be void; and no license, permit or certificate so cancelled shall be reissued for such premises for a period of 60 days thereafter; nor shall any person convicted of keeping a gambling place be reissued such license for one year from his conviction and, after a second conviction of keeping a gambling place, any such person shall not be reissued such license, and

(c) Such premises of any person who knowingly permits thereon a violation of any Section of this Article shall be held liable for, and may be sold to pay any unsatisfied judgment that may be recovered and any unsatisfied fine that may be levied under any Section of this Article.

(Source: P.A. 86-1029.)

Section 195. The State Finance Act is amended by adding Section 5.719 as follows:

(30 ILCS 105/5.719 new)

Sec. 5.719. The Local Government Video Gaming Distributive Fund.

Section 999. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 1783. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Executive, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1783 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Illinois Municipal Code is amended by adding Section 11-5.4-1 as follows:

(65 ILCS 5/11-5.4-1 new)

Sec. 11-5.4-1. Landlord regulation. The corporate authorities of any municipality may license and regulate landlords, as defined by the corporate authorities of the municipality, within that municipality. The



authority to regulate landlords includes but is not limited to requiring landlords to make an addendum to any and all leases to include prohibitions of criminal activity.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 1801. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Elections & Campaign Reform, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1801 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Election Code is amended by changing Section 19A-15 as follows:

(10 ILCS 5/19A-15)

Sec. 19A-15. Period for early voting; hours.

(a) The period for early voting by personal appearance begins the 22nd day preceding a general primary, consolidated primary, consolidated, or general election and extends through the 5th day before election day.

(b) A permanent polling place for early voting must remain open during the hours of 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., or 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on weekdays and 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. on Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays; except that, in addition to the hours required by this subsection, a permanent early voting polling place designated by an election authority under subsection (c) of Section 19A-10 must remain open for a total of at least 8 hours on any holiday during the early voting period and a total of at least 14 hours on the final weekend during the early voting period.

(Source: P.A. 94-645, eff. 8-22-05.)"

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILL 1837.

SENATE BILL 1877. Having been recalled on May 13, 2009, and held on the order of Second Reading, the same was again taken up.

Representative Mathias offered the following amendment and moved its adoption.

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Bill 1877, AS AMENDED, as follows:  
in Section 10, Sec. 356z.15, subsection (a), the sentence beginning "A group or individual policy", by deleting "health spending account"; and

in Section 10, Sec. 356z.15, subsection (a), the sentence beginning "The insured or enrollee may", by deleting ", or demonstrative compliance with treatment recommendations as determined by the health insurer or managed care plan"; and

in Section 10, Sec. 356z.15, subsection (f), the sentence beginning "A reward", by deleting "health spending account".

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was again advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILL 2022.

SENATE BILL 2026. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time. The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Executive, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 2026 by replacing lines 24 through 26 on page 9 and lines 1 and 2 on page 10 with the following:

"(o) The use of an eavesdropping camera or audio device during an ongoing hostage or barricade situation by a law enforcement officer or individual acting on behalf of a law enforcement officer when the use of such device is necessary to protect the safety of the general public, hostages, or law enforcement officers or anyone acting on their behalf."

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 1922. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Telecommunications, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1922 on page 3, by replacing lines 5 through 11 with the following:

"to that term in Section 13-202 of the Public Utilities Act."; and  
on page 6, line 3, by replacing "providers" with "providers or telecommunications carriers"; and  
on page 6, line 4, by replacing "provider" with "provider or telecommunications carrier"; and  
on page 6, line 7, by replacing "provider, or" with "provider or telecommunications carrier, and"; and  
on page 6, line 15, by replacing "provider or" with "provider or telecommunications carrier and"; and  
on page 8, line 11, by replacing "Commission" with "Department"; and  
on page 8, by replacing lines 13 through 20 with the following:

"Section 65. Compliance. All telecommunications carriers and pay telephone providers shall program or provision their equipment and software to allow a calling party to dial and access 2-1-1 where it is being implemented in the State."

Representative Schmitz offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Bill 1922, AS AMENDED, by replacing Section 65 with the following:

"Section 65. Private branch exchange implementation. An entity that utilizes a private branch exchange may implement 2-1-1 service. This Section is repealed 2 years after the effective date of this Act."

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 2119. Having been read by title a second time on April 30, 2009, and held on the order of Second Reading, the same was again taken up.

Representative Currie offered the following amendment and moved its adoption.

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Bill 2119 on page 3, by replacing lines 9 through 18 with the following:

"input from statewide school community organizations, including organizations representing teachers, administrators, and parents, as well as civic, business, and child advocacy organizations and"

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILL 2150.

SENATE BILL 2272. Having been read by title a second time on April 30, 2009, and held on the order of Second Reading, the same was again taken up.

Representative Chapa LaVia offered the following amendment and moved its adoption.

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 2272 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Carrier, Racing, Hobby, and Show Pigeon Act of 1993 is amended by changing Section 7 as follows:

(510 ILCS 45/7) (from Ch. 8, par. 907)

Sec. 7. A municipality located in a county ~~having with~~ fewer than 3,000,000 inhabitants or a county shall not enact an ordinance ~~to prohibit which prohibits~~ the orderly keeping of carrier ~~pigeons, racing,~~ hobby, or show pigeons, except that (i) any municipality located ~~in within~~ a county having 3,000,000 or more inhabitants may enact an ordinance to prohibit or regulate the orderly keeping of carrier, racing, hobby, or show pigeons and (ii) any municipality located in a county having fewer than 3,000,000 inhabitants may enact an ordinance to regulate, but not prohibit, the orderly keeping of carrier, racing, hobby, or show pigeons.

(Source: P.A. 88-136; 89-651, eff. 8-14-96.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

Having been reproduced, the following bill was taken up, read by title a second time and advanced to the order of Third Reading: SENATE BILL 2289.

SENATE BILL 1698. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Higher Education, adopted and reproduced:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1698 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 1. Short title. This Act may be cited as the Task Force on Higher Education Private Student Loans.

Section 5. Legislative findings. The General Assembly makes all of the following findings:

- (1) Today, private loans constitute 20% of total education loan money, whereas 10 years ago private loans constituted 5% of student loans.
- (2) Tuition at public universities has risen 57% in the past 5 years.
- (3) Between 2000-2001 and 2005-2006, private student loan volume grew at an average rate of 27% to a total of \$17.3 billion.
- (4) Borrowers who do not complete their degrees are 10 times as likely to default on their loan and twice as likely to be unemployed.
- (5) Predatory and subprime lending practices have caused a crisis in the housing and real estate industry, and it is the interest of all parties involved to avoid a similar crisis involving private student loans.

Section 10. Creation of Task Force. There is created the Task Force on Higher Education Private Student Loans consisting of all of the following members:

- (1) One member each appointed by the President of the Senate, the Minority Leader of the Senate, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the Minority Leader of the House of Representatives.
- (2) One member appointed by the executive director of the Illinois Student Assistance Commission to serve as chairperson of the Task Force.
- (3) One member appointed by the Attorney General.
- (4) Members appointed by the Governor as follows:
  - (A) One member representing a banking organization.
  - (B) One member representing private schools and universities.
  - (C) One member representing a student loan corporation.
- (5) The executive director of the Board of Higher Education or his or her designee.
- (6) The State Treasurer or his or her designee to serve as the co-chairperson of the Task Force.
- (7) The Director of the Division of Financial Institutions of the Department of Financial and Professional Regulation or his or her designee.

Section 15. Duties. The duties of the Task Force on Higher Education Private Student Loans shall include without limitation all of the following:

- (1) To investigate the rates, fees, and terms associated with private student loans made to students in this State.
- (2) To investigate how rates, fees, and terms impact the accessibility of private student loans, affordability of student loans, and choice of institution students have.
- (3) To investigate the impact rates, fees, and terms have on students after graduation, specifically the following:
  - (A) The amount of debt they carry.
  - (B) The impact on pursuing post-graduate degrees.
  - (C) The ability to repay their loans.
- (4) To investigate the relationship between rising tuition and the availability of private loans.
- (5) To assess the impact of capping private student loan fees charged by lenders.
- (6) To investigate how many private student loans are in default or are not able to be repaid.
- (7) To investigate what rates, fees, and terms are common to those private student loans in default.
- (8) To assess what impact loan defaults have on lending institutions.
- (9) To assess the impact a loan default has on the borrower.
- (10) To study what additional disclosures can be made to students regarding high risk loans, financial information, financial choices, and financial aid available.
- (11) To investigate what higher education institutions can do to advise students on their financial aid and loan resources.
- (12) To investigate if race and ethnicity are a factor in the rates, fees, and terms associated with private student loans.

Section 20. Task Force assistance. The Office of the Illinois Student Assistance Commission shall be responsible for administrative and logistical support of the Task Force on Higher Education Private Student Loans, including coordination of Task Force member appointments, distribution of meeting notices and minutes, coordination of meeting logistics, facilitation of public meetings, and the drafting and filing of the report under Section 25 of this Act. Task Force members or staff liaisons or both may confer and collaborate with relevant State and national organizations with expertise.

Section 25. Report; dissolution of Task Force. The Task Force on Higher Education Private Student Loans shall report its findings and recommendations to the General Assembly by filing copies of its report by December 31, 2010 as provided in Section 3.1 of the General Assembly Organization Act. Upon filing this report the Task Force is dissolved.

Section 90. Expiration of Act. This Act is repealed on January 1, 2011."

Representative Hamos offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Bill 1698, AS AMENDED, immediately below Section 90, by inserting the following:

"Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 1729. Having been reproduced, was taken up and read by title a second time.

Representative Hamos offered the following amendment and moved its adoption:

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 1729 on page 1, by replacing lines 8 through 11 with the following:

"Sec. 2705-441. Intercity passenger rail equipment; public-private partnerships. The Department, on behalf of the State, may enter into public-private partnerships for the acquisition of equipment for intercity passenger rail service."

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

SENATE BILL 2112. Having been read by title a second time on May 18, 2009, and held on the order of Second Reading, the same was again taken up.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Judiciary I - Civil Law, adopted and reproduced.

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 2112 as follows:  
 on page 5, lines 21 through 23, by replacing "~~timeshare interest previously sold to a purchaser or solicits an owner of a timeshare~~" with the following:  
 "timeshare interest previously sold to a purchaser or solicits within this State any ~~an~~ owner of a timeshare";  
 and  
 on page 13, line 26 through page 14, line 1, by replacing "Unless exempt from licensure pursuant to the Real Estate License Act of 2000 or its successor Act, a" with "A"; and  
 on page 14, line 7, immediately following "total", by inserting "of"; and  
 on page 20, lines 24 and 25, by replacing "registry of deeds" with "office of the recorder".

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was advanced to the order of Third Reading.

### RECALL

At the request of the principal sponsor, Representative Reitz, SENATE BILL 2112 was recalled from the order of Third Reading to the order of Second Reading.

### SENATE BILL ON SECOND READING

SENATE BILL 2112. Having been recalled on May 18, 2009, the same was again taken up.

Representative Reitz offered the following amendment and moved its adoption.

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Bill 2112, AS AMENDED, by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Real Estate Timeshare Act of 1999 is amended by changing Sections 1-10, 1-15, 5-5, 5-15, 5-20, 5-25, 5-30, 5-40, 5-45, 5-50, 5-55, 5-60, 10-5, 10-15, 10-25, 10-30, 15-5, 15-10, 15-15, 15-20, 15-25, 15-30, 15-35, 15-40, 15-45, 15-50, 15-55, 15-60, 15-65, 15-70, 15-80, 20-5, 20-10, 20-15, 20-20, and 20-25, and by adding Sections 10-45, 10-50, and 10-55 as follows:

(765 ILCS 101/1-10)

Sec. 1-10. Scope of Act.

(a) This Act applies to all of the following:

- (1) Timeshare plans with an accommodation or component site in Illinois.
- (2) Timeshare plans without an accommodation or component site in Illinois, if those timeshare plans are sold or offered to be sold to any individual located within Illinois.
- (3) Exchange programs as defined in this Act.
- (4) Resale agents as defined in this Act.

(b) Exemptions. This Act does not apply to the following:

(1) Timeshare plans, whether or not an accommodation is located in Illinois, consisting of 7 or fewer timeshare periods, the use of which extends over any period of less than 3 years;  
or -

(2) Timeshare plans, whether or not an accommodation is located in Illinois, under which the prospective purchaser's total financial obligation will be less than \$1,500 during the entire term of the timeshare plan.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/1-15)

Sec. 1-15. Definitions. In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires:

"Accommodation" means any apartment, condominium or cooperative unit, cabin, lodge, hotel or motel room, or other private or commercial structure containing toilet facilities therein that is designed and available, pursuant to applicable law, for use and occupancy as a residence by one or more individuals, or any unit or berth on a commercial cruise line ship, which is included in the offering of a timeshare plan.

"Acquisition agent" means a person who, directly or through the person's employees, agents, or independent contractors, induces or attempts to induce by means of a promotion or an advertisement any individual located within the State of Illinois to attend a sales presentation for a timeshare plan.

"Advertisement" means any written, oral, or electronic communication that is directed to or targeted to persons within the State of Illinois and contains a promotion, inducement, or offer to sell a timeshare plan, including but not limited to brochures, pamphlets, radio and television scripts, electronic media, telephone and direct mail solicitations, and other means of promotion.

"Association" means the organized body consisting of the purchasers of interests in a timeshare plan.

"Assessment" means the share of funds required for the payment of common expenses which is assessed from time to time against each purchaser by the managing entity.

~~"Commissioner" means the Commissioner of Banks and Real Estate, or a natural person authorized by the Commissioner, the Office of Banks and Real Estate Act, or this Act to act in the Commissioner's stead.~~

"Component site" means a specific geographic location where accommodations which are part of a multi-site timeshare plan are located. Separate phases of a single timeshare property in a specific geographic location and under common management shall be deemed a single component site.

"Department" means the Department of Financial and Professional Regulation.

"Developer" means and includes any person or entity, other than a sales agent, acquisition agent, or resale agent, who creates a timeshare plan or is in the business of selling timeshare interests, or employs agents to do the same, or any person or entity who succeeds to the interest of a developer by sale, lease, assignment, mortgage, or other transfer, but the term includes only those persons who offer timeshare interests for disposition in the ordinary course of business.

"Dispose" or "disposition" means a voluntary transfer or assignment of any legal or equitable interest in a timeshare plan, other than the transfer, assignment, or release of a security interest.

"Exchange company" means any person owning or operating, or both owning and operating, an exchange program.

"Exchange program" means any method, arrangement, or procedure for the voluntary exchange of timeshare interests or other property interests. The term does not include the assignment of the right to use and occupy accommodations to owners of timeshare interests within a single-site timeshare plan. Any method, arrangement, or procedure that otherwise meets this definition, wherein the purchaser's total contractual financial obligation exceeds \$3,000 per any individual, recurring timeshare period, shall be regulated as a timeshare plan in accordance with this Act.

"Managing entity" means the person who undertakes the duties, responsibilities, and obligations of the management of a timeshare plan.

"Managing entity lien" means a lien created pursuant to Section 10-45.

"Offer" means any inducement, solicitation, or other attempt, whether by marketing, advertisement, oral or written presentation, or any other means, to encourage a person to acquire a timeshare interest in a timeshare plan, other than as security for an obligation.

"Person" means a natural person, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, association, estate, trust, government, governmental subdivision or agency, or other legal entity, or any combination thereof.

"Promotion" means a plan or device, including one involving the possibility of a prospective purchaser receiving a vacation, discount vacation, gift, or prize, used by a developer, or an agent, independent contractor, or employee of any of the same on behalf of the developer, in connection with the offering and sale of timeshare interests in a timeshare plan.

"Purchaser" means any person, other than a developer, who by means of a voluntary transfer acquires a legal or equitable interest in a timeshare plan other than as security for an obligation.

"Purchase contract" means a document pursuant to which a person becomes legally obligated to sell, and a purchaser becomes legally obligated to buy, a timeshare interest.

"Resale agent" means a person who, for another and for compensation, or with the intention or expectation of receiving compensation, either directly or indirectly sells, offers to sell, or advertises to sell within this State any timeshare interest previously sold to a purchaser or solicits within this State any owner of a timeshare interest to list the owner's timeshare interest, wherever located, for sale, directly or through the person's employees or agents, sells or offers to sell a timeshare interest previously sold to a purchaser or solicits an owner of a timeshare interest to list the owner's timeshare interest for sale.

"Reservation system" means the method, arrangement, or procedure by which a purchaser, in order to reserve the use or occupancy of any accommodation of a multi-site timeshare plan for one or more timeshare periods, is required to compete with other purchasers in the same multi-site timeshare plan, regardless of whether the reservation system is operated and maintained by the multi-site timeshare plan managing entity, an exchange company, or any other person. In the event that a purchaser is required to use an exchange program as the purchaser's principal means of obtaining the right to use and occupy accommodations, that arrangement shall be deemed a reservation system. When an exchange company utilizes a mechanism for the exchange of use of timeshare periods among members of an exchange program, that utilization is not a reservation system of a multi-site timeshare plan.

"Sales agent" means a person, other than a resale agent, who, directly or through the person's employees, agents, or independent contractors, sells or offers to sell timeshare interests in a timeshare plan to any individual located in the State of Illinois.

"Timeshare instrument" means one or more documents, by whatever name denominated, creating or governing the operation of a timeshare plan.

"Secretary" means the Secretary of the Department of Financial and Professional Regulation, or a natural person authorized by the Secretary, the Department of Financial and Professional Regulation, or this Act to act in the Secretary's stead.

"Timeshare interest" means and includes either:

(1) a "timeshare estate", which is the right to occupy a timeshare property, coupled with a freehold estate or an estate for years with a future interest in a timeshare property or a specified portion thereof; or

(2) a "timeshare use", which is the right to occupy a timeshare property, which right is neither coupled with a freehold interest, nor coupled with an estate for years with a future interest, in a timeshare property.

"Timeshare period" means the period or periods of time when the purchaser of a timeshare plan is afforded the opportunity to use the accommodations of a timeshare plan.

"Timeshare plan" means any arrangement, plan, scheme, or similar device, other than an exchange program, whether by membership agreement, sale, lease, deed, license, or right-to-use agreement or by any other means, whereby a purchaser, in exchange for consideration, receives ownership rights in or the right to use accommodations for a period of time less than a full year during any given year, but not necessarily for consecutive years. A timeshare plan may be:

(1) a "single-site timeshare plan", which is the right to use accommodations at a single timeshare property; or

(2) a "multi-site timeshare plan", which includes:

(A) a "specific timeshare interest", which is the right to use accommodations at a specific timeshare property, together with use rights in accommodations at one or more other component sites created by or acquired through the timeshare plan's reservation system; or

(B) a "non-specific timeshare interest", which is the right to use accommodations at more than one component site created by or acquired through the timeshare plan's reservation system, but including no specific right to use any particular accommodations.

"Timeshare property" means one or more accommodations subject to the same timeshare instrument, together with any other property or rights to property appurtenant to those accommodations.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/5-5)

Sec. 5-5. Exemptions from developer registration. A person shall not be required to register as a developer under this Act if:

(1) the person is an owner of a timeshare interest who has acquired the timeshare interest for the person's own use and occupancy and who later offers it for resale; or

(2) the person is a managing entity or an association that is not otherwise a developer of a timeshare plan in its own right, solely while acting as an association or under a contract with an association to offer or sell a timeshare interest transferred to the association through foreclosure, deed in lieu of foreclosure, or gratuitous transfer, if such acts are performed in the regular course of, or as an incident to, the management of the association for its own account in the timeshare plan; or

(3) the person offers a timeshare plan in a national publication or by electronic media, as determined by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and provided by rule, which is not directed to or targeted to any individual located in Illinois; or

(4) the person is conveyed, assigned, or transferred more than 7 timeshare periods from a developer in a single voluntary or involuntary transaction and subsequently conveys, assigns, or transfers all of the timeshare interests received from the developer to a single purchaser in a single transaction.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/5-15)

Sec. 5-15. Developer registration requirements.

(a) Registration required. Any person who, ~~to any individual located in Illinois,~~ sells, offers to sell, or attempts to solicit prospective purchasers or to solicit any individual located in Illinois to purchase a timeshare interest, or any person who creates a timeshare plan with an accommodation in the State of Illinois, shall register as a developer with the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and shall comply with the provisions of subsection (c) of this Section.

(b) Items to be registered. A developer shall be responsible for registering with the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, on forms provided by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, the following:

(1) All timeshare plans which have accommodations located in Illinois or which are sold or offered for sale to any individual located in Illinois.

(2) All sales agents who sell or offer to sell any timeshare interests in any timeshare plan offered by the developer to any individual located in Illinois.

(3) All acquisition agents who, by means of inducement, promotion, or advertisement, attempt to encourage or procure prospective purchasers located in Illinois to attend a sales presentation for any timeshare plan offered by the developer.

(4) All managing entities who manage any timeshare plan offered or sold by the developer to any individual located in Illinois, without limitation as to whether the location of the accommodation site managed is within Illinois.

(c) Escrow. The developer shall comply with the following escrow requirements:

(1) A developer of a timeshare plan shall deposit into an escrow account in a federally insured depository 100% of all funds which are received during the purchaser's rescission period. The deposit of such funds shall be evidenced by an executed escrow agreement between the escrow agent and the developer, which shall include provisions that:

(A) funds may be disbursed to the developer by the escrow agent from the escrow account only after expiration of the purchaser's rescission period and in accordance with the purchase contract, subject to paragraph (2) of this subsection; and

(B) if a purchaser properly cancels the purchase contract pursuant to its terms, the funds shall be paid to the purchaser or paid to the developer if the purchaser's funds have been



previously refunded by the developer.

(2) If a developer contracts to sell a timeshare interest and the construction of any property in which the timeshare interest is located has not been completed, the developer, upon expiration of the rescission period, shall continue to maintain in an escrow account all funds received by or on behalf of the developer from the purchaser under his or her purchase contract. The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ shall establish, by rule, the types of documentation which shall be required for evidence of completion, including but not limited to a certificate of occupancy, a certificate of substantial completion, or an inspection by the Office of the State Fire Marshal or the State Fire Marshal's designee or an equivalent public safety inspection agency in the applicable jurisdiction. Funds shall be released from escrow as follows:

(A) If a purchaser properly cancels the purchase contract pursuant to its terms, the funds shall be paid to the purchaser or paid to the developer if the purchaser's funds have been previously refunded by the developer.

(B) If a purchaser defaults in the performance of the purchaser's obligations under the purchase contract, the funds shall be paid to the developer.

(C) If the funds of a purchaser have not been previously disbursed in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph (2), they may be disbursed to the developer by the escrow agent upon the issuance of acceptable evidence of completion of construction as provided herein.

(3) In lieu of the provisions in paragraphs (1) and (2), the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ may accept from the developer a surety bond, irrevocable letter of credit, or other financial assurance acceptable to the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, as provided by rule. Any acceptable financial assurance must be in an amount equal to or in excess of the funds which would otherwise be placed in escrow, or in an amount equal to the cost to complete the incomplete property in which the timeshare interest is located.

(4) The developer shall provide escrow account information to the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and shall execute in writing an authorization consenting to an audit or examination of the account by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ on forms provided by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~. The developer shall comply with the reconciliation and records requirements established by rule by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~. The developer shall make documents related to the escrow account or escrow obligation available to the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ upon the ~~Department's Office's~~ request. The developer shall maintain any disputed funds in the escrow account until either:

(A) receipt of written direction agreed to by signature of all parties; or

(B) deposit of the funds with a court of competent jurisdiction in which a civil action regarding the funds has been filed.

(d) Comprehensive registration. In registering a timeshare plan, the developer shall be responsible for providing information on the following:

(1) The developer's legal name, any assumed names used by the developer, principal office street address, mailing address, primary contact person, and telephone number;

(2) The name of the developer's authorized or registered agent in the State of Illinois upon whom claims can be served or service of process be had, the agent's street address in Illinois, and telephone number;

(3) The name, street address, mailing address, primary contact person, and telephone number of any timeshare plan being registered;

(4) The name, street address, mailing address and telephone number of any sales agent and acquisition agent utilized by the developer, and any managing entity of the timeshare plan;

(5) A public offering statement which complies with the requirements of Sections 5-25; and

(6) Any other information regarding the developer, timeshare plan, sales agents, acquisition agents, or managing entities as reasonably required by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and established by rule.

(e) Abbreviated registration. The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ may accept, as provided for by rule, an abbreviated registration application of a developer of a timeshare plan in which all accommodations are located outside of the State of Illinois. ~~The developer shall file a written notice of intent to register under this Section at least 15 days prior to submission.~~ A developer of a timeshare plan

with any accommodation located in the State of Illinois may not file an abbreviated filing, with the exception of a succeeding developer after a merger or acquisition when all of the developers' timeshare plans were registered in Illinois immediately preceding the merger or acquisition.

The developer shall provide a certificate of registration or other evidence of registration from the appropriate regulatory agency of any other jurisdiction within the United States in which some or all of such accommodations are located. The other jurisdiction must have disclosure requirements that are substantially equivalent to or greater than the information required to be disclosed to purchasers by the State of Illinois. A developer filing an abbreviated registration application shall provide the following:

- (1) The developer's legal name, any assumed names used by the developer, and the developer's principal office location, mailing address, primary contact person, and telephone number.
  - (2) The name, location, mailing address, primary contact person, and telephone number of the timeshare plan.
  - (3) The name of the authorized agent or registered agent in Illinois upon whom claims can be served or service of process can be had, and the address in Illinois of the authorized agent or registered agent.
  - (4) The names of any sales agent, acquisition agent, and managing entity, and their principal office location, mailing address, and telephone number.
  - (5) The certificate of registration or other evidence of registration from any jurisdiction in which the timeshare plan is approved or accepted.
  - (6) A declaration as to whether the timeshare plan is a single-site timeshare plan or a multi-site timeshare plan and, if a multi-site timeshare plan, whether it consists of specific timeshare interests or non-specific timeshare interests.
  - (7) Disclosure of each jurisdiction in which the developer has applied for registration of the timeshare plan, and whether the timeshare plan, its developer, or any of its acquisition agents, sales agents, or managing entities utilized were denied registration or were the subject of any disciplinary proceeding.
  - (8) Copies of any disclosure documents required to be given to purchasers or required to be filed with the jurisdiction in which the timeshare plan is approved or accepted as may be requested by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~.
  - (9) The appropriate fee.
  - (10) Such other information reasonably required by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and established by rule.
- (f) Preliminary permits. Notwithstanding anything in this Section to the contrary, the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ may grant a 6-month preliminary permit, as established by rule, allowing the developer to begin offering and selling timeshare interests while the registration is in process. To obtain a preliminary permit, the developer shall do all of the following:
- (1) ~~(Blank). Submit a formal written request to the Office of Banks and Real Estate for a preliminary permit.~~
  - (2) Submit an application in form and substance satisfactory to the Department ~~a substantially complete application~~ for registration ~~to the Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, including all appropriate fees and exhibits required under this Article.
  - (3) Provide evidence acceptable to the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ that all funds received by the developer will be placed into an independent escrow account with instructions that funds will not be released until a final registration has been granted.
  - (4) Give to each purchaser and potential purchaser a copy of the proposed public offering statement that the developer has submitted to the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ with the initial application.
  - (5) Give to each purchaser the opportunity to cancel the purchase contract in accordance with Section 10-10. The purchaser shall have an additional opportunity to cancel upon the issuance of an approved registration if the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ determines that there is a substantial difference in the disclosures contained in the final public offering statement and those given to the purchaser in the proposed public offering statement.
- (g) Alternative registration; letter of credit or other assurance; recovery.
- (1) Notwithstanding anything in this Act to the contrary, the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ may accept, as

established by rule, a registration from a developer for a timeshare plan if the developer provides all of the following:

(A) ~~(Blank). A written notice of intent to register under this Section at least 15 days prior to submission of the alternative registration.~~

(B) An irrevocable letter of credit or other acceptable assurance, as established by rule, in an amount of \$1,000,000, from which an Illinois purchaser aggrieved by any act, representation, transaction, or conduct of a duly registered developer or his or her acquisition agent, sales agent, managing entity, or employee, which violates any provision of this Act or the rules promulgated under this Act, or which constitutes embezzlement of money or property or results in money or property being unlawfully obtained from any person by false pretenses, artifice, trickery, or forgery or by reason of any fraud, misrepresentation, discrimination, or deceit by or on the part of any developer or agent or employee of the developer and which results in actual monetary loss as opposed to a loss in market value, may recover.

(C) The developer's legal name, any assumed names used by the developer, and the developer's principal office location, mailing address, main contact person, and telephone number.

(D) The name, location, mailing address, main contact person, and telephone number of the timeshare plan included in the filing.

(E) The name of the authorized agent or registered agent in Illinois upon whom claims can be served or service of process can be had, and the address in Illinois of the authorized agent or registered agent.

(F) The names of any sales agent, acquisition agent, and managing entity, and their principal office location, mailing address, and telephone number.

(G) A declaration as to whether the timeshare plan is a single-site timeshare plan or a multi-site timeshare plan and, if a multi-site timeshare plan, whether it consists of specific timeshare interests or non-specific timeshare interests.

(H) Disclosure of each jurisdiction in which the developer has applied for registration of the timeshare plan, and whether the timeshare plan, its developer, or any of its acquisition agents, sales agents, or managing entities utilized were denied registration or were the subject of any disciplinary proceeding.

(I) The required fee.

(J) Such other information reasonably required by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and established by rule.

(2) Any letter of credit or other acceptable assurance shall remain in effect with the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ for a period of 12 months after the date the developer does not renew or otherwise cancel his or her registration with the State of Illinois or 12 months after the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ revokes, suspends, or otherwise disciplines such developer or his or her registration, provided there is no pending litigation alleging a violation of any provision of this Act known by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and certified by the developer.

(3) The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ shall establish procedures, by rule, to satisfy claims by any Illinois purchaser pursuant to this Section.

(4) The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ shall automatically suspend the registration of any developer pursuant to Section 15-25 of this Act in the event the ~~Department Office~~ authorizes or directs payment to an Illinois purchaser from the letter of credit or other acceptable assurance pursuant to this Section and as established by rule.

(h) A developer who registers a timeshare plan pursuant to this Act shall provide the purchaser with a public offering statement that complies with Section 5-25 and any disclosures or other written information required by this Act.

(i) Nothing contained in this Section shall affect the ~~Department's Office of Banks and Real Estate's~~ ability to initiate any disciplinary action against a developer in accordance with this Act.

(j) For purposes of this Section, "Illinois purchaser" means a person who, within the State of Illinois, is solicited, offered, or sold a timeshare interest in a timeshare plan registered pursuant to this Section.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/5-20)

Sec. 5-20. Developer supervisory duties. The developer shall have the duty to supervise, manage, and control all aspects of the offering of the timeshare plan, including, but not limited to, promotion,

advertising, contracting, and closing. The developer shall have responsibility for each timeshare plan registered with the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and for the actions of any sales agent, managing entity, and acquisition agent utilized by the developer in the offering or selling of any registered timeshare plan. Any violation of this Act which occurs during the offering activities shall be deemed to be a violation by the developer as well as by the acquisition agent, sales agent, or managing entity who actually committed such violation. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Act, the developer shall be responsible for the actions of the association and managing entity only while they are subject to the developer's control.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/5-25)

Sec. 5-25. Timeshare plan public offering statement requirements.

(a) A developer shall prepare a public offering statement, shall provide the statement to each purchaser of a timeshare interest in any timeshare plan at the time of purchase, and shall fully and accurately disclose those facts concerning the timeshare developer and timeshare plan that are required by this Act or by rule. The public offering statement shall be in writing and dated and shall require the purchaser to certify in writing the receipt thereof.

(b) With regard to timeshare interests offered in a timeshare plan, a public offering statement shall fully and accurately disclose the following:

- (1) The name of the developer and the principal address of the developer.
- (2) A description of the type of timeshare interests being offered.
- (3) A general description of the existing and proposed accommodations and amenities of the timeshare plan, including their type and number, personal property furnishing the accommodation, any use restrictions, and any required fees for use.
- (4) A description of any accommodations and amenities that are committed to be built, including, without limitation:
  - (A) the developer's schedule of commencement and completion of all accommodations and amenities; and
  - (B) the estimated number of accommodations per site that may become subject to the timeshare plan.
- (5) A brief description of the duration, phases, and operation of the timeshare plan.
- (6) The current annual budget, if available, or the projected annual budget for the timeshare plan. The budget shall include, without limitation:
  - (A) a statement of the amount, or a statement that there is no amount, included in the budget as a reserve for repairs and replacement;
  - (B) the projected common expense liability, if any, by category of expenditures for the timeshare plan; and
  - (C) a statement of any services or expenses not reflected in the budget that the developer provides or pays.
- (7) Any initial or special fee due from the purchaser at closing, together with a description of the purpose and method of calculating the fee.
- (8) A description of any liens, defects, or encumbrances on or affecting the title to the timeshare interests.
- (9) A description of any financing offered by or available through the developer.
- (10) A statement that within 5 calendar days after receipt of the public offering statement or after execution of the purchase contract, whichever is later, a purchaser may cancel any purchase contract for a timeshare interest from a developer together with a statement providing the name and street address to which the purchaser should mail any notice of cancellation. However, if by agreement of the parties by and through the purchase contract, the purchase contract allows for cancellation of the purchase contract for a period of time exceeding 5 calendar days, then the public offering statement shall include a statement that the cancellation of the purchase contract is allowed for that period of time exceeding 5 calendar days.
- (11) A statement of any pending suits, adjudications, or disciplinary actions material to the timeshare interests of which the developer has knowledge.
- (12) Any restrictions on alienation of any number or portion of any timeshare interests.
- (13) A statement describing liability and casualty insurance for the timeshare property.
- (14) Any current or expected fees or charges to be paid by timeshare purchasers for the

use of any amenities related to the timeshare property.

(15) The extent to which financial arrangements have been provided for completion of all promised improvements.

(16) The developer or managing entity must notify the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ of the extent to which an

accommodation may become subject to a tax or other lien arising out of claims against other purchasers in the same timeshare plan. The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ may require the developer or managing entity to notify a prospective purchaser of any such potential tax or lien which would materially and adversely affect the prospective purchaser.

(17) A statement indicating that the developer and timeshare plan are registered with the State of Illinois.

(18) If the timeshare plan provides purchasers with the opportunity to participate in an exchange program, a description of the name and address of the exchange company and the method by which a purchaser accesses the exchange program.

(19) Such other information reasonably required by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and established by

administrative rule necessary for the protection of purchasers of timeshare interests in timeshare plans.

(20) Any other information that the developer, with the approval of the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, desires to

include in the public offering statement.

(c) A developer offering a multi-site timeshare plan shall also fully and accurately disclose the following information, which may be disclosed in a written, graphic, or tabular form:

(1) A description of each component site, including the name and address of each component site.

(2) The number of accommodations and timeshare periods, expressed in periods of 7-day use availability, committed to the multi-site timeshare plan and available for use by purchasers.

(3) Each type of accommodation in terms of the number of bedrooms, bathrooms, and sleeping capacity, and a statement of whether or not the accommodation contains a full kitchen. For purposes of this description, a "full kitchen" means a kitchen having a minimum of a dishwasher, range, sink, oven, and refrigerator.

(4) A description of amenities available for use by the purchaser at each component site.

(5) A description of the reservation system, which shall include the following:

(A) The entity responsible for operating the reservation system.

(B) A summary of the rules and regulations governing access to and use of the reservation system.

(C) The existence of and an explanation regarding any priority reservation features that affect a purchaser's ability to make reservations for the use of a given accommodation on a first-come, first-served basis.

(6) A description of any right to make any additions, substitutions, or deletions of accommodations or amenities, and a description of the basis upon which accommodations and amenities may be added to, substituted in, or deleted from the multi-site timeshare plan.

(7) A description of the purchaser's liability for any fees associated with the multi-site timeshare plan.

(8) The location and the anticipated relative use demand of each component site in a multi-site timeshare plan, as well as any periodic adjustment or amendment to the reservation system which may be needed in order to respond to actual purchaser use patterns and changes in purchaser use demand for the accommodations existing at that time within the multi-site timeshare plan.

(9) Such other information reasonably required by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and established by

administrative rule necessary for the protection of purchasers of timeshare interests in timeshare plans.

(10) Any other information that the developer, with the approval of the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, desires to

include in the public offering statement.

(d) If a developer offers a non-specific timeshare interest in a multi-site timeshare plan, the developer shall disclose the information set forth in subsection (b) as to each component site.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/5-30)

Sec. 5-30. Exchange company registration and disclosure requirements.

(a) ~~An Each~~ exchange company offering an exchange program to purchasers in this State shall register with the Department at least 20 calendar days prior to offering an exchange program to purchasers in this State. ~~Office of Banks and Real Estate by July 1 of each year. The registration shall consist of the information specified in this Section. However, an exchange company shall make its initial registration at least 20 calendar days prior to offering membership in an exchange program to any purchaser in this State.~~

(b) If a purchaser is offered the opportunity to become a member of an exchange program, the developer shall deliver to the purchaser, together with the public offering statement and any other materials required to be furnished under this Section, and prior to the offering or execution of any contract between the purchaser and the exchange company offering membership in the exchange program, or, if the exchange company is dealing directly with the purchaser, the developer or the exchange company shall deliver to the purchaser, prior to the initial offering or execution of any contract between the purchaser and the exchange company, the following written information regarding the exchange program, the form and substance of which shall first be approved by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ in accordance with this Section:

- (1) The name and address of the exchange company.
- (2) The names of all officers, directors, and shareholders of the exchange company.
- (3) Whether the exchange company or any of its officers or directors have any legal or beneficial interest in any developer, seller, or managing entity for any timeshare plan participating in the exchange program and, if so, the identity of the timeshare plan and the nature of the interest.
- (4) Unless otherwise stated, a statement that the purchaser's contract with the exchange company is a contract separate and distinct from the purchaser's contract with the seller of timeshare interests.
- (5) Whether the purchaser's participation in the exchange program is dependent upon the continued affiliation of the applicable timeshare plan with the exchange program.
- (6) A statement that the purchaser's participation in the exchange program is voluntary.
- (7) A complete and accurate description of the terms and conditions of the purchaser's contractual relationship with the exchange program and the procedure by which changes thereto may be made.
- (8) A complete and accurate description of the procedures necessary to qualify for and effectuate exchanges.
- (9) A complete and accurate description of all limitations, restrictions, and priorities employed in the operation of the exchange program, including but not limited to limitations on exchanges based on seasonality, accommodation size, or levels of occupancy, expressed in conspicuous type, and, in the event that those limitations, restrictions, or priorities are not uniformly applied by the exchange company, a clear description of the manner in which they are applied.
- (10) Whether exchanges are arranged on a space-available basis and whether any guarantees of fulfillment of specific requests for exchanges are made by the exchange company.
- (11) Whether and under what circumstances an owner, in dealing with the exchange program, may lose the right to use and occupy an accommodation of the timeshare plan during a reserved use period with respect to any properly applied-for exchange without being provided with substitute accommodations by the exchange program.
- (12) The fees or range of fees for participation by owners in the exchange program, a statement of whether any such fees may be altered by the exchange company, and the circumstances under which alterations may be made.
- (13) The name and address of the site of each accommodation included within a timeshare plan participating in the exchange program.
- (14) The number of accommodations in each timeshare plan that are available for occupancy and that qualify for participation in the exchange program, expressed within the following numerical groups: 1-5; 6-10; 11-20; 21-50; and 51 and over.
- (15) The number of currently enrolled owners for each timeshare plan participating in the exchange program, expressed within the following numerical groups: 1-100; 101-249; 250-499; 500-999; and 1,000 and over; and a statement of the criteria used to determine those owners who are currently enrolled with the exchange program.
- (16) The disposition made by the exchange company of use periods deposited with the

exchange program by owners enrolled in the exchange program and not used by the exchange company in effecting exchanges.

(17) The following information for the preceding calendar year, which shall be independently audited by a certified public accountant in accordance with the standards of the Accounting Standards Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and reported on an annual basis on or after August 1 as established by rule annually no later than August 1 of each year:

(A) The number of owners currently enrolled in the exchange program.

(B) The number of timeshare plans that have current affiliation agreements with the exchange program.

(C) The percentage of confirmed exchanges, which is the number of exchanges confirmed by the exchange program divided by the number of exchanges properly applied for, together with a complete and accurate statement of the criteria used to determine whether an exchange request was properly applied for.

(D) The number of use periods for which the exchange program has an outstanding obligation to provide an exchange to an owner who relinquished a use period during a particular year in exchange for a use period in any future year.

(E) The number of exchanges confirmed by the exchange program during the year.

(F) A statement in conspicuous type to the effect that the percentage described in subdivision (17)(C) of this subsection is a summary of the exchange requests entered with the exchange program in the period reported and that the percentage does not indicate the probabilities of an owner's being confirmed to any specific choice or range of choices.

(18) Such other information as may be reasonably required by the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate of any exchange company as established by rule.

(c) No developer shall have any liability with respect to any violation of this Act arising out of the publication by the developer of information provided to it by an exchange company pursuant to this Article. No exchange company shall have any liability with respect to any violation of this Act arising out of the use by a developer of information relating to an exchange program other than that provided to the developer by the exchange company.

(d) All written, visual, and electronic communications relating to an exchange company or an exchange program shall be filed with the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate upon its request.

(e) The failure of an exchange company to observe the requirements of this Section, and the use of any unfair or deceptive act or practice in connection with the operation of an exchange program, is a violation of this Act.

(f) An exchange company may elect to deny exchange privileges to any owner whose use of the accommodations of the owner's timeshare plan is denied, and no exchange program or exchange company shall be liable to any of its members or any third parties on account of any such denial of exchange privileges.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/5-40)

Sec. 5-40. Resale agent duties. A Whether registered or exempt from registration under Section 5-35, a resale agent shall comply with all of the following:

(a) Prior to engaging in any resale activities on behalf of any owner of a timeshare interest or accepting anything of value from any owner of a timeshare interest, a resale agent shall enter into a listing agreement with that owner. Every listing agreement shall be in writing and signed by both the resale agent and the timeshare interest owner. The requirements of the written listing agreement shall be established by rule, but at a minimum the listing agreement shall disclose the following:

(1) The name and address of the resale agent and the timeshare interest owner.

(2) The term of the listing agreement.

(3) Whether the resale agent's rights under the listing agreement are exclusive and, if the resale agent's rights are exclusive, the length of such exclusivity period.

(4) Whether any person other than the timeshare interest owner may use the timeshare during the period before the timeshare interest is resold.

(5) Whether any person other than the timeshare interest owner may rent or exchange the use of the timeshare interest during the term of the listing agreement.

(6) The name of any person who will receive any rents, profits, or other thing of value generated from the use of the timeshare interest during the period before the timeshare interest is resold.

(7) A detailed description of any relationship between the resale agent and any other person who receives any benefit from the use of the timeshare interest.

(8) A description of any fees or costs that relate to the listing or sale of the timeshare interest that the timeshare interest owner (or any other person) must pay to the resale agent or any third party. If the timeshare interest owner (or any other person) must pay a fee to the resale agent or any third party before the sale of the timeshare interest, the listing agreement must identify each of the following:

(A) The amount of each pre-sale fee and to whom such pre-sale fee must be paid.

(B) The time by which each pre-sale fee must be paid.

(C) A reasonable description of each pre-sale cost or fee.

(D) A description and the estimated amount of any other fees or costs associated with the listing or sale of the timeshare interest.

(E) The ratio or percentage of the number of listings of timeshare interests for sale versus the number of timeshare interests sold by the resale agent for each of the past 3 years.

(9) A description of the amount or percentage and procedures for paying any commissions due to the resale agent upon resale of the timeshare interest, the method of compensation, a definite date of termination, whether any fees are non refundable, and whether the agreement permits the timeshare resale agent or any other person to make any use whatsoever of the owner's timeshare interest or receive any rents or profits generated from such use of the timeshare interest.

(b) A resale agent shall maintain records as required by rule. The records required to be maintained include, but are not limited to, all listing agreements, copies of disbursement authorizations in accordance with subsection (c), and resale contracts.

(c) A resale agent who collects any fees prior to a transfer of an interest from any owner shall deposit the fees in an escrow account. Any fees that are to be paid to the resale agent prior to closing may be disbursed from the escrow account only upon receipt of a disbursement authorization, signed by the owner, in the following form:

"I, (name of owner), am the owner of a timeshare interest in (name of timeshare plan).

I understand that for my protection I can require the entire fee to be held in escrow until the closing on the resale of my timeshare interest, but I am authorizing a release before the transfer in the following amount: (amount written in words) (\$ (amount in numbers)), for the following purpose or purposes (description of purpose or purposes). I understand that the resale agent is regulated by the Illinois Department of Financial and Professional Regulation, or its successor agency, Office of Banks and Real Estate under the Real Estate Timeshare Act of 1999. The Illinois Department of Financial and Professional Regulation Office of Banks and Real Estate requires the resale agent to obtain this disbursement authorization with my signature before disbursement of my funds."

(d) A resale agent shall utilize a purchase agreement that discloses to a purchaser of a timeshare interest all of the following:

(1) A legally sufficient description of the timeshare interest being purchased.

(2) The name and address of the managing entity of the timeshare property.

(3) The amount of the most recent current year's assessment for the common expenses allocated to the timeshare interest being

purchased including the time period to which the assessment relates (e.g., monthly, quarterly, yearly) and the date on which it is due. If not included in the applicable common expense assessment, the amount of any real or personal property taxes allocated to the timeshare interest being purchased.

(3.5) Whether all assessments and real or personal property taxes that are due against the timeshare interest are paid in full and, if not, the amount owed and the consequences of failure to pay timely any assessment or real or personal property taxes.

(4) A complete and accurate disclosure of the terms and conditions of the purchase and closing, including the obligations of the owner, the purchaser, or both for closing costs and the title insurance.

(5) The entity responsible for providing notification to the managing entity of the timeshare plan and the applicable exchange company regarding any change in the ownership of the timeshare interest.

(6) A statement of the first year in which the purchaser is entitled to receive the actual use rights and occupancy of the timeshare interest, as determined by the managing entity of the timeshare plan and any exchange company.

(6.5) The name, address, telephone number, and website (if applicable) where the governing documents of the association, if any, and the timeshare instrument may be obtained, together with the



following disclosure:

"There are many important documents relating to the timeshare plan that you should review before purchasing a timeshare interest. These may include, but are not limited to, (a) the declaration of condominium, (b) the declaration of timeshare plan, (c) the reciprocal easement and cost sharing agreement, (d) the declaration of restrictions, covenants, and conditions, (e) the owners association articles and bylaws, (f) the current year's operating and reserve budgets, if any, for the owners association, and (g) any rules and regulations affecting the use of the timeshare property or other facility or amenity available for use by timeshare interest owners."

(7) In making the disclosures required by this subsection (d), the timeshare resale agent may rely upon information provided in writing by the owner or managing entity of the timeshare plan.

(8) The purchaser's 5 calendar day ~~5-day~~ cancellation period as required by Section 10-10.

(9) Any other information determined by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and established by rule.

(e) A resale agent must be licensed as a real estate broker or salesperson pursuant to the Real Estate License Act of 2000 or its successor Act.

(f) A resale agent is exempt from the duties imposed by subsections (a) through (d) of this Section if the resale agent offers an aggregate total of no more than 8 timeshare interests per calendar year as a resale agent, regardless of (1) whether those timeshare interests are located in this State and (2) whether the resale agent offers all, or only some, of those timeshare interests, in this State.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/5-45)

Sec. 5-45. Amendment to registration information or public offering statement. The developer, ~~resale agent,~~ and exchange company shall amend or supplement their disclosure documents and registration information to reflect any material change in any information required by this Act or the rules implementing this Act. All such amendments, supplements, and changes shall be filed with the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ within 30 ~~20~~ calendar days of the material change.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/5-50)

Sec. 5-50. Registration review time frames. Every registration required to be filed with the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ under this Act shall be reviewed and issued a certificate of registration in accordance with the following schedule:

(1) Comprehensive registration. Registration shall be effective only upon the issuance of a certificate of registration by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, which, in the ordinary course of business, should occur no more than 60 calendar days after actual receipt by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ of the properly completed application. The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ shall ~~must~~ provide a list of deficiencies in the application, if any, within 60 calendar days of receipt. The list may be in a written or electronic format.

(2) Abbreviated registration. Registration shall be effective only upon the issuance of a certificate of registration by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, which, in the ordinary course of business, should occur no more than 30 calendar days after actual receipt by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ of the properly completed application. The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ shall ~~must~~ provide a list of deficiencies in the application, if any, within 30 calendar days of receipt. The list may be in a written or electronic format.

(3) Alternative assurance registration. Registration shall be ~~deemed~~ effective only upon the issuance of a certificate of registration by the Department, which, in the ordinary course of business, should occur no more than ~~within~~ 30 ~~45~~ calendar

days ~~after~~ of receipt by the Department. The Department shall provide a ~~unless the Office of Banks and Real Estate provides to the applicant a written~~ list of deficiencies in the application, if any, within 30 ~~45~~ calendar days of receipt. The list may be in a written or electronic format.

(4) Preliminary permit registration. A preliminary permit shall be issued only upon the written approval by the Department, which, in the ordinary course of business, should occur no more than 30 ~~within~~ ~~15~~ calendar

days ~~after~~ actual ~~of receipt of the required documentation by the Department. The Department shall provide a ~~unless the Office of Banks and Real Estate provides to the applicant a written~~ list of deficiencies in the application, if any, within 30 ~~45~~ calendar days of receipt. The list may be in a written or electronic format.~~

(5) Exchange company registration. Registration shall be effective only upon the issuance of a certificate of registration by the Department, which, in the ordinary course of business, should occur no more than 60 calendar days after the actual receipt by the Office of Banks and Real Estate of a properly completed application by the Department. ~~The Department shall~~ Office of Banks and Real Estate must provide a list of deficiencies in the application, if any, within 60 ~~30~~ calendar days of receipt. The list may be in a written or electronic format.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/5-55)

Sec. 5-55. Fees. ~~The Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ shall provide, by rule, for fees to be paid by applicants and registrants to cover the reasonable costs of the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ in administering and enforcing the provisions of this Act. ~~The Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ may also provide, by rule, for general fees to cover the reasonable expenses of carrying out other functions and responsibilities under this Act.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/5-60)

Sec. 5-60. Registration; offer or disposal of interest; renewal.

(a) A developer or ~~;~~ exchange company, ~~or resale agent,~~ or any of their agents, shall not sell, offer, or dispose of a timeshare interest unless all necessary registrations are filed and approved by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, or while an order revoking or suspending a registration is in effect.

(b) An applicant for registration under this Act shall submit the necessary information to complete the application, as required by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, within 6 months from the date the initial registration application was received by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~. If the applicant fails to submit the information necessary to complete the application as required by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ within the six month period, said application shall be voided, and a new registration application with applicable fees must be submitted.

(c) The registration of a developer, exchange company, individual, or entity registered under this Act shall be renewed as required by rule.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/10-5)

Sec. 10-5. Management and operation provisions.

(a) Before the first sale of a timeshare interest, the developer shall create or provide for a managing entity, which shall be either the developer, a separate manager or management firm, the board of directors of an owners' association, or some combination thereof.

(b) The duties of the managing entity include, but are not limited to:

- (1) Management and maintenance of all accommodations constituting the timeshare plan.
- (2) Collection of all assessments as provided in the timeshare instrument.
- (3) Providing to all purchasers each year an itemized annual budget, which shall include all estimated revenues and expenses.
- (4) Maintenance of all books and records concerning the timeshare plan.
- (5) Scheduling occupancy of accommodations, when purchasers are not entitled to use

specific timeshare periods, so that all purchasers will be provided the opportunity to use and possession of the accommodations of the timeshare plan which they have purchased.

(6) Performing any other functions and duties that are necessary and proper to maintain the accommodations or that are required by the timeshare instrument.

(c) ~~If in the event~~ a developer, mortgagee, managing entity, or association does not pursue nonjudicial foreclosure as provided in Section 10-50 or 10-55 and instead forecloses against a timeshare interest pursuant to the Illinois Mortgage Foreclosure Law, files a complaint in a foreclosure proceeding involving timeshare interests, the developer, mortgagee, managing entity, or association may join in the same action multiple defendant obligors and junior interest holders of separate timeshare interests, provided:

- (1) the foreclosure proceeding involves a single timeshare plan;
- (2) the foreclosure proceeding is filed by a single plaintiff;
- (3) the default and remedy provisions in the written instruments on which the foreclosure proceeding is based are substantially the same for each defendant; and
- (4) the nature of the defaults alleged is the same for each defendant.

(d) In any foreclosure proceeding involving multiple defendants filed under subsection (c), the court shall sever for separate trial any count of the complaint in which a defense or counterclaim is timely raised by a defendant.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/10-15)

Sec. 10-15. Interests, liens, and encumbrances; alternative assurances.

(a) Excluding any encumbrance placed against the purchaser's timeshare interest securing the purchaser's payment of purchase-money financing for such purchase, the developer shall not be entitled to the release of any funds escrowed under subsection (c) of Section 5-15 with respect to each timeshare interest and any other property or rights to property appurtenant to the timeshare interest, including any amenities represented to the purchaser as being part of the timeshare plan, until the developer has provided satisfactory evidence to the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ of one of the following:

(1) The timeshare interest together with any other property or rights to property appurtenant to the timeshare interest, including any amenities represented to the purchaser as being part of the timeshare plan, are free and clear of any of the claims of the developer, any owner of the underlying fee, a mortgagee, judgment creditor, or other lienor, or any other person having an interest in or lien or encumbrance against the timeshare interest or appurtenant property or property rights.

(2) The developer, any owner of the underlying fee, a mortgagee, judgment creditor, or other lienor, or any other person having an interest in or lien or encumbrance against the timeshare interest or appurtenant property or property rights, including any amenities represented to the purchaser as being part of the timeshare plan, has recorded a subordination and notice to creditors document in the appropriate public records of the jurisdiction in which the timeshare interest is located. The subordination document shall expressly and effectively provide that the interest holder's right, lien, or encumbrance shall not adversely affect, and shall be subordinate to, the rights of the owners of the timeshare interests in the timeshare plan regardless of the date of purchase, from and after the effective date of the subordination document.

(3) The developer, any owner of the underlying fee, a mortgagee, judgment creditor, or other lienor, or any other person having an interest in or lien or encumbrance against the timeshare interest or appurtenant property or property rights, including any amenities represented to the purchaser as being part of the timeshare plan, has transferred the subject accommodations or amenities or all use rights therein to a nonprofit organization or owners' association to be held for the use and benefit of the owners of the timeshare plan, which entity shall act as a fiduciary to the purchasers, provided that the developer has transferred control of such entity to the owners or does not exercise its voting rights in such entity with respect to the subject accommodations or amenities. Prior to the transfer, any lien or other encumbrance against the accommodation or facility shall be made subject to a subordination and notice to creditors instrument pursuant to paragraph (2).

(4) Alternative arrangements have been made which are adequate to protect the rights of the purchasers of the timeshare interests and approved by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~.

(b) Nothing in this Section shall prevent a developer from accessing any escrow funds if the developer has complied with subsection (c) of Section 5-15.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/10-25)

Sec. 10-25. Liability; material misrepresentation; promotions.

(a) A developer or other person offering a timeshare plan may not do any of the following:

(1) Misrepresent a fact material to a purchaser's decision to buy a timeshare interest.

(2) Predict specific or immediate increases in the value of a timeshare interest represented over a period of time, excluding bona fide pending price increases by the developer.

(3) Materially misrepresent the qualities or characteristics of accommodations or the amenities available to the occupant of those accommodations.

(4) Misrepresent the length of time accommodations or amenities will be available to the purchaser of a timeshare interest.

(5) Misrepresent the conditions under which a purchaser of a timeshare interest may exchange the right of his or her occupancy for the right to occupy other accommodations.

(b) A developer or other person using a promotion in connection with the offering of a timeshare interest shall clearly disclose all of the following:

(1) That the purpose of the promotion is to sell timeshare interests, which shall appear in bold face or other conspicuous type.

(2) That any person whose name or address is obtained during the promotion may be solicited to purchase a timeshare interest.

(3) The name of each developer or other person trying to sell a timeshare interest through the promotion, and the name of each person paying for the promotion.

(4) The complete rules of the promotion.

(5) The method of awarding prizes, gifts, vacations, discount vacations, or other benefits under the promotion; a complete and fully detailed description, including approximate retail value, of all prizes, gifts, or benefits under the promotion; the quantity of each prize, gift, or benefit to be awarded or conferred; and the date by which each prize, gift, or benefit will be awarded or conferred.

(6) Any other disclosures provided by rule.

(c) If a person represents that a prize, gift, or benefit will be awarded in connection with a promotion, the prize, gift, or benefit must be awarded or conferred in the manner represented, and on or before the date represented.

(d) A developer or other person using a promotion in connection with the offering of a timeshare interest shall provide the disclosures required by this Section in writing or electronically to the prospective purchaser at least once before the earlier of (1) a reasonable period before the scheduled sales presentation to ensure that the prospective purchaser receives the disclosures before leaving to attend the sales presentation or (2) the payment of any nonrefundable monies by the prospective purchaser in regard to the promotion.

(e) A developer or other person using a promotion in connection with the offering of a timeshare interest is not required to provide the disclosures required by this Section in every advertisement or other written, oral, or electronic communication provided or made to a prospective purchaser.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/10-30)

Sec. 10-30. Records. The managing entity shall keep detailed financial records directly related to the operation of the association. All financial and other records shall be made reasonably available for examination by any purchaser, or the authorized agent of the purchaser, and the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~. For purposes of this Section, the books and records of the timeshare plan shall be considered "reasonably available" if copies of the requested portions are delivered to the purchaser or the purchaser's agent or the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ within 7 days of the date the managing entity receives a written request for the records signed by the purchaser or the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~. The managing entity may charge the purchaser a reasonable fee for copying the requested information.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/10-45 new)

Sec. 10-45. Managing entity lien created.

(a) A managing entity has a lien on a timeshare interest for any of the following respectively levied or imposed against a timeshare interest:

(1) Assessments, which for purposes of this Act unless the timeshare instrument provides otherwise, shall include fees, charges, late charges, fines, collection costs, and interest charged in accordance with the timeshare instrument;

(2) Reasonable collection and attorneys fees and costs the managing entity incurs to collect assessments; and

(3) Taxes, interest, penalties, late payment fees or fines in accordance with applicable law or the timeshare instrument.

(b) Managing entity liens pursuant to this Section are created and attached when the charges described in Section 10-45(a) become due. If such amounts are payable in installments, the full amount of such charges is a managing entity lien from the time that the first installment thereof becomes due.

(c) Managing entity liens pursuant to this Section are perfected on the date that the managing entity:

(1) In the case of a timeshare estate, records a notice of lien against the timeshare estate in the office of the recorder in the county where the timeshare estate is located, which notice of lien must identify each of the following:

(A) The name of the timeshare estate owner;

(B) The name and address of the managing entity;

(C) The description of the timeshare estate in the same manner required for recording a mortgage against a timeshare estate; and

(D) The amount of the debt secured by the managing entity lien.

(2) In the case of a timeshare use, files a notice of lien against the timeshare use in the filing office of the Illinois Secretary of State pursuant to Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code, which notice of lien,

in addition to any other filing requirements imposed by Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code, must identify each of the following:

- (A) The name of the timeshare use owner as the debtor;
- (B) The name of the managing entity as the secured party;
- (C) The address of the managing entity;
- (D) The timeshare use as the collateral; and
- (E) The amount of the debt secured by the managing entity lien.

(d) The managing entity must send a copy of the recorded or filed notice of lien on the timeshare interest, as the case may be, to the last known address of the timeshare interest owner.

(e) A managing entity lien against a timeshare estate, at the managing entity's option, may (1) be foreclosed as provided in Section 10-50 or (2) be foreclosed in the same manner as a mortgage pursuant to the Illinois Mortgage Foreclosure Law.

(f) A managing entity lien against a timeshare use, at the managing entity's option, may (1) be foreclosed as provided in Section 10-55 or (2) be enforced in the same manner as a security interest pursuant to Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code.

(765 ILCS 101/10-50 new)

Sec. 10-50. Nonjudicial foreclosure against timeshare estates.

(a) Notwithstanding anything in the Illinois Mortgage Foreclosure Law or other applicable law to the contrary:

(1) The holder of a mortgage against a timeshare estate may foreclose or otherwise enforce a security interest pursuant to this Section 10-50; and

(2) The holder of a managing entity lien against a timeshare estate may foreclose such managing entity lien pursuant to this Section 10-50.

(b) Upon default, and after all applicable cure periods identified in the mortgage (if such default is under a mortgage) or the timeshare instrument (if default is under a managing entity lien) have expired, the holder of the mortgage or managing entity lien must:

(1) Provide written notice of the default to the timeshare estate owner at the last known address of the timeshare estate owner by (A) certified mail, return receipt requested and (B) first-class mail.

(2) Provide the timeshare estate owner an additional opportunity to cure for a period of at least 30 days following the later date of the mailing of the notices pursuant to Sections 10-50(b)(1)(A) and 10-50(b)(1)(B).

(c) If, the timeshare estate owner does not cure the default before the expiration of the additional cure period granted pursuant to Section 10-50(b)(2), the holder of the mortgage or managing entity lien may foreclose the mortgage or managing entity lien by conducting a public auction that complies with the following requirements:

(1) The holder of the mortgage or managing entity lien must provide notice of the public auction as follows:

(A) By publishing notice of the public auction in at least each of 3 successive weeks in a newspaper, whether printed or electronic, of general circulation in the county where the timeshare estate is located. The first notice must be published no more than 30 days before the date of the public auction, which 30-day period shall be calculated by excluding the date of publication of the first notice and the date of the public auction.

(B) By sending written notice identifying the time, date, and place of the public auction to the last known address of the owner of record of the timeshare estate at least 30 days before the date of the public auction by (i) certified mail, return receipt requested and (ii) first-class mail.

(C) By sending notice identifying the time, date, and place of the public auction to all persons known to have a lien against the timeshare estate at least 30 days before the date of the public auction by certified mail, return receipt requested.

(2) The notices given pursuant to Section 10-50(c)(1) must also contain:

- (A) The name of the timeshare estate owner;
- (B) A general description of the timeshare estate; and
- (C) The terms of the public auction.

(3) If more than one timeshare estate is to be included in the public auction, all such timeshare estates may be combined into one notice of public auction.

(4) The public notice required by Section 10-50(c)(1)(A) for foreclosing a mortgage against a timeshare estate must be printed in substantially the following form:

NOTICE OF SALE OF TIMESHARE ESTATE OR ESTATES UNDER SECTION 10-50 OF THE

ILLINOIS REAL ESTATE TIMESHARE ACT OF 1999

By virtue of 765 ILCS 101/10-50 and in execution of a certain mortgage (or mortgages, if more than one) on the timeshare estate (or estates, if more than one) given by the owner of the timeshare estate (or owners, if more than one) set forth below for breach of the conditions of said mortgage (or mortgages, if more than one) and for the purpose of foreclosing, the same will be sold at public auction starting at..... on..... 20.. at....., Illinois, being all and singular the premises described in said mortgage (or mortgages, if more than one). (For each mortgage, list the name and address of the timeshare estate owner, a general description of the timeshare estate, and the book and page number of the mortgage.)

TERMS OF SALE: (State the deposit amount to be paid by the purchaser at the time and place of the sale and the times for payment of the balance or the whole, as the case may be. The timeshare estates, if more than one, must be sold in individual lots unless there are no individual bidders, in which case, they may be sold as a group.)

Other terms may be announced at the public auction.

Signed.....

Holder of mortgage or authorized agent.

(5) The public notice required by Section 10-50(c)(1)(A) for foreclosing a managing entity lien against a timeshare estate must be printed in substantially the following form:

NOTICE OF SALE OF TIMESHARE ESTATE OR ESTATES UNDER SECTION 10-50 OF THE ILLINOIS REAL ESTATE TIMESHARE ACT OF 1999

By virtue of the timeshare instrument of the ..... (name and address of timeshare property) and 765 ILCS 101/10-45 establishing a managing entity lien for failure to pay assessments and other costs on the timeshare estate (or estates, if more than one) held by the owner of the timeshare estate (or owners, if more than one) listed below, the timeshare estate (or estates, if more than one) and for the purpose of foreclosing, the same will be sold at public auction starting at ..... on ..... 20.. at ....., Illinois. (For each timeshare estate, list the name and address of the timeshare estate owner, a general description of the timeshare estate, and the book and page number of the deed.)

TERMS OF SALE: (State the deposit amount to be paid by the purchaser at the time and place of the sale and the times for payment of the balance or the whole, as the case may be. The timeshare estates, if more than one, must be sold in individual lots unless there are no individual bidders, in which case, they may be sold as a group.)

Other terms may be announced at the public auction.

Signed .....

Managing entity lienholder or authorized agent.

(6) Publishing and sending notices in compliance with this Section 10-50(c) constitutes sufficient public notice of the public auction.

(d) Public auctions pursuant to this Section 10-50 must be conducted as follows:

- (1) The public auction must take place within the county where the timeshare estate is located.
- (2) The public auction must be open to the general public and conducted by an auctioneer licensed pursuant to the Auction License Act.

(3) Notwithstanding anything in the Auction License Act to the contrary, the auctioneer, in his or her discretion, may waive the reading of the names of the timeshare estate owners, if more than one, the description of the timeshare estates, if more than one, and the recording information of the applicable mortgages or managing entity liens (as the case may be), if more than one.

(4) All rights of redemption of the timeshare estate owner are extinguished upon sale of a timeshare estate at the public auction.

(5) The holder of the mortgage or managing entity lien, the developer, the managing entity, and the timeshare estate owner are not precluded from bidding at the public auction.

(6) The successful purchaser at the public auction is not required to complete the purchase of the timeshare estate if the timeshare estate, at the time the auctioneer accepts the successful bid, is subject to liens or other encumbrances, other than those identified in the notice of public auction and those identified at the auction before the auctioneer opens bidding on the applicable timeshare estate.

(7) The purchaser at the public auction takes title to the timeshare estate free and clear of any outstanding assessments owed by the prior timeshare estate owner to the managing entity.

(e) Upon the sale of a timeshare estate pursuant to this Section 10-50, the holder of the mortgage or managing entity lien must provide the purchaser with (1) a foreclosure deed or other appropriate instrument transferring the mortgage holder's or managing entity's interest in the timeshare estate and (2) an affidavit affirming that all requirements of the foreclosure pursuant to this Section 10-50 have been satisfied.

(f) The timeshare estate is considered sold, and the deed or other instrument transferring the timeshare estate must transfer the timeshare estate, subject to municipal or other taxes and any liens or encumbrances recorded before the recording of the mortgage or the managing entity lien foreclosed pursuant to this Section 10-50 (as the case may be), but not including such managing entity lien.

(g) The purchaser of a timeshare estate at a public auction pursuant to this Section 10-50 must record the foreclosure deed or other instrument with the appropriate recorder of deeds within 30 days after the date the foreclosing mortgage holder or managing entity (as the case may be) delivers the foreclosure deed or other instrument to the purchaser.

(h) If the holder of a mortgage or managing entity lien conducts a nonjudicial foreclosure pursuant to this Section 10-50, the holder of the mortgage or managing entity lien forfeits its right to pursue a claim for any deficiency in the payment of the obligations of the timeshare estate owner resulting from the application of the proceeds of the sale to such obligations.

(i) For purposes of this Section 10-50, obligations to pay assessments secured by a lien established pursuant to a timeshare instrument before the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly are considered managing entity liens.

(j) This Section 10-50 applies to the foreclosure of mortgages and liens considered to be managing entity liens that arose before or after the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly.

(765 ILCS 101/10-55 new)

Sec. 10-55. Foreclosure of lien or security interest on a timeshare use.

(a) Notwithstanding anything in the Illinois Mortgage Foreclosure Law or the Uniform Commercial Code to the contrary, the holder of a managing entity lien on a timeshare use created by Section 10-45, in the case of the failure to pay assessments when due, or a security interest against a timeshare use, in the case of a breach of the security agreement, may do either of the following:

(1) Enforce the security interest pursuant to Part 6 of Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code, including (without limitation) accepting the timeshare use in full or partial satisfaction of the timeshare use owner's obligation pursuant to Section 9-620 of the Uniform Commercial Code; or

(2) Nonjudicially foreclose in the same manner as authorized by Section 10-50 for holders of a mortgage or managing entity lien against a timeshare estate.

(b) All rights of redemption of a timeshare use owner are extinguished upon sale of a timeshare use as authorized by Section 10-55(a).

(c) The holder of the security interest or managing entity lien, the developer, the managing entity and the timeshare use owner are not precluded from bidding at the sale of the timeshare use pursuant to this Section 10-55 and may enter into agreements for the purchase of one or more timeshare uses following the completion of the sale proceedings.

(d) The purchaser at the public auction takes title to the timeshare use free and clear of any outstanding assessments owed by the prior timeshare use owner to the managing entity.

(765 ILCS 101/15-5)

Sec. 15-5. Investigation. The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ may investigate the actions or qualifications of any person or persons holding or claiming to hold a certificate of registration under this Act. Such a person is referred to as "the respondent" in this Article.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-10)

Sec. 15-10. Disciplinary hearings; record; appointment of administrative law judge.

(a) The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ has the authority to conduct hearings before an administrative law judge on proceedings to revoke, suspend, place on probation, reprimand, or refuse to issue or renew registrants registered under this Act, or to impose a civil penalty not to exceed \$25,000 upon any registrant registered under this Act.

(b) The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, at its expense, shall preserve a record of all proceedings at the formal hearing of any case involving the refusal to issue or the revocation, suspension, or other discipline of a registrant. The notice of hearing, complaint, and all other documents in the nature of pleadings and written motions filed in the proceedings, the transcript of testimony, the report of the Board, and the orders of the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ shall be the record of proceeding. At all hearings or prehearing conferences, the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and the respondent shall be entitled to have a court reporter in attendance for purposes of transcribing the proceeding or prehearing conference.

(c) The ~~Secretary Commissioner~~ has the authority to appoint any attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Illinois to serve as an administrative law judge in any action for refusal to issue or renew a

certificate of registration or to discipline a registrant or person holding a certificate of registration. The administrative law judge has full authority to conduct the hearing. The administrative law judge shall report his or her findings and recommendations to the Secretary Commissioner. If the Secretary Commissioner disagrees with the recommendation of the administrative law judge, the Secretary Commissioner may issue an order in contravention of the recommendation.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-15)

Sec. 15-15. Notice of proposed disciplinary action; hearing.

(a) Before taking any disciplinary action with regard to any registrant, the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate shall:

(1) notify the respondent in writing, at least 30 calendar days prior to the date set for the hearing, of any charges made, the time and place for the hearing of the charges, and that testimony at the hearing will be heard under oath; and

(2) inform the respondent that upon failure to file an answer and request a hearing before the date originally set for the hearing, default will be taken against the respondent and the respondent's registration may be suspended or revoked, or the respondent may be otherwise disciplined, as the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate may deem proper.

(b) If the respondent fails to file an answer after receiving notice, the respondent's registration may, in the discretion of the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate, be revoked or suspended, or the respondent may be otherwise disciplined as deemed proper, without a hearing, if the act or acts charged constitute sufficient grounds for that action under this Act.

(c) At the time and place fixed in the notice, the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate shall proceed to hearing of the charges. Both the respondent and the complainant shall be accorded ample opportunity to present in person, or by counsel, statements, testimony, evidence, and argument that may be pertinent to the charges or any defense to the charges.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-20)

Sec. 15-20. Disciplinary consent orders. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Act concerning the conduct of hearings and recommendations for disciplinary actions, the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate has the authority to negotiate agreements with registrants and applicants resulting in disciplinary consent orders. Any such consent order may provide for any form of discipline provided for in the Act. Any such consent order shall provide that it is not entered into as a result of any coercion by the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate. Any such consent order shall be accepted by signature or rejected by the Secretary Commissioner in a timely manner.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-25)

Sec. 15-25. Disciplinary action; civil penalty. The Department Office of Banks and Real Estate may refuse to issue or renew any registration, or revoke or suspend any registration or place on probation or administrative supervision, or reprimand any registrant, or impose a civil penalty not to exceed \$25,000, for any one or any combination of the following causes:

(1) A registrant's disregard or violation of any provision of this Act or of the rules adopted by the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate to enforce this Act.

(2) A conviction of the registrant or any principal of the registrant of (i) a felony under the laws of any U.S. jurisdiction, (ii) a misdemeanor under the laws of any U.S. jurisdiction if an essential element of the offense is dishonesty, or (iii) a crime under the laws of any U.S. jurisdiction if the crime relates directly to the practice of the profession regulated by this Act.

(3) A registrant's making any misrepresentation for the purpose of obtaining a registration or certificate of registration.

(4) A registrant's discipline by another U.S. jurisdiction, state agency, or foreign nation regarding the practice of the profession regulated by this Act, if at least one of the grounds for the discipline is the same as or substantially equivalent to one of those set forth in this Act.

(5) A finding by the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate that the registrant, after having his or her registration placed on probationary status, has violated the terms of probation.

(6) A registrant's practicing or attempting to practice under a name other than the name as shown on his or her registration or any other legally authorized name.

(7) A registrant's failure to file a return, or to pay the tax, penalty, or interest



shown in a filed return, or to pay any final assessment of tax, penalty, or interest, as required by any tax Act administered by the Illinois Department of Revenue, until the requirements of any such tax Act are satisfied.

(8) A registrant's engaging in dishonorable, unethical, or unprofessional conduct of a character likely to deceive, defraud, or harm the public.

(9) A registrant's aiding or abetting another person or persons in disregarding or violating any provision of this Act or of the rules adopted by the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate to enforce this Act.

(10) Any representation in any document or information filed with the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate which is false or misleading.

(11) A registrant's disseminating or causing to be disseminated any false or misleading promotional materials or advertisements in connection with a timeshare plan.

(12) A registrant's concealing, diverting, or disposing of any funds or assets of any person in a manner that impairs the rights of purchasers of timeshare interests in the timeshare plan.

(13) A registrant's failure to perform any stipulation or agreement made to induce the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate to issue an order relating to the timeshare plan.

(14) A registrant's engaging in any act that constitutes a violation of Section 3-102, 3-103, 3-104, or 3-105 of the Illinois Human Rights Act.

(15) A registrant's failure to provide information requested in writing by the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate, within 30 days of the request, either as the result of a formal or informal complaint to the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate or as a result of a random audit conducted by the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate, which would indicate a violation of this Act.

(16) A registrant's failure to account for or remit any escrow funds coming into his or her possession which belonged to others.

(17) A registrant's failure to make available to Department Office of Banks and Real Estate personnel during normal business hours all escrow records and related documents maintained in connection therewith, within 24 hours after a request from the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate personnel.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-30)

Sec. 15-30. Subpoenas; attendance of witnesses; oaths.

(a) The Department Office of Banks and Real Estate has the power to issue subpoenas ad testificandum and to bring before it any persons, and to take testimony either orally or by deposition, or both, with the same fees and mileage and in the same manner as prescribed in civil cases in the courts of this State. The Department Office of Banks and Real Estate has the power to issue subpoenas duces tecum and to bring before it any documents, papers, files, books, and records, with the same costs and in the same manner as prescribed in civil cases in the courts of this State.

(b) Upon application of the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate or its designee or of the applicant, registrant, or person holding a certificate of registration against whom proceedings under this Act are pending, any circuit court may enter an order compelling the enforcement of any subpoena issued by the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate in connection with any hearing or investigation.

(c) The Secretary Commissioner and the designated administrative law judge have power to administer oaths to witnesses at any hearing that the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate is authorized to conduct and any other oaths authorized in any Act administered by the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-35)

Sec. 15-35. Administrative law judge's findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations. At the conclusion of the hearing, the administrative law judge shall present to the Secretary Commissioner a written report of the administrative law judge's findings of fact, conclusions of law, and recommendations regarding discipline or a civil penalty. The report shall contain a finding of whether or not the respondent violated this Act or failed to comply with conditions required in this Act. The administrative law judge shall specify the nature of the violation or failure to comply.

If the Secretary Commissioner disagrees in any regard with the report of the administrative law judge, the Secretary Commissioner may issue an order in contravention of the report. The Secretary

~~Commissioner~~ shall provide a written report to the administrative law judge on any deviation and shall specify with particularity the reasons for that action in the final order.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-40)

Sec. 15-40. Rehearing. After any hearing involving disciplinary action against a registrant, a copy of the administrative law judge's report shall be served on the respondent by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~, either personally or as provided in this Act for the service of the notice of hearing. Within 20 calendar days after the service, the respondent may present to the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ a motion in writing for a rehearing. The motion shall specify the particular grounds for rehearing. If the respondent orders a transcript of the record from the reporting service and pays for it within the time for filing a motion for rehearing, the 20 calendar day period within which a motion for rehearing may be filed shall commence upon the delivery of the transcript to the respondent.

If no motion for rehearing is filed, then upon the expiration of the time specified for filing a motion, or if a motion for rehearing is denied, then upon denial, the ~~Secretary Commissioner~~ may enter an order in accordance with the recommendations of the administrative law judge, except as otherwise provided in this Article. Whenever the ~~Secretary Commissioner~~ is not satisfied that substantial justice has been done in the hearing or in the administrative law judge's report, the ~~Secretary Commissioner~~ may order a rehearing by the same or some other duly qualified administrative law judge.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-45)

Sec. 15-45. Order or certified copy. An order or a certified copy of an order, over the seal of the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ and purporting to be signed by the ~~Secretary Commissioner~~, shall be prima facie proof of the following:

- (1) That the signature is the genuine signature of the ~~Secretary Commissioner~~.
- (2) That the ~~Secretary Commissioner~~ is duly appointed and qualified.
- (3) That the administrative law judge is duly appointed and qualified.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-50)

Sec. 15-50. Restoration of certificate of registration. At any time after the suspension or revocation of any certificate of registration, the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ may restore the certificate of registration to the respondent upon the written recommendation of the ~~Secretary Commissioner~~, unless after an investigation and a hearing the ~~Secretary Commissioner~~ determines that restoration is not in the public interest.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-55)

Sec. 15-55. Surrender of certificate of registration. Upon the revocation or suspension of a certificate of registration, the registrant shall immediately surrender the certificate of registration to the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~. If the registrant fails to do so, the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ has the right to seize the certificate of registration.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-60)

Sec. 15-60. Administrative Review Law. All final administrative decisions of the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ under this Act are subject to judicial review under the Administrative Review Law and the rules implementing that Law. The term "administrative decision" is defined as in Section 3-101 of the Code of Civil Procedure. Proceedings for judicial review shall be commenced in the circuit court of the county in which the party applying for review resides, but if the party is not a resident of this State, the venue shall be in Cook or Sangamon County.

Pending the court's final decision on administrative review, the acts, orders, sanctions, and rulings of the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ regarding any registration shall remain in full force and effect unless modified or stayed by court order pending a final judicial decision.

The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ shall not be required to certify any record to the court or file any answer in court or otherwise appear in any court in a judicial review proceeding unless there is filed in the court, with the complaint, a receipt from the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ acknowledging payment of the costs of furnishing and certifying the record. Failure on the part of the plaintiff to file a receipt in the court is grounds for dismissal of the action.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-65)

Sec. 15-65. Public interest, safety, or welfare; summary suspension. The ~~Secretary Commissioner~~ may temporarily suspend any registration pursuant to this Act, without hearing, simultaneously with the institution of proceedings for a hearing provided for in this Section, if the ~~Secretary Commissioner~~ finds that the evidence indicates that the public interest, safety, or welfare imperatively requires emergency action. If the ~~Secretary Commissioner~~ temporarily suspends any registration without a hearing, a hearing must be held within 30 calendar days after the suspension. The person whose registration is suspended may seek a continuance of the hearing, during which the suspension shall remain in effect. The proceeding shall be concluded without appreciable delay.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-70)

Sec. 15-70. Non-registered practice; civil penalty; injunction.

(a) Any person who practices, offers to practice, attempts to practice, or holds himself or herself out to practice as a registrant under this Act without being registered under this Act shall, in addition to any other penalty provided by law, pay a civil penalty to the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ in an amount not to exceed \$25,000 for each offense as determined by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~. The civil penalty shall be assessed by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ after a hearing is held in accordance with the provisions set forth in this Act regarding the provision of a hearing for the discipline of a registrant.

(b) The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ has the authority and power to investigate any and all non-registered activity.

(c) A civil penalty imposed under subsection (a) shall be paid within 60 days after the effective date of the order imposing the civil penalty. The order shall constitute a judgment and may be filed, and execution may be had thereon, in the same manner as any judgment from any court of record.

(d) Engaging in timeshare practices in Illinois by any entity not holding a valid and current certificate of registration under this Act is declared to be inimical to the public welfare, to constitute a public nuisance, and to cause irreparable harm to the public welfare. The ~~Secretary Commissioner~~, the Attorney General, the State's Attorney of any county in the State, or any person may maintain an action in the name of the People of the State of Illinois, and may apply for injunctive relief in any circuit court to enjoin such entity from engaging in such practice. Upon the filing of a verified petition in the court, the court, if satisfied by affidavit or otherwise that such entity has been engaged in such practice without a valid and current certificate of registration, may enter a temporary restraining order without notice or bond, enjoining the defendant from such further practice. Only the showing of nonregistration, by affidavit or otherwise, is necessary in order for a temporary injunction to issue. A copy of the verified complaint shall be served upon the defendant and the proceedings shall thereafter be conducted as in other civil cases except as modified by this Section. If it is established that the defendant has been or is engaged in such unlawful practice, the court may enter an order or judgment perpetually enjoining the defendant from further practice. In all proceedings hereunder, the court, in its discretion, may apportion the costs among the parties interested in the action, including cost of filing the complaint, service of process, witness fees and expenses, court reporter charges and reasonable attorneys' fees. In the case of a violation of any injunctive order entered under the provisions of this Section, the court may summarily try and punish the offender for contempt of court. Proceedings for an injunction under this Section shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all penalties and other remedies provided in this Act.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/15-80)

Sec. 15-80. Cease and desist orders. The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ may issue a cease and desist order to any person who engages in any activity prohibited by this Act. Any person in violation of a cease and desist order entered by the ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ is subject to all of the remedies provided by law.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/20-5)

Sec. 20-5. Administration of Act. The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ shall exercise the powers and duties prescribed by the Civil Administrative Code of Illinois and shall exercise other powers and duties necessary for effectuating the purposes of this Act. The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ may contract with third parties for services necessary for the proper administration of this Act. The ~~Department Office of Banks and Real Estate~~ has the authority to establish public policies and procedures necessary for the administration of this Act.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/20-10)

Sec. 20-10. Administrative rules. The Department Office of Banks and Real Estate shall adopt rules for the implementation and enforcement of this Act.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/20-15)

Sec. 20-15. Real Estate License Administration Fund.

All fees collected for registration and for civil penalties pursuant to this Act and administrative rules adopted under this Act shall be deposited into the Real Estate License Administration Fund. The moneys deposited in the Real Estate License Administration Fund shall be appropriated to the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate for expenses for the administration and enforcement of this Act.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/20-20)

Sec. 20-20. Forms. The Department Office of Banks and Real Estate may prescribe forms and procedures for submitting information to the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/20-25)

Sec. 20-25. Site inspections. The Department Office of Banks and Real Estate shall thoroughly investigate all matters relating to an application for registration under this Act and may require a personal inspection of any developer, timeshare plan, accommodation, exchange company, or resale company and any offices where any of the foregoing may transact business. All reasonable expenses incurred by the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate in investigating such matters shall be borne by the registrant, and the registrant shall reimburse the Department Office of Banks and Real Estate for those expenses within 30 calendar days of receipt of notice of the expenses from the Department Office. The Department Office of Banks and Real Estate may require a deposit sufficient to cover the expenses prior to incurring the expenses.

(Source: P.A. 91-585, eff. 1-1-00.)

(765 ILCS 101/5-35 rep.)

Section 10. The Real Estate Timeshare Act of 1999 is amended by repealing Section 5-35.

Section 97. Severability. The provisions of this Act are severable under Section 1.31 of the Statute on Statutes.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

The foregoing motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

There being no further amendment(s), the bill, as amended, was again advanced to the order of Third Reading.

## RECALL

At the request of the principal sponsor, Representative Mathias, SENATE BILL 2057 was recalled from the order of Third Reading to the order of Second Reading and held on that order.

## AGREED RESOLUTIONS

HOUSE RESOLUTIONS 410 and 412 were taken up for consideration.

Representative Currie moved the adoption of the agreed resolutions.

The motion prevailed and the agreed resolutions were adopted.

At the hour of 7:33 o'clock p.m., Representative Currie moved that the House do now adjourn until Tuesday, May 19, 2009, at 9:30 o'clock a.m., allowing perfunctory time for the Clerk.

The motion prevailed.

And the House stood adjourned.

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
QUORUM ROLL CALL FOR ATTENDANCE

May 18, 2009

0 YEAS

0 NAYS

107 PRESENT

P Acevedo	P Davis, Monique	P Jefferson	P Reis
P Arroyo	E Davis, William	P Joyce	P Reitz
P Bassi	P DeLuca	P Kosel	P Riley
P Beaubien	E Dugan	P Lang	E Rita
P Beiser	P Dunkin	P Leitch	P Rose
P Bellock	P Durkin	P Lyons	P Ryg
P Berrios	P Eddy	P Mathias	P Sacia
P Biggins	P Farnham	P Mautino	P Saviano
P Black	P Feigenholtz	P May	P Schmitz
E Boland	P Flider	P McAsey	P Senger
E Bost	P Flowers	P McAuliffe	P Smith
P Bradley	P Ford	P McCarthy	P Sommer
P Brady	P Fortner	P McGuire (ADDED)	P Soto
P Brauer	P Franks	P Mell	P Stephens
E Brosnahan	P Fritchey	P Mendoza	P Sullivan
P Burke	P Froehlich	P Miller	P Thapedi
P Burns	P Golar	P Mitchell, Bill	P Tracy
P Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	P Mitchell, Jerry	P Tryon
P Chapa LaVia	P Gordon, Jehan	P Moffitt	P Turner
P Coladipietro	P Graham	E Mulligan	P Verschoore
P Cole	P Hamos (ADDED)	P Myers	P Wait
P Collins	P Hannig	P Nekritz	P Walker
P Colvin	P Harris	P Osmond	E Washington
P Connelly	P Hatcher	P Osterman	P Watson
P Coulson	P Hernandez	P Phelps	P Winters
P Crespo	E Hoffman	P Pihos	E Yarbrough
P Cross	P Holbrook	P Poe	P Zalewski
P Cultra	P Howard	P Pritchard	P Mr. Speaker
P Currie	P Jackson	P Ramey	
P D'Amico	P Jakobsson	P Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1769  
 PESTICIDE APPLICATION-SCHOOLS  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	E McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1770  
 VESSA-LEAVE, NOTICE, PENALTIES  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

104 YEAS

1 NAY

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	E McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
N Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1784  
 UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER PORT  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

77 YEAS

28 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	N Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	N Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	N Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	N Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	N Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	N Flider	N McAsey	N Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	N Sommer
Y Brady	N Fortner	E McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	N Franks	Y Mell	N Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	N Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	N Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
N Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
N Chapa LaVia	N Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
N Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
N Cole	E Hamos	N Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	N Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	N Osmond	E Washington
N Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	N Watson
N Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
N Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
N Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	N Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence



STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1796  
SCH CD-DROPOUTS-IHOPE PROGRAM  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

103 YEAS

0 NAYS

2 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	P Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	P Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	E McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1814  
 CRIM CD-EAVESDROPPING-EXEMPT  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	E McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1828  
 LONGITUDINAL EDUC DATA SYSTEM  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	E McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1817  
CNTY CD-CHILD ADVOCACY FEES  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	E McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1830  
 VETERINARY MED PRACT-TEMP PERM  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

1 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
P Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	Y Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1832  
CRIM PRO-SUBPOENA ISSUANCE  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1841  
 CD CORR-DNA DATABASE  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1843  
CD CORR-CREDIT-TIME IN CUSTODY  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

100 YEAS

5 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	N Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	N Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	N Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
N Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	N Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence



STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1882  
SCH CD-STREAMLINE ED DELIVERY  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1883  
BD HIGHER ED-COLL BAC DEGREE  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1923  
 ENTERPRISE ZONE ACT-WIND FARMS  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

87 YEAS

18 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	N Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	N Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	N Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	N Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	N Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
N Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	N Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	N Sommer
N Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	N Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	N Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	N Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
N Connelly	N Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
N Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
N Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
N Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
N Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1818  
CRIM CD-FINANCIAL CRIME  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

97 YEAS

7 NAYS

1 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	N Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	P May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	N Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
N Collins	Y Hannig	N Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	N Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
N Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
N Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1926  
 HIGHER ED-GOLDEN APPLE SCHOLAR  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

94 YEAS

11 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
N Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	N Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	N Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	N Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	N Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
N Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	N Osmond	E Washington
N Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
N Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	N Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	N Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1948  
PROP TAX-ASSESS-VIEW-BOOKS  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

104 YEAS

0 NAYS

1 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	P Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1956  
 SCH CD-ST AID- PAR/TEACHR CONF  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1957  
SCHOOLS-BREAKFAST PROGRAMS  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

102 YEAS

0 NAYS

3 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
P Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	P Mendoza	Y Sullivan
P Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence



STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1958  
VEH CD-CUSTOM VEHICLES  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1970  
CHARITY-FIN STMT TO ATTGEN  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

83 YEAS

22 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	N Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	N Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	N Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	N Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	N Flider	N McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	N McCarthy	N Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	N Franks	N Mell	N Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	N Froehlich	N Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	N Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
N Chapa LaVia	N Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	N Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	N Watson
N Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
N Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
N Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	N Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1972  
 DRAINAGE CD-BIDS  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

76 YEAS

28 NAYS

1 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	N Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	N Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	N Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	N Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	P Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
N Biggins	N Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	N May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	N Flider	N McAsey	N Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	N McCarthy	N Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	N Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	N Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	N Froehlich	N Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
N Chapa LaVia	N Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
N Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
N Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	N Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	N Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
N Connelly	N Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
N Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
N Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
N Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	N Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1974  
PEN CD-ART 3 & 4 TRUSTEE TRAIN  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 1977  
 SCH CD-MISCELLANEOUS  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 2009  
HIGHER ED-ENERGY CONSERVATION  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 2010  
 CD CORR- DETAINERS  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 2014  
SCH CD-PRAIRIE ST ACHIEV EXAM  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence



STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 2034  
 EPA--WASTE--USE DETERMINATIONS  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 2045  
BLIND VENDORS ACT  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
 NINETY-SIXTH  
 GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
 HOUSE ROLL CALL  
 SENATE BILL 2046  
 INC TX-VET WAGE CREDIT  
 THIRD READING  
 PASSED

May 18, 2009

105 YEAS

0 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 2051  
SCH CD-STATE AID FORMULA  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

104 YEAS

1 NAY

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	N Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
Y Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	Y Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
Y Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

STATE OF ILLINOIS  
NINETY-SIXTH  
GENERAL ASSEMBLY  
HOUSE ROLL CALL  
SENATE BILL 1897  
VEH CD-OFF-HIGHWAY VEHICLES  
THIRD READING  
PASSED

May 18, 2009

102 YEAS

3 NAYS

0 PRESENT

Y Acevedo	Y Davis, Monique	Y Jefferson	Y Reis
Y Arroyo	E Davis, William	Y Joyce	Y Reitz
Y Bassi	Y DeLuca	Y Kosel	Y Riley
Y Beaubien	E Dugan	Y Lang	E Rita
Y Beiser	Y Dunkin	Y Leitch	Y Rose
Y Bellock	Y Durkin	Y Lyons	Y Ryg
Y Berrios	Y Eddy	Y Mathias	Y Sacia
Y Biggins	Y Farnham	Y Mautino	Y Saviano
Y Black	Y Feigenholtz	Y May	Y Schmitz
E Boland	Y Flider	Y McAsey	Y Senger
E Bost	Y Flowers	Y McAuliffe	Y Smith
Y Bradley	Y Ford	Y McCarthy	Y Sommer
Y Brady	Y Fortner	Y McGuire	Y Soto
Y Brauer	Y Franks	Y Mell	Y Stephens
E Brosnahan	Y Fritchey	Y Mendoza	Y Sullivan
Y Burke	Y Froehlich	Y Miller	Y Thapedi
Y Burns	Y Golar	E Mitchell, Bill	Y Tracy
Y Cavaletto	E Gordon, Careen	Y Mitchell, Jerry	Y Tryon
Y Chapa LaVia	Y Gordon, Jehan	Y Moffitt	Y Turner
Y Coladipietro	Y Graham	E Mulligan	Y Verschoore
Y Cole	E Hamos	Y Myers	Y Wait
Y Collins	Y Hannig	Y Nekritz	Y Walker
Y Colvin	Y Harris	Y Osmond	E Washington
Y Connelly	Y Hatcher	Y Osterman	Y Watson
N Coulson	Y Hernandez	Y Phelps	Y Winters
Y Crespo	E Hoffman	N Pihos	E Yarbrough
Y Cross	Y Holbrook	Y Poe	Y Zalewski
Y Cultra	Y Howard	Y Pritchard	Y Mr. Speaker
N Currie	Y Jackson	Y Ramey	
Y D'Amico	Y Jakobsson	Y Reboletti	

E - Denotes Excused Absence

**56TH LEGISLATIVE DAY**

**Perfunctory Session**

**MONDAY, MAY 18, 2009**

At the hour of 7:35 o'clock p.m., the House convened perfunctory session.

**INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF BILLS**

The following bill was introduced, read by title a first time, ordered reproduced and placed in the Committee on Rules:

HOUSE BILL 4563. Introduced by Representative Black, AN ACT concerning education.

**SENATE BILLS ON FIRST READING**

Having been reproduced, the following bills were taken up, read by title a first time and placed in the Committee on Rules: SENATE BILLS 331 (Kosel), 1050 (Currie) , 2167 (Tryon) and 2300 (Sacia).

At the hour of 7:36 o'clock p.m., the House Perfunctory Session adjourned.